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PART I
Item 1. Business.
General
Imation Corp., a Delaware Corporation, is a global data storage and data security company. With a 60-year history of technology leadership,
the Company's mission is to help organizations create an integrated storage, private cloud, file sync and share enterprise solution. The Company
historically operated in two reportable segments: Consumer Storage and Accessories (which consisted of our Consumer Storage Media and Audio
and Accessories businesses) and Tiered Storage and Security Solutions (which consisted of our Commercial Storage Media and Storage and
Security Solutions (i.e. Nexsan and IronKey) businesses.
The company is executing on a restructuring plan whereby it is in the final phases of winding down its Consumer Storage and Accessories,
Audio and Accessories, and Commercial Storage Media businesses (combined the "legacy businesses"). Additionally, in January 2016, we sold
our IronKey business (which was part of our historical Tiered Storage and Security Solutions reportable segment). Going forward, we will focus on
our Nexsan business as well as explore strategic alternatives to deploy our excess capital.
As used in this document, the terms “Imation”, “the Company”, “we”, “us”, and “our” mean Imation Corp. and its subsidiaries and consolidated
entities unless the context indicates otherwise.
Strategic Direction
Imation was formed in 1996 from the spin-off of substantially all the businesses that comprised the data storage and imaging systems groups
of 3M Company. The Company had historically undertaken a series of strategic transformations to leverage Imation’s global footprint and deep
roots in data storage to become a leading player in data storage and security solutions.
In May, 2015, through a proxy contest, shareholders elected three directors nominated by the Clinton Group, Inc. ("Clinton") to the Imation
Board of Directors. These directors comprised half of the seats of the Imation board.
In August 2015, Imation formed a Strategic Alternatives Committee of its Board to develop initiatives for strategic value creation and to work
with management to make recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s use of excess capital. On October 19, 2015, the Company
announced that it will actively explore alternative uses for its excess capital. Interim Chief Executive Officer, Robert B. Fernander is leading the
evaluation and deployment of capital in conjunction with the Strategic Alternatives Committee. The scope of the opportunities to consider may be
outside Imation’s historical focus, and may be sourced in the private or public markets. The Company generally expects to evaluate opportunities
to acquire businesses that we can actively manage and oversee, but the Company may also invest in opportunities that we will not control, such
as index funds, mutual funds and other investment funds that offer attractive returns without significantly compromising liquidity.
On September 27, 2015, the Company adopted a restructuring plan which began the termination process of its legacy businesses including
commercial storage media (magnetic tape), consumer storage media (optical disc and flash drive) and audio and accessories. The plan also called
for the aggressive rationalization of Imation’s corporate overhead. The strategic shift resulted from continued losses due to secular declines in
Imation’s legacy businesses, and it aimed to reduce the cost structure and streamline the organization in light of these declines. The Company
expects that it will incur approximately $120 million in total charges for the restructuring plan excluding tax impact. The charges are mostly noncash, with cash charges expected to be approximately $35 million. The Company will complete the majority of the restructuring plan during the first
quarter of 2016, with most of the charges already incurred in the third and fourth quarters of 2015.
On October 14, 2015, Imation acquired substantially all of the equity of Connected Data, Inc. (CDI), an emerging enterprise-class, private
cloud sync and share company, in a transaction valued at $6.7 million. The acquisition of CDI augments Imation’s vision to deliver a
comprehensive and secure storage, backup and collaboration ecosystem.
During the third quarter of 2015, management and the Board of Directors evaluated the Nexsan and IronKey businesses. As a result of this
assessment, we significantly revised our previous business strategy by narrowing our product portfolio and reducing the operating expenses
associated with these businesses.
In late December 2015, the Company also amended its cash investment policy to permit investment activity in public company stock, index
funds, mutual funds, and other investment funds that offer attractive returns without significantly compromising liquidity, at all times considering
the applicable risks. In January 2016, the Board of
2
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Directors approved investing up to 25 percent of the Company’s cash in investment funds with the focus on producing attractive risk-adjusted
rates of return while maintaining liquidity. On February 8, 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement to invest up to $20 million of
its excess cash in the Clinton Lighthouse Equity Strategies Fund (Offshore) Ltd. (“Clinton Lighthouse”). Clinton Lighthouse is a market neutral,
statistical arbitrage fund which provides daily liquidity to its investors. The Fund is managed by Clinton Group Inc., a shareholder of the Company.
One of Clinton’s senior portfolio managers is Joseph A. De Perio, Imation’s Chairman of the Board. Due to the arrangement, Clinton waived its
customary management fee and agreed to receive incentive compensation in the form of shares of Imation common stock at a value of $1.00 per
share, which may be reset from time to time. The Board of Directors, in conjunction with management, reviewed various funds and voted to
approve this investment, with Mr. De Perio abstaining from the vote. Management will continue to seek out and evaluate other attractive
investment options under its cash management policy.
On January 4, 2016, Imation completed the sale of its corporate headquarters facility in Oakdale, Minnesota, to Larson Family Real Estate
LLLP for a gross purchase price of $11.5 million, with net proceeds of approximately $11 million. As previously described in the Company’s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the Company classified its corporate headquarters facility as an asset held for sale. The Company
will keep a small team and its headquarters in Minnesota.
Also on January 4, 2016, the Company also sold its Memorex trademark and two associated trademark licenses to DPI Inc., a St. Louisbased branded consumer electronics company for $9.4 million.
On February 2, 2016, the Company sold its IronKey business to Kingston Digital, Inc. and DataLocker Inc. in two asset purchase agreements.
To Kingston Digital, Inc., we sold the assets representing the Company’s business of developing, designing, manufacturing and selling IronKey
mobile security solutions. This includes Windows to Go USB flash drives, Windows to Go use cases and encrypted USB flash drives and external
USB hard drives. The sale specifically excluded the software and services aspect of the IronKey business. Kingston Digital, Inc. paid a purchase
price of $4.25 million at closing for certain assets, including inventory, and the Company retained accounts receivable and accounts payable
relating to that business. To DataLocker, Imation sold the assets of the Company’s business of software and services for its IronKey products,
including services related to Windows to Go USB flash drives. DataLocker paid a purchase price of $0.4 million at closing and agreed to assume
certain service obligations in the amount of approximately $2 million, as well as pay the Company earn-outs in the event certain service revenue
targets are achieved.
Our current business segments were formed in 2015 to align with our go-forward and legacy operations. A description of our 2015 segments
follows directly below. Upon completion of Imation’s restructuring plan in 2016, there will be one operating business segment: Nexsan.
Nexsan Segment
This segment operates as its own product line. Our storage systems portfolio ranges from high volume, dense storage products to innovative
unified hybrid storage solutions for small and medium commercial businesses, enterprise and government customers.
This product line offers strong growth potential and is the main target of our investment spending. It consists of Imation Nexsan and
Connected Data products, There are more than 11,000 Nexsan customers worldwide with over 38,000 systems deployed since 1999. Imation’s
Nexsan portfolio features solid-state optimized unified hybrid storage systems, secure automated archive solutions and high-density enterprise
storage arrays. Our solutions are ideal for mission-critical IT applications such as virtualization, cloud, databases and collaborations and energy
efficient, high-density storage for backup and archiving. Nexsan systems are delivered through a worldwide network of cloud service providers,
value-added resellers (VARs) and solutions integrators. We offer global customers four main solution sets:
•

The NST® hybrid storage line (SAN & NAS) which addresses the high-growth hybrid storage market by combining solid state technology
with spinning disk for high performance and capacity;

•

The Nexsan E-Series disk arrays which provide industry-leading storage density, reliability and power management to the block-based
storage market;

•

The Assureon® line which delivers secure archive systems for data offload, compliance and secure cloud deployment; and

•

The Transporter line, which delivers private cloud sync and share services for connected workers in security and cost-sensitive work
environments. Transporter, which came from the CDI acquisition, is a secure, on3
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site alternative to Dropbox and provides mobile access, file sync-and-share and global replication. Unlike Dropbox, Transporter enables an
enterprise to create a private cloud. Transporter extends existing file servers and NAS systems, is non-disruptive to current systems and
processes and has a much higher capacity and performance, while being significantly less expensive than public cloud storage.
This product family addresses growth segments of the data storage market. We have added sales, engineering resources and value-added
resellers around the world to build Nexsan’s presence in key geographies. Recently, we have rationalized the infrastructure to concentrate on the
strongest opportunities. Our targeted vertical markets include government, healthcare, and media and entertainment.
IronKey Segment
The IronKey portfolio, which was part of Imation in 2015 but was sold in early 2016, met the challenge of protecting today’s mobile workforce,
featuring secure USB solutions for data transport and mobile workspaces. The IronKey line includes the world’s leading hardware encrypted USB
drives, PC on a Stick® workspaces for Microsoft® Windows To Go®, and cloud-based or on-premises centralized secure device management
solutions.
Storage Media and Accessories (Legacy Business) Business Segment
The Storage Media and Accessories business segment distributes differentiated products through retail and commercial channels across the
globe. Storage Media and Accessories consist of the Commercial Storage Media, Consumer Storage Media and Audio and Accessories product
categories. This business continues to be impacted by lower revenues from the expected secular declines in magnetic tape and optical media
products. Due to the declines in the business, in 2015, we adopted a restructuring plan in which the Company will terminate sales and operations
of this legacy business. The strategic shift of winding down the legacy business is still in process and is expected to be complete in Q1 2016. Our
strategy is to maximize cash flows, extract working capital from this business and manage our cost structure efficiently as the business winds
down.
Commercial Storage Media
Our magnetic tape media products are used for business and operational continuity planning, disaster recovery, data backup, near-line data
storage and retrieval, and for cost-effective mass and archival storage. Our magnetic tape revenues decreased consistent with the overall market
and we are in the process of terminating this business.
Consumer Storage Media
Our Consumer Storage Media product line includes optical products, USB flash drives, flash cards and external hard disk drives. Imation’s
optical products consist of DVDs, CDs and Blu-ray™ recordable media. Our strategy is to maximize cash flows, extract working capital from this
business and manage our cost structure efficiently as the business winds down. We marketed our optical media brands as well as USB flash
drives, flash cards and external hard disk drives under our Imation, Memorex and TDK Life on Record brands. We sourced these products from
manufacturers primarily in Asia and sold them through a variety of retail and commercial distribution channels globally.
Our Brands
The Nexsan brand was acquired by Imation at the end of 2012. We began operations in 2013. Imation Nexsan Storage Solutions are ideal for a
broad range of applications including virtual machine storage, cloud storage, database, surveillance, bulk storage, backup and recovery, disaster
recovery and archive. The Nexsan products are sold to small and medium-size enterprise customers across a range of vertical markets
exclusively through our worldwide network of VARs.
The Transporter brand was acquired by Imation in 2015 though Connected Data, Inc. Transporter is a secure, on-premise, cost-efficient
alternative to Dropbox that allows users to bypass the cloud when sharing business files to their mobile devices. Transporter products allow us to
fill the growing demand for secure file synchronization to mobile devices.
The Imation brand has been at the forefront of data storage and digital technology for many years. Imation brand products include magnetic
tape media, recordable CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs, flash products and hard disk drives.
The IronKey brand was purchased in 2011 for its secure storage and workspace management software and service. In 2012, we consolidated
our Mobile Security portfolio around the IronKey brand. Our products included hardware encrypted USB drives, PC on a Stick IronKey Workspaces
for Microsoft Windows To Go and cloud-based
4
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or on-premises centralized secure device management solutions. On February 2, 2016, we closed on the sale of our IronKey business.
The Memorex brand included recordable CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs, optical drives and optical storage accessories. We sold consumer
electronics products under the Memorex brand until October 15, 2013 when we divested our Memorex consumer electronics business. On January
4, 2016, we sold the Memorex trademark and two associated trademark licenses.
The TDK Life on Record logo is a trademark owned by TDK Corporation and had been licensed exclusively to Imation since 2007. TDK Life on
Record brand products include recordable CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs, flash drives, tape cartridges, headphones and speakers which are sold to
commercial customers and individual consumers. TDK Life on Record brand products are sold across the globe. On September 28, 2015, we
entered into an agreement to terminate our license agreement with TDK Corporation.
Geographic Regions
Both of our reporting segments serve customers in all geographic regions worldwide. The United States represents the largest current
individual market for our products and offers several sophisticated channels of distribution including VARs, OEMs and retail outlets. However,
most of our revenue comes from markets outside the United States. Western Europe exhibits traits similar to North America in terms of overall
breadth of product offerings, high penetration of end user markets and range of sophistication of distribution channels. Emerging markets in
Eastern Europe represent potential growth markets for our products as Information Technology (IT) end user and consumer markets grow. Our
Asian and Pacific region serves China, Hong Kong, Korea, Australia, Singapore, India and Taiwan. Japan is the single largest market outside the
United States. We also sell our products in the Middle East and parts of Africa.
Seasonality
Our revenues are subject to some levels of seasonality. Historically, our fourth quarter has been the highest revenue quarter of the year due to
stronger consumer and information technology spending in the fourth quarter of the calendar year. Our revenues are also subject to secular decline
of the markets for magnetic tape products as well as for optical media products.
Customers, Marketing and Distribution
Our products are sold to businesses and individual consumers. No one customer accounted for 10 percent or more of our revenue in 2015,
2014 or 2013.
We market Imation products through a combination of distributors, wholesalers, VARs, OEMs and retail outlets. Worldwide, approximately 68
percent of our 2015 revenue came from distributors and VARs, 28 percent came from the retail channel and 4 percent came from OEMs. We
maintain a Company sales force and a network of distributors and VARs to generate sales of our products around the world.
Market and Competition
The global market for our products is highly competitive and characterized by continuing technology changes, frequent new product
introductions and performance improvements, diverse distribution channels, aggressive marketing and pricing practices and ongoing variable price
erosion. Competition is based on many factors, including product design, brand strength, distribution presence and capability, channel knowledge
and expertise, geographic availability, breadth of product line, product cost, media capacity, access speed and performance, durability, reliability,
scalability, intellectual property, compatibility and global product support capability.
Imation Nexsan storage system products operate in a large and competitive data storage market. Demand for data storage capacity is
expected to increase, and customers require flexible solutions that include data security and protection, performance and scalability. We believe
we have a diverse and competitive product portfolio that addresses a wide range of customer needs. Our primary competitors for our Nexsan
products include mid-range storage systems and products from EMC, NetApp, Pure Storage, Overland, Violin, Dot Hill, Nimble and a number of
smaller, privately held storage system companies.
Imation Nexsan Transporter appliances compete in the file Sync and Share market. Cloud storage continues to increase in usage, but
concerns about security, availability and cost are growing. Primary competitors are Dropbox, Box and Google Drive. We are highly differentiated
with our patented peer to peer synchronization approach which provides for lower overall cost and greatly enhanced data availability and security.
5
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Imation IronKey products compete in the mobile workspace market and the secure mobile security market. Demand for mobile workspace,
especially given the BYOD trend, is expected to grow, and customers require solutions that include security, ease of use, performance and central
management, which IronKey products provide. Secure storage demand is flat but is seeing an extended life. Our primary competitors for our
IronKey products include other Microsoft Windows-certified providers, such as Spyrus and Kingston.
The magnetic tape industry has consistently addressed the growth in demand for storage capacity with higher capacity cartridges, resulting in
a lower cost per gigabyte, which leads to a decline in the actual number of media units shipped. In addition, lower cost disk and storage
optimization strategies, such as virtual tape and de-duplication, continue to compete with magnetic tape. Therefore, tape revenue continues to
decline. Our major competitors include Fuji, Sony, Maxell and HP.
Our main competitors in recordable optical media include Maxell, JVC, Sony and Verbatim. The optical market is in secular decline as digital
streaming, hard disk and flash media replace optical media in some applications such as music and video recording. Our different brands have
varying strengths in different regions of the world.
In standard flash media, Imation’s primary competitors include Kingston, SanDisk, Lexar and PNY. In standard external and removable hard
drives, our major competitors are Western Digital and Seagate. The traditional flash media market is competitive, with highly variable price swings
driven by NAND chip manufacturing volume and capacity as well as market demand in the much larger embedded flash market. Focused and
efficient sourcing and distribution, as well as diligent management of portfolio size, inventories, channel placement and promotional activity are
critical elements for success.
Audio and accessories products are sold based on a range of factors, including brand and reputation, product features and designs,
distribution coverage, innovation and price. Our competitors in the audio and accessories products market consist of numerous manufacturers and
brands. The global audio and accessories products market is very large and highly diverse in terms of competitors, channels and products.
Product Sourcing
We contract for the manufacturing of all products we sell and distribute from a variety of third-party providers that manufacture predominantly
outside the United States. When required, we manufacture in a manner consistent with Country of Origin Guidelines. We seek to differentiate our
products through unique designs, product positioning, packaging, merchandising and branding.
Our legacy businesses purchased finished and semi-finished products, including optical media and USB flash drives, and consumer electronic
products, primarily from Asian suppliers. For our optical media, we procured our supply primarily from three companies.
Our go-forward Nexsan business purchases the components and semi-finished products from the various suppliers, primarily in the US and
Mexico.
Research, Development and Engineering
Our success depends on the development and timely introduction of new products. Beginning in 2013, we narrowed our research and
development efforts to priority projects in our growth areas of data protection and management, storage hardware, removable hard drive systems,
disk-based storage systems and related software. We maintain advanced research facilities and invest both in researching, developing and
engineering potential new products, as well as improving existing products. Our research and development expense was $19.2 million, $18.8
million and $18.4 million for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We invest in focused research, development, engineering and capital equipment in
order to remain competitive and successfully develop and source products that meet market requirements. While the total amount of the research
and development expense may decrease following the sale of the IronKey business in February, 2016, the percentage of expense dedicated to
research and development will likely increase in 2016 as we continue to focus on Nexsan/CDI research and development.
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Intellectual Property
We rely on a combination of patent, trademark and copyright laws, trade secret protection, and confidentiality and license agreements to
protect the intellectual property rights related to our products. We register our patents and trademarks in the United States and in a number of other
countries where we do business. United States patents are currently granted for a term of 20 years from the date a patent application is filed.
United States trademark registrations are for a term of 10 years and are renewable every 10 years as long as the trademarks are used in the
regular course of trade. On September 28, 2015, we entered into an agreement to terminate our license agreement with TDK Corporation pursuant
to which TDK had granted the Company and its affiliates a long-term exclusive license to use the TDK Life on Record brand for current and future
recordable magnetic, optical, flash media and accessory products globally.
During 2015, we were awarded 17 United States patents and acquired two key patents with the acquisition of Connected Data. At the end of
2015, Imation held over 180 patents in the United States. Currently, we are pursuing strategies to market non-core patents with the goal of
monetizing these assets.
Employees
At December 31, 2015, we employed approximately 600 people worldwide, with approximately 280 employed in the United States and
approximately 320 employed internationally. We expect the number of worldwide employees to be reduced to approximately 200 by the end of Q1
2016.
Environmental Matters
Our operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental laws. Environmental remediation costs are accrued when a
probable liability has been determined and the amount of that liability has been reasonably estimated. We review these accruals periodically as
remediation and investigatory activities proceed and adjust them accordingly. Compliance with environmental regulations has not had a material
adverse effect on our financial results. We did not have any environmental accruals as of December 31, 2015.
International Operations
Approximately 61 percent of our total revenue in 2015 came from sales outside the United States, primarily through subsidiaries, sales offices,
distributors, VARs and relationships with OEMs throughout Europe, Asia, Latin America and Canada. We do not own any manufacturing facilities.
See Note 14 - Business Segment Information and Geographic Data in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on
our international operations.
As discussed under Risk Factors in Item 1A of this Form 10-K, our international operations are subject to various risks and uncertainties that
are not present in our domestic operations.
Executive Officers of the Registrant
Information regarding our executive officers, as of March 15, 2016 is set forth below:
Robert B. Fernander, age 57, is Interim Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Fernander has served on the Board of Directors of the Company since
May 22, 2015. Since September 2014, Mr. Fernander has served as an advisor and provided consulting services for I/O Switch Technologies,
Inc., a developer of data center technologies, Storage Strategies NOW, an industry analyst firm that offers written publications and analysis for IT
users, business and technology leaders and venture capitalists, and FLM.TV, a company focused on delivering, distributing, and marketing
independent film. Prior to that, Mr. Fernander served as the Chief Revenue Officer of Datagres Technologies Inc., a data storage optimization
software company, from September 2013 until September 2014. During his time at Datagres Technologies Inc., Mr. Fernander also served on its
board of directors. Mr. Fernander served as the CEO and a member of the board of directors of Gnodal Limited, a storage and computer
networking company, from 2012 until 2013 when it was acquired by Cray Inc. From 2007 until 2012, Mr. Fernander served on the board of directors
and as the CEO of Pivot3 Inc., a hyper converged storage and compute platform. Prior to serving at Pivot3, Mr. Fernander served as an executive
at several private startup companies. For over four years, Mr. Fernander served as a Vice President at Compaq Computer Corporation, a company
that developed, sold and supported computers and related products and services. For over nine years, Mr. Fernander also held several sales and
marketing leadership positions at Sun Microsystems, Inc., a company that sold computers, computer components, computer software and
information technology services.
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Barry L. Kasoff, age 58, is Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Kasoff has served on the Board of Directors of
the Company since May 22, 2015. Mr. Kasoff currently serves as the President of Realization Services, Inc. (RSI), a full-service management
consulting firm specializing in assisting companies and capital stakeholders in troubled business environments, and has served in such capacity
since founding RSI in 1997.
Gregory J. Bosler, age 54, is Senior Vice President and Group President, Consumer Storage and Accessories. Mr. Bosler will leave the
Company by the end of March 2016 when the legacy business wind down is substantially completed. From October 2010 to December 2015, he
was Senior Vice President of Global Business Management. From May 2010 to October 2010 he was Vice President, Americas, and from January
2009 to April 2010 he was Vice President, Americas Consumer. Prior to joining Imation in January 2009, he was with TTE Corporation, a global
consumer electronics manufacturer, where he held the position of Executive Vice President, North America Business Center from August 2004
until February 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Bosler held a series of senior sales and general management positions at Thomson Inc., Pioneer Electronics
(USA) and Duracell Inc.
Availability of SEC Reports
The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding issuers, including Imation Corp., that file electronically with the SEC. The public can obtain any documents that we file with
the SEC at www.sec.gov. We file annual reports, quarterly reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC under the Exchange Act.
The public may read and copy any materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
We also make available free of charge through our website (www.imation.com) our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and, if applicable, amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to the Exchange Act as soon
as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Our business faces many risks. Any of the risks discussed below, or elsewhere in this Form 10-K or our other SEC filings, could have a
material impact on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
We must make strategic decisions from time to time as to the products, technologies and businesses in which we invest and if
we focus on products, technologies or business that do not perform in line with our strategic expectations or if market conditions
change, our financial results could be adversely impacted. In February 2011 we announced our transformation strategy, which includes
improving gross margins, exiting low margin products, introducing new products in secure and scalable storage, and organic and inorganic growth.
In October 2012, we announced the acceleration of our transformation by reorganizing our businesses into two channel-focused business
segments, and increasing our focus on data storage and data security. In August 2015, we formed a Strategic Alternatives Committee of our
Board and, in October 2015, announced that the Strategic Alternatives Committee would work with management to make recommendations to the
Board regarding our use of excess capital. Specifically, the Strategic Alternatives Committee will examine acquisition opportunities and develop
initiatives for strategic value creation which may include opportunities outside of industries that comprised the Company's historical focus. If we
are not successful in implementing these strategies or if market conditions change adversely for our chosen products or technologies, our financial
results could be negatively impacted.
The future revenue growth of our business depends in part on the development and performance of our new products. We have
experienced revenue declines over the prior year in 2015, 2014 and 2013 of $200.3 million or 27.5 percent, $131.3 million or 15.3 percent and
$145.9 million or 14.5 percent, respectively. Historically, magnetic and optical products have provided the majority of our revenues. The overall
market for these products has been impacted by industry wide dynamics, including competing formats as well as continuing improvements in
compression and deduplication technologies and as such, we have decided to aggressively wind down our legacy business. If we are not
successful in growing new product revenues from our acquisitions of Nexsan and Connected Data, Inc., our financial results could be negatively
impacted.
Our participation in any future joint investment could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-making authority, our
reliance on a partner’s financial condition and disputes between us and our partners. We may in the future make acquisitions of partial
ownership interests in businesses or otherwise acquire businesses jointly or establish joint ventures with third parties. In such circumstances, we
may not be in a position to exercise significant decision-making authority regarding a target business, partnership or other entity if we do not own a
substantial majority of the equity interests of the target. These investments may involve risks not present were a third party not involved, including
the possibility that partners might become insolvent or fail to fund their shares of required capital contributions. In addition, partners may have
economic or other business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our business interests or goals, and may be in a position to take actions
contrary to our policies or objectives. Such partners, some of which may possess more industry or technical knowledge or have better access to
capital and other resources, may also seek similar acquisition targets as us and we may be in competition with them for such business
combination targets. Disputes between us and partners may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our costs and expenses and divert
a substantial amount of our management’s time and effort away from our business. Consequently, actions by, or disputes with, partners might
result in subjecting assets owned by the partnership to additional risk. We may also, in certain circumstances, be liable for the actions of our thirdparty partners. For example, in the future, we may agree to guarantee indebtedness incurred by a partnership or other entity. Such a guarantee
may be on a joint and several basis with our partner, in which case, we may be liable in the event such partner defaults on its guarantee obligation.
Future acquisitions or business opportunities could involve unknown risks that could harm our business and adversely affect
our financial condition. As part of our strategic plan to use excess capital, including through acquisitions, we may acquire interests in a number
of different businesses, some of which may be outside of industries that have comprised our historical focus. We have in the past, and may in the
future, acquire businesses or make acquisitions, directly or indirectly through our subsidiaries, that involve unknown risks, some of which will be
particular to the industry in which the business or acquisition targets operate, including risks in industries with which we are not familiar or
experienced. Although we intend to conduct extensive business, financial and legal due diligence in connection with the evaluation of future
business or acquisition opportunities, there can be no assurance our due diligence investigations will identify every matter that could have a
material adverse effect on us. We may be unable to adequately address the financial, legal and operational risks raised by such businesses or
acquisitions, especially if we are unfamiliar with the relevant industry. The realization of any unknown risks could expose us to unanticipated costs
and liabilities and prevent or limit us from realizing the projected benefits of the businesses or acquisitions, which could adversely affect our
financial condition and
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liquidity. In addition, our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely impacted depending on the specific risks applicable to any
business or company we acquire and our ability to address those risks.
We could consume resources in researching acquisitions, business opportunities or financings and capital market transactions
that are not ultimately consummated, which could materially adversely affect our financial condition and subsequent attempts to locate
and acquire or invest in another business. We anticipate that the investigation of each specific acquisition or business opportunity and the
negotiation, drafting, and execution of relevant agreements, disclosure documents, and other instruments with respect to such transaction will
require substantial management time and attention and substantial costs for financial advisors, accountants, attorneys and other advisors. If a
decision is made not to consummate a specific acquisition, business opportunity or financing and capital market transaction, the costs incurred up
to that point for the proposed transaction likely would not be recoverable. Furthermore, even if an agreement is reached relating to a specific
acquisition, investment target or financing, we may fail to consummate the investment or acquisition for any number of reasons, including those
beyond our control. Any such event could consume significant management time and result in a loss to us of the related costs incurred, which
could adversely affect our financial position and our ability to consummate other acquisitions and investments.
We may engage in business combinations that are dilutive to existing shareholders, result in unanticipated accounting charges
or otherwise harm our results of operations, and result in difficulties in assimilating and integrating the operations, personnel,
technologies, products and information systems of acquired companies or businesses. We use financial assumptions and forecasts to
determine the negotiated price we are willing to pay for an acquisition. If those financial assumptions and/or forecasts are not accurate, the price
we pay may be too high, resulting in an inefficient use of cash and future goodwill impairment.
No assurance can be given that our previous or future acquisitions will be successful and will not materially adversely affect our
business, operating results, or financial condition. Failure to manage and successfully integrate acquired businesses could materially harm
our business and operating results. Even when an acquired company has already developed and marketed products, there can be no assurance
that such products will be successful after the closing and will not cannibalize sales of our existing products, that product enhancements will be
made in a timely fashion or that pre-acquisition due diligence will have identified all possible issues that might arise with respect to such company.
Failed business combinations, or the efforts to create a business combination, can also result in litigation.
Acquisitions may require capital infusions, typically entail many risks and could result in difficulties in assimilating and
integrating the operations, personnel, technologies, products and information systems of acquired companies. We may experience delays
in the timing and successful integration of acquired technologies and product development, unanticipated costs and expenditures, changing
relationships with customers, suppliers and strategic partners, or contractual, intellectual property or employment issues. In addition, key
personnel of an acquired company may decide not to work for us. The acquisition of another company or its products and technologies may also
result in our entering into a business market in which we have little or no prior experience. These challenges could disrupt our ongoing business,
distract our management and employees, harm our reputation, subject us to an increased risk of intellectual property and other litigation and
increase our expenses. These challenges are magnified as the size of the acquisition increases, and we cannot ensure that we will realize the
intended benefits of any acquisition. Acquisitions may require large one-time charges and can result in contingent liabilities, adverse tax
consequences, substantial depreciation or deferred compensation charges, amortization of identifiable purchased intangible assets or impairment
of goodwill, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Because of the rapid technology changes in our industry, we may not be able to compete if we cannot quickly develop, source,
introduce and deliver differentiated and innovative products. We operate in a highly competitive environment against competitors who are both
larger and smaller than us in terms of resources and market share. Our industry is characterized by rapid technological change and new product
introductions. In these highly competitive and changing markets, our success will depend, to a significant extent, on our ability to continue to
develop and introduce differentiated and innovative products cost-effectively and on a timely basis. The success of our offerings is dependent on
several factors including our differentiation from competitive offerings, timing of new product introductions, effectiveness of marketing programs
and maintaining low sourcing and supply chain costs. No assurance can be given with regard to our ability to anticipate and react to changes in
market requirements, actions of competitors or the pace and direction of technology changes.
We may be dependent on third parties for new product introductions or technologies in order to introduce our own new
products. We are dependent in some cases upon various third parties for the introduction and acceptance of new products, the timing of which is
not entirely in our control. In addition, there can be no
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assurance that we will maintain existing relationships or forge new OEM relationships. There can also be no assurance that we will continue to
have access to proprietary technologies through internal development and licensing arrangements with third parties, or that we will continue to
have access to new competitive technologies that may be required to introduce new products. If we are not successful in obtaining rights to use
competitive technologies, we may become less competitive in certain markets.
If we do not successfully implement restructuring plans and realize the benefits expected from the restructuring, our financial
results will be affected. From time to time we have initiated restructuring programs related to our business strategy to, among other things,
reduce operating expenses and address product line rationalization and infrastructure. We may not be able to realize the expected benefits and
cost savings if we do not successfully implement these plans. If we are unable to restructure our operations successfully as needed, or on a
timely basis, our expectations of future results of operations, including certain cost savings expected to result from the restructuring, may not be
met. If difficulties are encountered or such cost savings are otherwise not realized, it could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
Our international operations subject us to economic risks including risk of foreign currency fluctuations and negative or
uncertain global or regional economic conditions any of which could adversely affect our business and operating results. We conduct our
business on a global basis, with approximately 61 percent of our 2015 revenue derived from operations outside of the United States. Our
international operations may be subject to various risks which are not present in domestic operations, including political and economic instability,
terrorist activity, the possibility of expropriation, trade tariffs or embargoes, unfavorable tax laws, restrictions on royalties, dividend and currency
remittances, changes in foreign laws and regulations, requirements for governmental approvals for new ventures and local participation in
operations such as local equity ownership and workers' councils. In addition, our business and financial results are affected by fluctuations in world
financial markets. Changes in local and regional economic conditions, including fluctuations in exchange rates, may affect product demand in our
non-U.S. operations and export markets. Additionally, some of our international suppliers pay us quarterly or annual rebates based on the amount
of purchases we make from them. If negative conditions in the global credit markets prevent our customers' access to credit, product orders in
these channels may decrease, which could result in lower revenue. Likewise, our suppliers may face challenges in obtaining credit, in selling their
products or otherwise in operating their businesses. Foreign currency fluctuations can also affect reported profits of our non-U.S. operations where
transactions are generally denominated in local currencies. A recession in any of the regions we serve might affect product demand and cause
fluctuations in exchange rates. In addition, currency fluctuations may affect the prices we pay suppliers for materials used in our products. Our
financial statements are denominated in U.S. dollars. Accordingly, fluctuations in exchange rates, including exchange rate volatility in the Euro and
the Japanese Yen, may give rise to translation gains or losses when financial statements of non-U.S. operating units are translated into U.S.
dollars. Given that the majority of our revenues are non-U.S. based, a strengthening of the U.S. dollar against other major foreign currencies could
adversely affect our results of operations. While these factors or the impact of these factors are difficult to predict, any one or more of them could
adversely affect our business, financial condition or operating results.
We use third-party contract manufacturing services and supplier-provided parts, components, and sub-systems in our
businesses and significant shortages, supplier capacity constraints, supplier production disruptions or price increases could increase
our operating costs and adversely impact the competitive positions of our products. Our reliance on suppliers and third-party contract
manufacturing to secure raw materials, parts and components used in our products exposes us to volatility in the price and availability of these
materials. In some instances, we depend upon a single source of supply, manufacturing or assembly or participate in commodity markets that
may be subject to allocations by suppliers. A disruption in deliveries from our suppliers or third-party contract manufacturers, supplier capacity
constraints, supplier and third-party contract manufacturer production disruptions, price increases or decreased availability of raw materials or
commodities could have an adverse effect on our ability to meet our commitments to customers or increase our operating costs. Additionally, we
may experience changes in the supply and cost of raw materials and key components of our products resulting from the effects of natural
disasters. We believe that our supply management and production practices are based on an appropriate balancing of the foreseeable risks and
the costs of alternative practices. No assurances can be given that acceptable cost levels will continue in the future. In addition, some critical raw
materials and key components have a limited number of suppliers. If we cannot obtain those raw materials or critical components from the
suppliers, we will not be able to produce certain products.
Any potential acquisition or investment in a foreign business or a company with significant foreign operations may subject us to
additional risks. Acquisitions or investments by us in a foreign business or other companies with significant foreign operations subject us to risks
inherent in business operations outside of the United States. These risks include, for example, currency fluctuations, complex foreign regulatory
regimes, punitive
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tariffs, unstable local tax policies, trade embargoes, risks related to shipment of raw materials and finished goods across national borders,
restrictions on the movement of funds across national borders and cultural and language differences. If realized, some of these risks may have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and liquidity.
We may incur asset impairment charges for intangible assets and goodwill in the future. We evaluate assets on our balance sheet,
including such intangible assets and goodwill, annually as of November 30th or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. We monitor factors or indicators, such as unfavorable variances from forecasted cash flows, established
business plans or volatility inherent to external markets and industries that would require an impairment test. The test for impairment of intangible
assets requires a comparison of the carrying value of the asset or asset group with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows. If the carrying
value of the asset or asset group is considered impaired, an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset
or asset group exceeds its fair value. The test for impairment of goodwill requires a comparison of the carrying value of the reporting unit for which
goodwill is assigned with the fair value of the reporting unit calculated based on discounted future cash flows. If the carrying value of the reporting
unit is greater than the fair value a second step is performed to calculate any impairment.
Our security products must provide appropriate levels of security to adequately store and protect our customers' data. Many of
our secure storage products include software and hardware security such as user authentication, data encryption, and portable digital identities
which are designed to prevent digital security breaches. Third parties may attempt to hack into our products in order to, among other things,
compromise the integrity of those products or obtain confidential information. If our products do not provide adequate security and that security is
compromised, we could lose existing customers, have difficulty attracting new customers, experience increases in operating expenses, become
subject to litigation and loss of reputation or suffer other adverse consequences. There can be no assurance that our efforts to upgrade the
security of our products or develop new products to keep pace with continuing changes in technology will be successful or that product issues will
not arise in the future. Any significant breakdown, intrusion, interruption, corruption or destruction of our secure storage products could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results.
The loss of a major customer, partner, or reseller would adversely affect us. Our future sales are dependent on the success of our
customers, partners, and resellers, some of which operate in businesses associated with rapid technological change and consequent product
obsolescence. We depend on the sales of our major customers, partners, and resellers and any material delay, cancellation or reduction of orders
from these groups would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Developments adverse to our major customers, partners, and
resellers or their products, or the failure of these groups to pay for components or services, would also have an adverse effect on us.
Changes in European law or practice related to the imposition or collectability of optical levies could adversely affect us. Many
European countries impose levies on imports of optical products and other products to compensate copyright owners for legal private copying.
Imation is involved in litigation in several of those countries related to its obligation to pay levies on sales of our products to commercial channel
customers. Based on current European law, we no longer pay levies on commercial channel sales. Because we have previously paid levies on
such sales, we have offset certain levies payable on sales in the consumer channel with amounts previously overpaid with respect to commercial
channel sales. If a court were to rule against us on this issue, we may be required to pay all, or a portion of, our unpaid levies to the collecting
societies. In addition, any reduction in the current levy rates applicable to consumer channel sales could reduce our ability to offset for past
overpayments on commercial channel sales. Other changes in levy rates or structures could impact our ability to compete in certain markets or
otherwise reduce our profitability.
In a volatile global economic environment, demand and seasonality may result in our inability to accurately forecast our product
purchase requirements. Sales of some of our products are subject to seasonality. For example, sales have typically increased in the fourth
quarter of each fiscal year, sometimes followed by significant declines in the first quarter of the following fiscal year. This seasonality makes it
more difficult for us to forecast our business, especially in the volatile current global economic environment and its corresponding change in
consumer confidence, which may impact typical seasonal trends. If our forecasts are inaccurate, we may lose market share due to product
shortages or procure excess inventory or inappropriately increase or decrease our operating expenses, any of which could harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations. This seasonality also may lead to the need for working capital investments in receivables and
inventory and our need to build inventory levels in advance of our most active selling seasons. The seasonality of our products could change as a
result of our acquisitions and divestitures.
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Significant changes in discount rates, rates of return on pension assets, mortality tables and other factors could affect our future
earnings, equity and pension funding requirements. Pension obligations and related costs are determined using actual investment results as
well as actuarial valuations that involve several assumptions. Our funding requirements are based on these assumptions in addition to the
performance of assets in the pension plans. The most critical assumptions are the discount rate, the long-term expected return on assets and
mortality. Some of these assumptions, such as the discount rate, are largely outside of our control. Changes in these assumptions could affect
our future earnings, equity and funding requirements.
Our results of operations include our determinations of the amount of taxes owed in the various tax jurisdictions in which we
operate and are subject to changes in tax laws and regulations, and to inspection by various tax authorities. Changes in tax guidance and
related interpretations as well as inspections by tax authorities could materially impact our tax receivables and payables and our deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities. Additionally, in the ordinary course of business we are subject to examinations by tax authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Investigations launched in the future by governmental authorities in various jurisdictions and existing investigations could be
expanded. While we believe we have adopted appropriate risk management and compliance programs to address and reduce these risks, the
global and diverse nature of our operations means that these risks will continue to exist and additional issues will arise from time to time. Our
results may be affected by the outcome of such proceedings and other contingencies that cannot be predicted with certainty.
Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain and protect our intellectual property rights and to defend ourselves against
intellectual property infringement claims of others. Claims may arise from time to time alleging that we infringe on the intellectual property
rights of others. If we are not successful in defending ourselves against those claims, we could incur substantial costs in implementing
remediation actions, such as redesigning our products or processes, paying for license rights or paying to settle disputes. The related costs or the
disruption to our operations could have a material adverse effect on our results.
In addition, we utilize valuable non-patented technical know-how and trade secrets in our product development. There can be no assurance
that confidentiality agreements and other measures we utilize to protect such proprietary information will be effective, that these agreements will
not be breached or that our competitors will not acquire the information as a result of or through independent development. We enforce our
intellectual property rights against others who infringe those rights.
Additionally, our audio and data storage product categories are subject to allegations of patent infringement by our competitors as well as
by non-practicing entities (NPEs), sometimes referred to as “patent trolls,” who may seek monetary settlements from us.
Significant litigation matters could result in large costs. We are subject to various pending or threatened legal actions in the ordinary
course of our business, especially regarding patents related to our audio and data storage products. We are often indemnified by our suppliers;
litigation, however, is always subject to many uncertainties and outcomes that are not predictable. We use legal and appropriate means to contest
litigation threatened or filed against us, but we have found there is a strong tendency toward litigation in the patent area in our industry and this
litigation environment poses a business risk. We cannot ascertain the ultimate aggregate amount of any monetary liability or financial impact that
may be incurred by us in litigation.
Changes in the capital and credit markets may negatively affect our ability to access financing. Without such financing we may
be unable to achieve our objectives for strategic acquisitions and internal growth. Disruption of the global financial and credit markets may
have an effect on our long-term liquidity and financial condition. While we have been able to achieve our past acquisitions through operating cash
flows and without permanently borrowing on our outstanding credit facilities, the need may arise to obtain additional funding, in particular as we
focus on exploring acquisition opportunities as part of our strategic plan to use excess capital. Based on our current plan of operations we believe
our cash will be sufficient to meet our anticipated operating expenses, capital expenditures and debt service obligations for at least the next twelve
months; however there is no assurance that circumstances will not change, or that we may require additional capital to fund acquisitions or the
operating expenses of acquired businesses.
If we are unable to attract and retain employees and key talent our business and financial results may be materially impacted. We
operate in a highly competitive market for employees with specialized skill, experience and industry knowledge. No assurance can be given that
we will be able to attract and retain employees and key talent. A failure to attract and retain key personnel could also have a material adverse
impact on our business.
Changing laws and regulations have resulted in increased compliance costs for us, which could affect our operating results.
Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and
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public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, regulations
regarding conflict minerals and newly enacted SEC regulations have created additional compliance requirements. We are committed to maintaining
high standards of internal controls over financial reporting, corporate governance and public disclosure. As a result, we intend to continue to invest
appropriate resources as necessary to comply with evolving standards which may result in increased expenses. Laws enacted that directly or
indirectly affect the production, distribution, packaging, cost of raw materials and fuel could impact our business and financial results.
We rely on our aging information systems to conduct our business, and failure to protect these systems against security
breaches could adversely affect our business and results of operations. Additionally, if these systems fail or become unavailable for any
significant period of time, our business could be harmed. The efficient operation of our business is dependent on computer hardware and
software systems. Information systems are vulnerable to security breach by computer hackers and cyber terrorists. We rely on industry accepted
security measures and technology to securely maintain confidential and proprietary information maintained on our information systems. However,
these measures and technology may not adequately prevent security breaches. In addition, the unavailability of the information systems or failure
of these systems to perform as anticipated for any reason could disrupt our business and could result in decreased performance and increased
overhead costs, causing our business and results of operations to suffer. Any interruption or failure of our information systems or any breach of
security could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
The announcement of our review of strategic alternatives and our strategic plan to explore acquisition opportunities could
adversely affect our business, financial results and operations, and there can be no assurance that any transaction will result from this
review or plan. In August 2015, we formed a Strategic Alternatives Committee of our Board and, in October 2015, announced that the Strategic
Alternatives Committee would work with management to make recommendations to the Board regarding our use of excess capital. Specifically,
the Strategic Alternatives Committee will examine acquisition opportunities and develop initiatives for strategic value creation which may include
opportunities outside of industries that comprise the Company's historical focus. There can be no assurance that our strategic plan will result in
any transaction or any change to our overall structure or our business model, or that any transaction or change will enhance shareholder value or
the value of any of our business units. Any transaction that is identified and pursued would be dependent on factors that may be beyond our
control, including, among others, global economic conditions, the market environment, the possible requirement for shareholder approval of the
transaction, the interest of third parties in the Company or our businesses and the availability of financing on reasonable terms or at all. We do not
intend to provide updates or make any comments regarding the evaluation of strategic alternatives unless our Board of Directors has approved a
specific transaction or management otherwise deems disclosure appropriate. We expect to incur expenses associated with identifying and
evaluating strategic alternatives. In addition, the process of reviewing strategic alternatives and implementing any course of action ultimately
selected may be disruptive to the Company’s business operations, may distract the Company’s management team from their day-to-day
responsibilities and could make it more difficult to retain customers, vendors and employees. Any of these risks or uncertainties could adversely
affect the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
The Company may face risks associated with the transition of its Board of Directors. Shareholders elected three new directors to the
Company's Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 20, 2015, replacing three incumbent directors who had been
nominated by the Company for reelection. Thereafter, the remaining directors resigned and four new individuals were appointed to the Board of
Directors. Following this change, many aspects of the Company's strategies, structure and operating practices have been and will continue to be
under review by the Board of Directors and will be subject to change. There can be no assurance that any changes on strategies, structure or
operating practices resulting from this review will be successfully implemented or result in an increase in the Company's stock price.
The market price of our common stock is volatile. The market price of our common stock has been, and may continue to be, volatile.
Any of the factors discussed above or such as the following may affect the market price of our common stock:
•

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

•

announcements of technological innovations by us or our competitors which may decrease the volume and profitability of sales of
our existing products and increase the risk of inventory obsolescence;

•

new products introduced by us or our competitors;
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•

periods of severe pricing pressures due to oversupply or price erosion resulting from competitive pressures or industry
consolidation;

•

developments with respect to patents or proprietary rights;

•

conditions and trends in the consumer electronics and data storage industries;

•

contraction in our operating results or growth rates;

•

the potential impact of activist investors;

•

changes in financial estimates by securities analysts relating specifically to us or the industries in which we participate in general;
and

•

macroeconomic conditions that affect the market generally.

In addition, general economic conditions may cause the stock market to experience extreme price and volume fluctuations from time to
time that particularly affect the stock prices of many high technology companies. These fluctuations often appear to be unrelated to the operating
performance of the companies.
If we cannot meet the continued listing requirements of the NYSE, the NYSE may delist our common shares, which would have
an adverse impact on the trading volume, liquidity and market price of our common shares.
On February 2, 2016, the Company received written notice (the “Notice”) from NYSE Regulation, Inc. that the Company fell below the
continued listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). The Notice indicated that the Company was not in compliance with Section
802.01B of the NYSE Listed Company Manual because its average global market capitalization over a consecutive 30 trading-day period was less
than $50 million, and its stockholders’ equity was less than $50 million. The Company has already notified the NYSE that, in accordance with
applicable NYSE rules, it intends to submit a plan within 45 days from the Company’s receipt of the Notice to cure the deficiency and return to
compliance with NYSE continued listing requirements. The plan will advise the NYSE of definitive action the Company has taken, or is taking, that
would bring it into conformity with market capitalization listing standards within 18 months of receipt of the Notice. The NYSE will review the plan
and, within 45 days of its receipt, determine whether the Company has made a reasonable demonstration of an ability to conform to the relevant
standards in the 18 month period. If the NYSE accepts the plan, the Company’s common stock will continue to be listed and traded on the NYSE
during the 18 month cure period, subject to the Company’s compliance with other continued listing standards, and the Company will be subject to
quarterly monitoring by the NYSE for compliance with the plan. If the NYSE does not accept the plan, the Company’s common stock would be
subject to suspension and delisting proceedings.
On February 16th, 2016, we received a letter from the NYSE notifying us that, for 30 consecutive trading days, the average closing price
for our common shares was below the minimum $1.00 per share requirement for continued listing on the NYSE under Item 802.01C of the NYSE’s
Listed Company Manual. The notice does not have an immediate effect on the listing of our common shares, and our common shares will continue
to trade on the NYSE under the symbol “IMN.” It is also standard for the NYSE to automatically de-list any stock that has any trade (even intraday) below $0.15 per share. As of February 29, 2016, our common shares closed at a price of $0.861 per share. We have 180 days, or until
August 14, 2016, to regain compliance with the NYSE’s $1.00 minimum share price requirement. We can regain compliance at any time during the
six-month cure period if on the last trading day of any calendar month during the cure period our common shares have a closing share price of at
least $1.00 and an average closing share price of at least $1.00 over the 30 trading-day period ending on the last trading day of such month.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if we determine that we must cure the price condition by taking an action that will require approval of our
shareholders, we may also regain compliance by: (i) obtaining the requisite shareholder approval by no later than our next annual meeting, (ii)
implementing the action promptly thereafter and (iii) the price of our common shares promptly exceeding $1.00 per share, and the price remaining
above that level for at least the following 30 trading days.
A delisting of our common shares from the NYSE would negatively impact us because it would: (i) reduce the liquidity and market price of
our common shares; (ii) reduce the number of investors willing to hold or acquire our common shares, which could negatively impact our ability to
raise equity financing; (iii) limit our ability to use a registration statement to offer and sell freely tradeable securities, thereby preventing us from
accessing the public capital markets, and (iv) impair our ability to provide equity incentives to our employees.
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The success of our strategic alternatives business strategy is dependent in part on our ability to attract and retain talented
personnel. As we explore strategic alternatives to deploy our excess capital, the success of our business strategy will depend in part on

the abilities and expertise of our management and other personnel in interpreting and responding to economic, market and other
conditions and data in order to, among other things, locate and adopt appropriate opportunities and acquire, monitor and divest
businesses and investments. The loss of, or inability to attract, talented individuals to execute our strategic alternatives business strategy
could adversely impact our business and results of operations.
The implementation of a new accounting system for most of our subsidiaries could interfere with our business and operations.
We are in the process of implementing a new accounting system, NetSuite, for all of our subsidiaries except for Nexsan. The
implementation of new systems and enhancements may be disruptive to our business and can be time-consuming and divert
management’s attention. Any disruptions relating to our systems or any problems with the implementation, particularly any disruptions
impacting our operations or our ability to accurately report our financial performance on a timely basis during the implementation
period, could materially and adversely affect our business and operations.
Decreasing revenues and greater losses in our Nexsan product line may have a material and adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and capital resources. For the last three fiscal years the revenues attributable to the Nexsan product line have

declined and losses have been significant. As Nexsan is expected to be our go forward business, any further material declines in
revenues or increased losses could have a material and adverse effect on our business and results of operations. If we are unable to
grow revenue, increase profit margins or cut costs, our capital resources may be negatively impacted.
Clinton Group’s investment of some of our excess cash may not be successful and may result in losses. Our recent entry into a
subscription agreement with Clinton Group for which they will manage $20 million of our excess cash for investment in Clinton
Lighthouse Equities Strategy Fund (Offshore) Ltd. may not produce positive returns and may result in losses. Clinton Group’s
investment strategies can perform poorly for a number of reasons, including general market conditions, investment decisions that are
made and the performance of the companies and securities in which it invests on our behalf. In addition, volatility may lead to underperformance which could adversely affect our results of operations.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.
Our worldwide headquarters is located in Oakdale, Minnesota, in the United States of America. On January 4, 2016, the Company sold its
Oakdale, Minnesota facility. See Note 18 - Subsequent Events for further information on the sale. Our principal facilities, and the functions at such
facilities, are listed below for each reporting segment. Our facilities are in good operating condition suitable for their respective uses and are
adequate for our current needs.
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Segment(s)
Using Space

Facility

Function

Oakdale, Minnesota (owned) (1)
Thousand Oaks, California (leased)
Campbell, California (leased)
Hoofddorp, Netherlands (leased)

Sales/Administrative/Laboratory facility/Corporate headquarters
Sales/Assembly
Sales/Distribution center
Sales/Administrative/European regional headquarters

Tokyo, Japan (leased)

Sales/Administrative/ Japan headquarters

Kings Park, Australia (leased)

Sales/Administrative/Distribution center/Asia Pacific regional headquarters

Montreal, Canada (leased)
Panama City, Panama (leased)

Sales/Research & development
Sales/Administrative/Latin America regional headquarters

Derby, United Kingdom (leased)

Sales/Assembly

(1)

All
Nexsan
IronKey
Storage Media
and Accessories
Storage Media
and Accessories
Storage Media
and Accessories
Nexsan
Storage Media
and Accessories
Nexsan

On January 4, 2016, the Company sold its Oakdale, Minnesota facility. See Note 18 - Subsequent Events for further information on the sale.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
In the normal course of business, we periodically enter into agreements that incorporate general indemnification language. Performance under
these indemnities would generally be triggered by a breach of terms of the contract or by a supportable third-party claim. There have historically
been no material losses related to such indemnifications. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, we record a liability in our Consolidated Financial Statements for these actions when a loss is known or considered probable and the
amount can be reasonably estimated.
We are the subject of various pending or threatened legal actions in the ordinary course of our business. All such matters are subject to many
uncertainties and outcomes that are not predictable with assurance. Additionally, our businesses are subject to allegations of patent infringement
by our competitors as well as by non-practicing entities (NPEs), sometimes referred to as “patent trolls,” who may seek monetary settlements from
us, our competitors, suppliers and resellers. Consequently, as of December 31, 2015, we are unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate aggregate
amount of any monetary liability or financial impact that we may incur with respect to these matters. It is reasonably possible that the ultimate
resolution of these matters could materially affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
On May 22, 2013, Imation was sued in U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware by five entities: One-Blue, LLC (One-Blue), which is an
entity with licensing authority for a pool of patents relating to Blu-ray discs, and four members of One-Blue, Koninklijke Philips N.V., Panasonic
Corporation, Pioneer Corporation and Sony Corporation. The plaintiffs alleged that Imation's sales of certain Blu-ray discs infringed six patents and
sought unspecified damages, treble damages, and attorney's fees. The parties entered into a Settlement Agreement covering these U.S. patent
claims for a nominal amount, and effective November 12, 2015, these claims were dismissed.
SpearPoint Capital Fund LP et al. v. Mark E. Lucas, et al. This shareholder derivative action was filed in Delaware Chancery Court on
February 9, 2015. It names as defendants the Company and the members of its Board of Directors. Plaintiffs contend that the defendants paid
excessive compensation to the directors. They seek
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damages for breaches of fiduciary duties, waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment. They also seek corporate governance reforms related
to the Company’s compensation practices. The Directors have responded to the complaint denying all the allegations; the Company, as the
nominal defendant has responded denying the allegations as well. The parties are now engaged in discovery. Trial, should it be necessary, has
been scheduled for June 2016.
Copyright Levies
In many European Union (EU) member countries, the sale of recordable optical media is subject to a private copyright levy. The levies are
intended to compensate copyright holders with "fair compensation" for the harm caused by private copies made by natural persons of protected
works under the European Copyright Directive, which became effective in 2002 (Directive). Levies are generally charged directly to the importer of
the product upon the sale of the products. Payers of levies remit levy payments to collecting societies which, in turn, are expected to distribute
funds to copyright holders. Levy systems of EU member countries must comply with the Directive, but individual member countries are
responsible for administering their own systems. Since implementation, the levy systems have been the subject of numerous litigation and law
making activities. On October 21, 2010, the Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU) ruled that fair compensation is an autonomous
European law concept that was introduced by the Directive and must be uniformly applied in all EU member states. The CJEU stated that fair
compensation must be calculated based on the harm caused to the authors of protected works by private copying. The CJEU ruling made clear
that copyright holders are only entitled to fair compensation payments (funded by levy payments made by importers of applicable products,
including the Company) when sales of optical media are made to natural persons presumed to be making private copies. Within this disclosure, we
use the term "commercial channel sales" when referring to products intended for uses other than private copying and "consumer channel sales"
when referring to products intended for uses including private copying.
Since the Directive was implemented in 2002, we estimate that we have paid in excess of $100 million in levies to various ongoing collecting
societies related to commercial channel sales. Based on the CJEU's October 2010 ruling and subsequent litigation and law making activities, we
believe that these payments were not consistent with the Directive and should not have been paid to the various collecting societies. Accordingly,
subsequent to the October 21, 2010 CJEU ruling, we began withholding levy payments to the various collecting societies and, in 2011, we
reversed our existing accruals for unpaid levies related to commercial channel sales. However, we continued to accrue, but not pay, a liability for
levies arising from consumer channel sales, in all applicable jurisdictions except Italy and France due to court rulings that are discussed below. As
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had accrued liabilities of $5.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, associated with levies related to
consumer channel sales for which we are withholding payment.
Since the October 2010 CJEU ruling, we evaluate quarterly on a country-by-country basis whether (i) levies should be accrued on current
period commercial and/or consumer channel sales; and (ii) accrued, but unpaid, copyright levies on prior period consumer channel sales should be
reversed. Our evaluation is made on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis and considers ongoing and cumulative developments related to levy
litigation and law making activities within each jurisdiction as well as throughout the EU. However, we continued to accrue, but not pay, a liability
for levies arising from consumer channel sales, in all applicable jurisdictions except Italy and France due to court rulings. In 2015, we reversed
$3.8 million of copyright levies as a reduction of cost of sales. We did not reverse any amounts into cost of goods sold for prior year obligations in
2014. In 2013, we reversed $23.1 million of copyright levies as a reduction of cost of sales. See the following for discussion of reversals of
copyright levies in 2015 and 2013.
Italy. During the second quarter of 2013, an Italian court rendered a decision associated with a copyright levy matter to which Imation was not
a party. This decision (i) confirmed and provided further specificity to the October 21, 2010 ruling of the CJEU that levies should not be paid on
commercial channel sales and (ii) evaluated, via audit, the plaintiff's documentation and evidence for distinguishing between levies paid on
commercial and consumer channel sales. During the second quarter of 2013, Imation reversed $13.6 million of Italian copyright levies (existing at
the time of a 2013 Italian court decision) that arouse from consumer channel sales that had been accrued but not paid to cost of sales. Based on
the ruling of this Italian court, in combination with other applicable levy and law-making activities within the EU, including Italy, we believed there
was sufficient evidence that we may offset the ongoing levy liability with the Italian collecting society for Imation's sales in the consumer channel
against the estimated $39.0 million we have overpaid for copyright levies in Italy (due to us paying levies on commercial channel sales prior to the
October 21, 2010 CJEU ruling). We continued this practice of offsetting until December 2015. In December 2015, we settled our claim for
reimbursement of the levies that Imation had paid for sales into
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its commercial channel with the Italian collecting society, S.I.A.E. The settlement was for $1.0 million and is recorded as a reduction in cost of
sales.
France. As the case in Italy, Imation has overpaid levies related to sales into its commercial channel in an amount of $55.1 million. Likewise,
Imation has been offsetting the ongoing levy liability with the French collecting society for Imation's sales in the consumer channel against the
estimated $55.1 million we have overpaid for copyright levies in France (due to paying levies on commercial channel sales prior to the October 21,
2010 CJEU ruling). During the fourth quarter of 2013, Imation reversed $9.5 million of French copyright levies (existing at the time of a 2013 French
court decision) that arouse from consumer channel sales that had been accrued but not paid to cost of sales. To date, Imation has offset
approximately $14.4 million.
We believe that we have utilized a methodology, and have sufficient documentation and evidence, to fully support our estimates that we have
overpaid $55.1 million to the French collection society of levies on commercial channel sales and that we have incurred (but not paid) $14.4 million
of levies on consumer channel sales in France. However, such amounts are currently subjected to challenge in court and there is no certainty that
our estimates would be upheld and supported. in December 2012, Imation filed a complaint against the French collecting society, Copie France, for
reimbursement of the $55.1 million in commercial channel levies that Imation had paid prior to October 2010. Copie France has counterclaimed for
all levies that Imation has not paid since October 2010. On December 8, 2015, there was a hearing in the Paris District Court. A ruling is expected
during the first quarter of 2016.
Other Jurisdictions. During the first quarter of 2015, Imation reversed $2.8 million accrual for German copyright levies on optical products as
the result of a favorable German court decision retroactively setting levy rates at a level much lower than the rates sought by the German
collecting society. The reversal was recorded as a reduction of cost of sales. At December 31, 2015, the recovery of some or all of the copyright
levies previously paid on commercial sales in EU jurisdictions other than Italy, France and Germany represents a gain contingency that has not
yet met the required criteria for recognition in our financial statements. There is no assurance that we will realize any of this gain contingency. We
also have an estimated $5.1 million of accrued but unpaid levies associated with consumer sales in EU jurisdictions other than Italy and France
that we continue to carry on our books.
We are subject to several pending or threatened legal actions by the individual European national levy collecting societies in relation to private
copyright levies under the Directive. Those actions generally seek payment of the commercial and consumer optical levies withheld by Imation.
Imation has corresponding claims in those actions seeking reimbursement of levies improperly collected by those collecting societies. We are
subject to threatened actions by certain customers of Imation seeking reimbursement of funds they allege relate to commercial levies that they
claim they should not have paid. Although these actions are subject to the uncertainties inherent in the litigation process, based on the information
presently available to us, management does not expect that the ultimate resolution of these actions will have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We anticipate that additional court decisions may be rendered in 2016 that may directly or
indirectly impact our levy exposure in specific European countries which could trigger a review of our levy exposure in those countries.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not Applicable.
PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
(a) — (b)
As of February 29, 2016, there were 37,267,442 shares of our common stock, $0.01 par value (common stock), outstanding and held by
17,892 shareholders of record. Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange under the symbol
“IMN.” No dividends were declared or paid during 2015 or 2014. Future dividend payments will depend on our earnings, capital requirements,
financial condition and other factors considered relevant by our Board of Directors.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
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There were no unregistered sales of equity securities in 2015 and 2014. Additionally, no unregistered securities were sold in 2015 or 2014.
Market for our Common Stock
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the intraday high and low sales prices of common stock as reported on the New York
Stock Exchange.
2015 Sales Prices
High

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$
$
$
$

2014 Sales Prices
Low

4.35
4.75
4.36
2.70

$
$
$
$

High

3.48
3.63
2.04
1.25

$
$
$
$

Low

6.60
6.04
3.73
4.16

$
$
$
$

4.31
3.22
2.69
2.80

(c)
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
(a)

Period

(b)

Total Number of Shares
Purchased

(c)

Average Price Paid per
Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

Maximum Number of
Shares that May Yet Be
Purchased Under the
Plan or Programs

October 1, 2015 - October 31, 2015
November 1, 2015 - November 30, 2015
December 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015

—
—
306

$

—
—
1.84

—
—
—

2,004,542
2,004,542
2,004,542

Total

306

$

1.84

—

2,004,542

(a) The purchases in this column were shares that were surrendered to Imation by participants in our stock-based compensation plans (the Plans)
to satisfy the tax obligations related to the vesting of restricted stock awards.
(b) The average price paid in this column related to shares that were surrendered to Imation by participants in the Plans to satisfy the tax
obligations related to the vesting of restricted stock awards.
(c) On May 3, 2012, the Company announced that on May 2, 2012 our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of 5 million
shares of common stock. The authorization has no expiration date.
See Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters for additional information
regarding the Company's equity compensation plan.
Stock Performance Graph
The graph and table below compare the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock for the last five fiscal years with the
cumulative total return of the ArcaEx Tech 100 Index (formerly known as the Pacific Stock Exchange High Technology Index) and the S&P Small
Cap 600 Index, over the same period. The graph and table assume the investment of $100 on December 31, 2010 in each of our common stock,
the S&P Small Cap 600 Index and the ArcaEx Tech 100 Index and reinvestment of all dividends.
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(Total Return Index)

12/31/2010

12/31/2011

12/31/2012

12/31/2013

12/31/2014

12/31/2015

Imation Corp.

$

100.00

55.58

45.30

47.24

36.76

13.29

S&P Small Cap 600 Index

$

100.00

98.75

113.38

158.11

167.17

159.82

ArcaEx Tech 100 Index

$

100.00

99.25

119.00

159.74

182.45

178.96

The stock performance graph shall not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the
Exchange Act or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, nor shall it be incorporated by reference into any past or future filing under the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent we specifically request that it be treated as soliciting material or specifically incorporate it
by reference into a filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.*
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenue
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Litigation (gain) settlement
Goodwill impairment
Intangible impairments
Restructuring and other
Operating loss
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per common share from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Net loss per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Total assets
Accounts payable
Long-term debt
Total liabilities
Total shareholders’ equity
Other Information:
Current ratio
Days sales outstanding(1)
Days of inventory supply (1)
Capital expenditures
Number of employees

$

$

$

529.2
101.3
137.8
19.2
—
36.1
37.6
47.9
(177.3)
(194.0)
—
(194.0)

$

729.5
138.4
174.7
18.8
—
35.4
—
13.6
(104.1)
(112.4)
(2.3)
(114.7)

$

860.8
188.7
181.6
18.4
(2.5)
—
—
11.3
(20.1)
(24.4)
(20.0)
(44.4)

$

1,006.7
189.3
191.1
20.4
—
23.3
251.8
21.1
(318.4)
(324.8)
(15.9)
(340.7)

$

1,166.6
205.4
182.4
18.3
2.0
1.6
—
21.5
(20.4)
(35.2)
(11.5)
(46.7)

(4.84)
(4.84)

(2.74)
(2.74)

(0.60)
(0.60)

(8.67)
(8.67)

(0.93)
(0.93)

(4.84)
(4.84)

(2.80)
(2.80)

(1.10)
(1.10)

(9.09)
(9.09)

(1.24)
(1.24)

70.4
25.4
10.5
4.6
4.2
168.4
44.3
—
144.0
24.4
1.4
32
132
3.0
600

$

$

114.6
134.4
57.7
45.0
57.9
499.2
95.5
—
258.4
240.8
1.6
55
44
5.6
910

$

$

132.6
163.3
84.3
51.6
68.6
641.8
94.7
—
268.6
373.2
1.9
56
61
7.0
940

$

$

108.7
220.8
166.0
58.9
81.9
793.5
162.7
—
393.1
400.4
1.6
59
89
10.2
1,230

$

$

223.1
234.9
208.8
55.4
321.7
1,149.3
205.2
—
425.6
723.7
2.0
58
85
7.3
1,130

_______________________________________

* See Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for additional information regarding the
financial information presented in this table.
(1)

These operational measures, which we regularly use, are provided to assist in the investor’s further understanding of our operations. Days
sales outstanding is calculated using the count-back method, which calculates the number of days of most recent revenue that are
reflected in the net accounts receivable balance. Days of inventory supply is calculated using the current period inventory balance divided
by an estimate of the inventoriable portion of cost of goods sold expressed in days.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Imation Corp., a Delaware Corporation is a global data storage and data security company. With a 60-year history of technology leadership, the
Company's mission is to help organizations to create an integrated storage, private cloud, file sync and share enterprise solution. The Company
historically operated in three two focused business segments: Nexsan, IronKey and Storage Media and Accessories (the legacy businesses).
Going forward, we will focus on our Nexsan product lines. The Company is also exploring strategic alternatives to deploy its excess capital.
The following discussion is intended to be read in conjunction with Item 1. Business and our Consolidated Financial Statements and related
Notes that appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Imation's actual results could differ materially from those anticipated due to various factors discussed below under “Cautionary
Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and in Item 1A. Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
The financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are presented on a consolidated basis and include the accounts of the Company
and our subsidiaries. See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information regarding consolidation. References to “Imation,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” are to Imation Corp., and its subsidiaries and
consolidated entities unless the context indicates otherwise. Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
Overview
Imation was formed in 1996 from the spin-off of substantially all the businesses that comprised the data storage and imaging systems groups
of 3M Company. The Company has undertaken a series of strategic transformations to leverage Imation’s global footprint and deep roots in data
storage to become a leading player in data storage and security solutions.
In May 2015, through a proxy contest, shareholders elected three directors nominated by the Clinton Group, Inc. (“Clinton”) to the Imation
Board of Directors. These directors comprised half of the seats of the Imation board.
In August 2015, Imation formed a Strategic Alternatives Committee of its Board to develop initiatives for strategic value creation and to work
with management to make recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s use of excess capital.
On September 27, 2015, the Company adopted a restructuring plan which began the termination process of its legacy businesses including
commercial storage media (magnetic tape), consumer storage media (optical disc and flash drive) and audio and accessories. The plan also called
for the aggressive rationalization of Imation’s corporate overhead. The strategic shift resulted from continued losses due to secular declines in
Imation’s legacy businesses, and it aimed to reduce the cost structure and streamline the organization in light of these declines. The Company
expects that it will incur approximately $120 million in total charges for the restructuring plan excluding tax impact. The charges are mostly noncash, with cash charges expected to be approximately $35 million. The Company will complete the majority of the restructuring plan during the first
quarter of 2016, with most of the charges already incurred in the third and fourth quarters of 2015.
On October 14, 2015, Imation acquired substantially all of the equity of Connected Data, Inc. (CDI), an emerging enterprise-class, private
cloud sync and share company, in a transaction valued at $6.7 million. The acquisition of CDI augments Imation’s vision to deliver a
comprehensive and secure storage, backup and collaboration ecosystem.
During the third quarter of 2015, management and the Board of Directors evaluated the Nexsan business. As a result of this assessment, we
significantly revised our previous business strategy by narrowing our product portfolio and reducing the operating expenses associated with these
businesses.
On January 4, 2016, Imation completed the sale of its corporate headquarters facility in Oakdale, Minnesota, to Larson Family Real Estate
LLLP for a gross purchase price of $11.5 million, with net proceeds of approximately $11 million. As previously described in the Company’s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the Company classified its corporate headquarters facility as an asset held for sale. The Company
will keep a small team and its headquarters in Minnesota.
Also on January 4, 2016, the Company also sold its Memorex trademark and two associated trademark licenses to DPI Inc., a St. Louisbased branded consumer electronics company for $9.4 million.
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On February 2, 2016, the Company sold its IronKey business to Kingston Digital, Inc. and DataLocker Inc. in two asset purchase agreements.
To Kingston Digital, Inc., we sold the assets representing the Company’s business of developing, designing, manufacturing and selling IronKey
mobile security solutions. This includes Windows to Go USB flash drives, Windows to Go use cases and encrypted USB flash drives and external
USB hard drives. The sale specifically excluded the software and services aspect of the IronKey business. Kingston Digital, Inc. paid a purchase
price of $4.3 million at closing for certain assets, including inventory, and the Company retained accounts receivable and accounts payable
relating to that business. To DataLocker, Imation sold the assets of the Company’s business of software and services for its IronKey products,
including services related to Windows to Go USB flash drives. DataLocker paid a purchase price of $0.4 million at closing and agreed to assume
certain service obligations in the amount of approximately $2 million, as well as pay the Company earnouts in the event certain service revenue
targets are achieved.
Our current business segments were formed in 2015 to align with our go-forward and legacy operations. A description of our 2015 segments
follows directly below. Upon completion of Imation’s restructuring plan in 2016, there will be one operating business segment: Nexsan.
Nexsan Segment
This segment operates as its own product line. Our storage systems portfolio ranges from high volume, dense storage products to innovative
unified hybrid storage solutions for small and medium commercial businesses, enterprise and government customers.
This product line offers strong growth potential and is the main target of our investment spending. It consists of Imation Nexsan and
Connected Data products. There are more than 11,000 Nexsan customers worldwide with over 38,000 systems deployed since 1999. Imation’s
Nexsan portfolio features solid-state optimized unified hybrid storage systems, secure automated archive solutions and high-density enterprise
storage arrays. Our solutions are ideal for mission-critical IT applications such as virtualization, cloud, databases and collaborations and energy
efficient, high-density storage for backup and archiving. Nexsan systems are delivered through a worldwide network of cloud service providers,
value-added resellers (VARs) and solutions integrators. We offer global customers four main solution sets:
•
•
•
•

The NST® hybrid storage line (SAN & NAS), which addresses the high-growth hybrid storage market by combining solid state technology
with spinning disk for high performance and capacity;
The Nexsan E-Series disk arrays, which provide industry-leading storage density, reliability and power management to the block-based
storage market;
The Assureon® line, which delivers secure archive systems for data offload, compliance and secure cloud deployment; and
The Transporter line, which delivers private cloud sync and share services for connected workers in security and cost-sensitive work
environments. Transporter, which came from the CDI acquisition, is a secure, on-site alternative to Dropbox and provides mobile access,
file sync-and-share and global replication. Unlike Dropbox, Transporter enables an enterprise to create a private cloud. Transporter extends
existing file servers and NAS systems, is non-disruptive to current systems and processes and has a much higher capacity and
performance, while being significantly less expensive than public cloud storage.

This product family addresses growth segments of the data storage market. We have added sales, engineering resources and value-added
resellers around the world to build Nexsan’s presence in key geographies. Recently, we have rationalized the infrastructure to concentrate on the
strongest opportunities. Our targeted vertical markets include government, healthcare, and media and entertainment.
IronKey Segment
The IronKey portfolio, which was part of Imation in 2015 but was sold in early 2016, met the challenge of protecting today’s mobile workforce,
featuring secure USB solutions for data transport and mobile workspaces. The IronKey line includes the world’s leading hardware encrypted USB
drives, PC on a Stick® workspaces for Microsoft® Windows To Go®, and cloud-based or on-premises centralized secure device management
solutions.
Storage Media and Accessories (Legacy Business) Business Segment
The Storage Media and Accessories business segment distributes differentiated products through retail and commercial channels across the
globe. Storage Media and Accessories consist of the Commercial Storage Media, Consumer Storage Media and Audio and Accessories product
categories. This business continues to be impacted by lower revenues from the expected secular declines in magnetic tape and optical media
products. Due to the
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declines in the business, in 2015, we adopted a restructuring plan in which the Company will terminate sales and operations of this legacy
business. The strategic shift of winding down the legacy business is still in process and is expected to be complete in 2016. Our strategy is to
maximize cash flows, extract working capital from this business and manage our cost structure efficiently as the business winds down.
Commercial Storage Media
Our magnetic tape media products are used for business and operational continuity planning, disaster recovery, data backup, near-line data
storage and retrieval, and for cost-effective mass and archival storage. Our magnetic tape revenues decreased consistent with the overall market,
and we are in the process of terminating this business.
Consumer Storage Media
Our Consumer Storage Media product line includes optical products, USB flash drives, flash cards and external hard disk drives. Imation’s
optical products consist of DVDs, CDs and Blu-ray™ recordable media. Our strategy is to maximize cash flows, extract working capital from this
business and manage our cost structure efficiently as the business winds down. We marketed our optical media brands, as well as USB flash
drives, flash cards and external hard disk drives, under our Imation, Memorex and TDK Life on Record brands. We sourced these products from
manufacturers primarily in Asia and sold them through a variety of retail and commercial distribution channels globally.
Executive Summary
Consolidated Results of Operations for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2015
•

Revenue of $529.2 million in 2015 was down 27.5 percent compared with revenue of $729.5 million in 2014 driven by secular declines in
our optical and tape products, business divestitures, the announcement to terminate our legacy business and currency impacts. Revenue
for 2015 compared to 2014 was negatively impacted by 5.9 percent due to foreign currency impacts.

•

Gross margin was 19.1 percent in in 2015 and 19.0 percent in 2014. The increase in gross margin was driven primarily by product mix and
volumes which was partially offset by $9.7 million of inventory write-offs taken during 2015 as a result of our actions to end sales and
operations in our legacy business.

•

Selling, general and administrative expense was $137.8 million in 2015, down $36.9 million compared with $174.7 million in 2014. The
decrease from prior year is due to lower costs from business divestitures, lower costs resulting from the wind down of our legacy
business, corporate reductions, lower depreciation and amortization from impairments, currency impacts and lower compensation
expense. The decrease was partially offset by increased charges for accounts receivable write-offs taken in 2015 and incremental
investment in Nexsan and IronKey which included hiring sales resources, introducing new products and promoting the brand globally.

•

Research and development expense was $19.2 million in 2015, up $0.4 million, compared with $18.8 million in 2014 which reflects the
Company's increased investment in higher margin Nexsan projects. The increase was partially offset by spending reductions in our legacy
business.

•

Restructuring and other expense was $47.9 million in 2015 compared to $13.6 million in 2014. Restructuring and other expense in 2015
includes restructuring charges of $28.6 million and other expense of $19.3 million. Restructuring charges were primarily related to
severance from announcement to terminate our legacy business and further reduce and rationalize our corporate overhead. Other expense
relates to asset write downs and consulting costs which is partially offset by the gain on the termination of the TDK license, the gain on
the sale of our RDX Storage product line and pension curtailments. Restructuring and other expense in 2014 includes restructuring
charges of $5.4 million and other expense of $8.2 million.

•

Operating loss from continuing operations was $177.3 million in 2015 compared to $104.1 million in 2014. Operating loss from continuing
operation in 2015 includes a goodwill impairment charge of $36.1 million and intangible asset impairments of $37.6 million. Operating loss
from continuing operations in 2014 included a goodwill impairment charge of $35.4 million.

•

Other expense was $4.2 million in 2015, down $1.0 million, compared with $5.2 million in 2014 due to currency impacts and hedging
benefits. The decrease was partially offset by increased interest expense from the write off of capitalized debt fees from the cancellation
of our credit facilities and other expense from losses on trading securities and foreign currency translation losses.
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•

The income tax provision was $12.5 million in 2015 as compared to $3.1 million in 2014. The increase is primarily due to the recording of
valuation allowances on deferred tax assets from operations outside the United States offset by reduced income tax liability outside of the
United States and reduced liability on unremitted foreign earnings.

•

Diluted loss per share from continuing operations was $4.84 for 2015 compared with $2.74 for 2014.

Cash Flow/Financial Condition for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2015
•

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $70.4 million as of December 31, 2015, down $44.2 million compared with $114.6 million at
December 31, 2014.

•

Cash used in operating activities was $17.8 million in 2015 compared with cash provided by operating activities of $7.8 million in 2014.
Cash used in operating activities in 2015 was primarily related to the Legacy Business restructuring costs and investment in Nexsan and
IronKey, which was offset by cash generated by our legacy business.

•

Cash used in financing activities was $20.2 million in 2015 compared with cash used in financing activities of $2.6 million in 2014. Cash
used in financing activities in 2015 was primarily related to the credit facility loan pay off.

Results of Operations
Net Revenue
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Net revenue

$

529.2

$

729.5

$

860.8

(27.5)%

(15.3)%

Our worldwide revenue in 2015 decreased compared with 2014 due to the Legacy Business wind down and declines in Nexsan and IronKey of
$197.9 million, $0.7 million and $1.7 million, respectively. Within the Legacy Business, revenue decreased during the first three quarters of the
year due to the ongoing declines in magnetic tape and optical media products and decreased in the fourth quarter due to our actions to terminate
our global sales and operations. The Legacy Business was also impacted by the termination of our use of TDK licensing rights and the divestiture
of the RDX product line. Within the Nexsan and IronKey segment, revenue decrease was due to the business realignment and the foreign currency
translation. See Segment Results for further discussion of our reporting segments. Our worldwide revenue for 2015 compared to 2014 was
negatively impacted by foreign currency translation of 5.9 percent.
Our worldwide revenue in 2014 decreased compared with 2013 due to declines in the Nexsan, IronKey and Storage Media and Accessories
business segments of 18.8 percent, 8.0 percent and 15.1 percent, respectively. Within the Storage and Security Solutions segment, revenue
decreased due to marketplace sluggishness in the first half of 2014. Within the Storage Media and Accessories segment, revenue decreased due
to declines in the Consumer Storage Media products and Commercial Storage Media products. Optical media has been impacted by declining
revenue consistent with the overall market. Tape media has been impacted by industry wide dynamics including competing formats, as well as
continuing improvements in compression and deduplication technologies. See Segment Results for further discussion of our reporting segments.
Revenue for 2014 compared to 2013 was negatively impacted by foreign currency translation of 2.0 percent.
Gross Profit
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Gross profit
Gross margin

$

101.3
$
19.1%

138.4
$
19.0%

188.7
21.9%

(26.8)%

(26.7)%

Gross profit decreased in 2015 compared with 2014 due to lower revenues and $9.7 million of inventory write-offs taken as a result of our
actions to end sales and operations in our legacy business.
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Total gross margin increased 0.1 percentage points in 2015 compared with 2014 primarily due to our product mix moving towards the higher
margins of our Nexsan and IronKey products and the benefit of the accrual reversal of $3.8 million for Italian and German copyright levies in 2015.
This was partially offset from inventory write-offs of $9.7 million taken as a result of our actions to end sales and operations in our legacy
business.
Gross profit decreased in 2014 compared with 2013 due to lower revenues and the benefit of an accrual reversal of $23.1 million for Italian and
French copyright levies in 2013. The levy accrual reversal had a 2.7 percent positive impact on margin in 2013. See Note 15 - Litigation,
Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the levy reversal. Gross profit during
2014 was also impacted by higher inventory write-offs to rationalize certain product lines.
Total gross margin decreased 2.9 percentage points in 2014 compared with 2013 due to the benefit of the accrual reversal of $23.1 million for
Italian and French copyright levies in 2013 discussed above. Excluding the levy reversal, the gross margin for 2013 and 2014 was essentially flat
year over year.
Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A)
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Selling, general and administrative
As a percent of revenue

$

137.8
$
26.0%

174.7
$
23.9%

181.6
21.1%

(21.1)%

(3.8)%

SG&A expense decreased in 2015 compared with 2014 due to lower costs from business divestitures, the lower costs resulting from the wind
down of our legacy business, corporate reductions, lower depreciation and amortization, currency impacts and lower compensation expense. We
reduced legacy operating costs by $28.5 million in 2015 which reflect our continued commitment to cutting costs and right sizing Imation's
operations.
SG&A expense decreased in 2014 compared with 2013 due primarily to our cost reduction efforts. We reduced legacy operating costs by
$18.2 million in 2014 across the organization in order to operate as a smaller company with more focused product lines and streamlined core
operational processes. Incremental investment in Nexsan and IronKey partially offset these reductions in 2014 which included hiring sales
resources, introducing new products and promoting the brand globally.
Research and Development (R&D)
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Research and development
As a percent of revenue

$

19.2
$
3.6%

18.8
$
2.6%

18.4
2.1%

2.1%

2.2%

R&D expense increased in 2015 compared with 2014 which reflects the Company's increased investment in higher margin projects in Nexsan
business. The increase was partially offset by spending reductions in our legacy business. We reduced legacy R&D expense in this business by
$0.6 million leaving total legacy spending of $2.4 million in 2015.
R&D expense increased in 2014 compared with 2013 which reflects the Company's increased investment in higher margin projects in Nexsan
and IronKey. We reduced legacy R&D expense by $1.0 million leaving total legacy spending of $3.0 million in 2014.
Goodwill Impairment
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Goodwill impairment

$

36.1

$

35.4

$

—

2015 Goodwill Analysis
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We test the carrying amount of a reporting unit's goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter of each year and during
an interim period if an event occurs or circumstances change that would warrant impairment testing. During the third quarter of 2015, management
and the Board of Directors engaged in an assessment of the Nexsan and IronKey businesses of the Company. As a result of this assessment, we
significantly revised our previous business strategy by adjusting our product portfolio to a smaller product offering as well as changing our
investment philosophy associated with these businesses such that the investment in operating expenses will be significantly reduced. Because of
our strategy change, smaller product portfolio and reduced future investment, we revised our forecasts, which we determined to be a triggering
event requiring us to review our goodwill related to our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units for impairment.
In determining the estimated fair value of these reporting units, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows are affected by various significant assumptions, including
the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth
rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 year period with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use
our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash flows. The assumptions included utilized discount rates of approximately
16.0 percent and terminal growth rates ranging from zero to 3.0 percent.
As a result of this assessment, it was determined that the carrying values of our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units exceeded their estimated
fair values. Accordingly, we performed a Step 2 goodwill impairment test which compared the implied value of the goodwill associated with each of
these reporting units to the carrying value of the goodwill associated with each of these reporting units. Based on this analysis, the carrying value
of the goodwill associated with Nexsan exceeded its implied value by $28.1 million, the carrying value of the goodwill associated with IronKey
exceeded its implied value by $8.0 million. Consequently, we recorded an impairment charge of $36.1 million in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2015.
On October 14, 2015, the Company acquired the equity of Connected Data, Inc. (“CDI”) in a cash and stock transaction valued at $6.7 million.
The CDI acquisition has been accounted for in accordance with ASC 805, using the acquisition method of accounting. The assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in connection with the CDI acquisition, including identifiable intangible assets, have been measured at their fair value. The
purchase price consists of approximately $3.3 million in cash and debt assumed, 1,511,151 shares of Imation common stock valued at
approximately $2.6 million. In addition, up to $5.0 million in cash and shares in earn outs are possible based upon CDI’s performance through 2016
and the first half of 2017. The range of the undiscounted amounts the Company could pay under the contingent consideration agreement is
between $0 and $5.0 million. The contingent consideration earn out was valued at $0.8 million.
The purchase price allocation resulted in goodwill of $3.8 million, primarily attributable to strategic synergies and workforce that did not qualify
for separate recognition (i.e acquired workforce). Goodwill associated with the acquisition of CDI is included in the Nexsan reporting unit for the
purposes of goodwill impairment testing.
As of December 31, 2015, we had a goodwill balance of $3.8 million.
See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further background and information on goodwill impairments.
2014 Goodwill Analysis
During the first and then again in the third quarter of 2014, we adjusted our internal forecast for our Nexsan reporting unit due to lower than
anticipated results. We considered these factors to be an event that warranted an interim test as to whether goodwill was impaired in each of these
periods. The first quarter test resulted in no impairment of goodwill as the estimated fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value. In
performing Step 1 of the third quarter test, it was determined that the carrying value of our Nexsan reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value.
Accordingly, we performed a Step 2 goodwill impairment test which compared the implied value of the goodwill associated with Nexsan to the
carrying value of such goodwill. Based on this analysis, the carrying value of the Nexsan goodwill exceeded its implied value by $35.4 million and,
consequently, we recorded an impairment charge of that amount in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
In determining the estimated fair value of the reporting unit, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows are affected by various significant assumptions, including
the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and
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EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth rate. Our analysis utilized discounted
forecasted cash flows over a 10 year period with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use our business plans and projections as
the basis for expected future cash flows. The assumptions included utilized a discount rate of 16.5 percent and a terminal growth rate of 3.0
percent. Because our Nexsan reporting unit had not been able to achieve its anticipated results, we increased our discount rate by 2.0 percent
over the estimated market discount rate of 14.5 percent.
During the fourth quarter of 2014, we performed our annual impairment testing of goodwill for our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. In
performing Step 1 of these tests, we compared the estimated fair value of these reporting units to the carrying value. These impairment tests
resulted in no fourth quarter impairment as the estimated fair value of each reporting unit exceeded the carrying value for the Nexsan and IronKey
reporting units.
In determining the estimated fair value of the reporting units for our annual test performed in the fourth quarter of 2014, we used the income
approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows
are affected by various significant assumptions, including the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and
amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 year period with an
estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash flows. The
assumptions included utilized a discount rate of 16.5 percent and a terminal growth rate of 3.0 percent for each reporting unit.
2013 Goodwill Analysis
During the fourth quarter of 2013, we performed our annual impairment testing of goodwill for our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. These
impairment tests resulted in no impairment of goodwill as the estimated fair value of each reporting unit exceeded the carrying value in Step 1 of
the impairment tests for the Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. There were no triggering events that occurred during 2013 that warranted an
interim goodwill impairment test to be performed.
For the 2013 impairment test for the IronKey reporting unit, we used forecasted cash flows over a ten year period, a terminal growth rate of 3.0
percent and a discount rate of 15.5 percent. The discount rate reflects the relative risk of achieving cash flows as well as any other specific risks
or factors related to the IronKey reporting unit.
For the 2013 impairment test for the Nexsan reporting unit, we used forecasted cash flows over a ten year period, a terminal growth rate of 3.0
percent and a discount rate of 13.5 percent. The discount rate reflected the relative risk of achieving cash flows as well as any other specific risks
or factors related to the Nexsan reporting unit.
See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements as well as Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates for further background and information on goodwill impairments.
Intangible Impairments
2015 Intangible Asset Analysis
During the third quarter of 2015, management and the Board of Directors engaged in a detailed strategic and financial assessment of the
Company. As a result of this assessment, we significantly revised our previous business strategy by adjusting our product portfolio to a smaller
product offering as well as changing our investment philosophy such that the investment in operating expenses will be significantly reduced.
Because of our strategy change, smaller product portfolio and reduced future investment, we revised our forecasts, which we determined to be a
triggering event for impairment testing. This required the assessment of the recoverability of the long-lived assets (including definite-lived
intangible assets).
We compared the carrying value of our asset groups with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows and determined that the carrying
value of certain asset groups exceeded the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset group. For those asset groups, we
then compared the carrying value of the asset group to its estimated fair value to determine the amount by which our long-lived assets (primarily
intangible assets) with the asset group were impaired. As a result of these analyses, we recorded an impairment charge of $37.6 million in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2015.
In determining the estimated fair value of the asset groups, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the asset group's financial forecasts. Our expected cash
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flows are affected by various significant assumptions, including the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest,
taxes and amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 year
period with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash
flows. The assumptions included utilized discount rates ranging of approximately 16.0 percent and terminal growth rates ranging from zero to 3.0
percent.
On October 14, 2015, the Company acquired the equity of Connected Data, Inc. (“CDI”) in a cash and stock transaction valued at $6.7 million.
The CDI acquisition has been accounted for in accordance with ASC 805, using the acquisition method of accounting. The assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in connection with the CDI acquisition, including identifiable intangible assets, have been measured at their fair value. The
purchase price consists of approximately $3.3 million in cash and debt assumed, 1,511,151 shares of Imation common stock valued at
approximately $2.6 million. In addition, up to $5.0 million in cash and shares in earn outs are possible based upon CDI’s performance through 2016
and the first half of 2017. The range of the undiscounted amounts the Company could pay under the contingent consideration agreement is
between $0 and $5.0 million. The contingent consideration earn out was valued at $0.8 million.
The purchase price allocation resulted in intangible of $4.3 million, primarily attributable to developed technology. The intangible will be
amortized over a period of 6 years.
As of December 31, 2015, we had an intangible balance of $4.2 million related to developed technology.
See Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on intangible assets
including our valuation approach and assumptions.
2014 Intangible Asset Analysis
As a part of our annual goodwill impairment test for our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units, we also tested for the impairment of long-lived
assets, including intangible assets with the asset groups included in our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. In performing these tests, we
compared the carrying values of these asset groups with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows and determined that the undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset groups exceeded their carrying values resulting in no impairment. During the first and third
quarters of 2014, as noted below under our 2014 goodwill analysis discussion, we performed interim goodwill impairment testing for our Nexsan
reporting unit due to lower than anticipated results. We determined these factors to be an event that warranted interim tests as to whether our
intangible assets associated with Nexsan were impaired. Based on our impairment analysis performed in the first and third quarters of 2014, we
concluded that we did not have an impairment of our intangible assets associated with Nexsan at those times.
See Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on intangible assets
including our valuation approach and assumptions.
2013 Intangible Asset Analysis
As a part of our annual goodwill impairment test for our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units, we also tested for the impairment of long-lived
assets, including intangible assets with the asset groups included in our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. In performing these tests, we
compared the carrying values of these asset groups with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows and determined that the undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset groups exceeded their carrying values resulting in no impairment. There were no interim
triggering events that occurred during 2013 that warranted an impairment test to be performed on our long-lived assets (including intangible assets)
other than goodwill.
See Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on our impairment of
intangible assets.
Litigation Settlement
A $2.5 million gain from a litigation settlement from a long-standing case in Brazil was recognized in 2013.
Restructuring and Other
On September 27, 2015, the Company adopted a restructuring plan pursuant to which it will terminate sales and operations of its legacy
business and further reduce and rationalize its corporate overhead (the Restructuring Plan). The Company will continue its Nexsan and Connected
Data, Inc. businesses.
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The Company is entering into the Restructuring Plan as a result of continued losses due to secular declines in its legacy business and to
reduce the cost structure and streamline the organization in light of these changes. The Company expects that it will incur approximately $120
million total charges for the Restructuring Plan excluding tax impact and approximately $35 million of the total charges will require cash
expenditures. The Company expects that the Restructuring Plan and associated wind down of its legacy business will substantially complete the
plan during the first quarter of 2016.
In October 2012, the Board of Directors approved our Global Process Improvement (GPI) Program in order to realign our business structure
and significantly reduce operating expense over time. This restructuring program addressed product line rationalization and infrastructure and
included a planned reduction in our global workforce. The GPI restructuring program is closed and current and future related charges will be
reported as part of the Restructuring Plan discussed above.
The components of our restructuring and other expense included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Restructuring
Severance and related
Lease termination costs
Other
Total restructuring

$

24.5
1.5
2.6

$

3.9
0.3
1.2

$

2.1
0.7
2.4

$

28.6

$

5.4

$

5.2

Other
Settlement of UK pension plan (Note 9)
Gain on sale of fixed assets held for sale
Acquisition and integration related costs
Pension settlement/curtailment (Note 9)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustment (Note 4)
Intangible asset abandonment (Note 6)
Asset disposals / write down
Other

—
—
0.5
(0.8)
—
—
24.6
(5.0)
$

Total

47.9

0.5
—
—
0.2
—
—
1.8
5.7
$

13.6

10.6
(9.8)
2.8
2.1
—
—
0.4
$

11.3

Restructuring
Total restructuring charges of $28.6 million recorded for the year ended December 31, 2015 related to severance from announcement to
terminate our legacy business and further reduce and rationalize our corporate overhead. Total restructuring charges of $5.4 million recorded for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and $5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 related to the GPI Program.
Other
Certain amounts recorded in Other are discussed elsewhere in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. See note references in table
above.
During the year ended December 31, 2015 we recorded $24.6 million of charges associated with asset write downs primarily related to the write
down of our corporate headquarters facility. The $5.0 million of gain in other includes the gain on the termination of the TDK license, the gain on
the sale of our RDX Storage product line and pension curtailments. These gains were partially offset by certain employee costs and consulting
fees for external and related parties. The $0.5 million in acquisition and integration costs relate to the acquisition of Connected Data, Inc.
During the year ended December 31, 2014 we recorded $1.8 million of assets disposals and write-downs from which $1.0 million related to our
Weatherford, Oklahoma facility and $0.8 million related to miscellaneous asset disposals. The $5.7 million of other expenses includes certain
employee costs and consulting fees.
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During the year ended December 31, 2013 a gain of $9.8 million related to the sale of our Camarillo, California manufacturing facility was
recorded. The $1.0 million of other expenses includes certain employee costs and consulting fees.
Operating Loss From Continuing Operations
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Operating loss
As a percent of revenue

$

(177.3)
$
(33.5)%

(104.1)
$
(14.3)%

(20.1)
(2.3)%

NM

NM

_______________________________________

NM - Not meaningful
Operating loss from continuing operations increased in 2015 compared with 2014 primarily due to increased restructuring and other charges
and goodwill and intangible asset impairments of $36.1 million and $37.6 million, respectively. Operating loss from continuing operations increased
in 2014 compared with 2013 primarily due to a goodwill impairment of $35.4 million in 2014 and a reversal of an accrual of $23.1 million in 2013 for
copyright levies, as a result of Italian and French court rulings in 2013. See discussion above for further information on our 2014 impairment
losses. See Note 15 - Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the
2013 levy reversal.
Other (Income) and Expense
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Interest income
Interest expense
Other, net

$

Total
As a percent of revenue

$

(0.4)
3.3
1.3

$

4.2
$
0.8%

(0.5)
2.6
3.1

$

5.2
$
0.7%

(0.2)
2.5
0.6
2.9
0.3%

(20.0)%
26.9 %
(58.1)%

150.0%
4.0%
416.7%

(19.2)%

79.3%

Other expense was $4.2 million, $5.2 million and $2.9 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The decrease in other expense for 2015
compared with 2014 was due to currency impacts and hedging benefits in 2015. The decrease in 2015 was partially offset by increased interest
expense from the write off of capitalized debt fees from the cancellation of our credit facilities and other expense from losses on trading securities
and foreign currency translation losses for entities for which liquidation is substantially complete. The increase in other expense for 2014 compared
with 2013 was driven by other, net expense. Other, net expense includes foreign currency (gains) losses from changes in foreign exchange rates
on foreign denominated assets and liabilities. We attempt to mitigate the exposure to foreign currency volatility through our hedging program;
however, our program is not designed to fully hedge our risk, and as a result, we experience some volatility in our foreign currency (gains) losses,
especially in periods of significant foreign currency fluctuation. Foreign currency (gains) losses were a gain of $1.0 million in 2015, a loss of $2.2
million in 2014 and a gain of $0.5 million in 2013.
Income Tax Provision
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Income tax provision
Effective tax rate

$

12.5
NM

$

3.1
NM

$

1.4
NM

_______________________________________

NM - Not meaningful
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We maintain a valuation allowance related to our U.S. deferred tax assets and the majority of our foreign deferred tax assets. Because of the
valuation allowances, the tax provision generally represents taxes outside of the U.S. plus discrete tax events that may occur from time to time.
This also causes the effective tax rates to be not meaningful. The effective tax rates for 2015, 2014 and 2013 are not meaningful.
In comparing our 2015 tax provision of $12.5 million to our 2014 tax provision of $3.1 million, the increase was primarily due to the recording of
valuation allowances on the deferred tax assets from operations outside the United States offset by reduced income tax liability outside the United
States and reduced tax liability on unremitted foreign earnings.
In comparing our 2014 tax provision of $3.1 million to our 2013 tax provision of $1.4 million, the increase was primarily due to the $1.7 million
tax expense associated with the change in the permanent reinvestment assertion of unremitted foreign earnings recorded during 2014.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had valuation allowances of $325.3 million and $262.4 million respectively, to account for deferred tax
assets we have concluded are not considered to be more-likely-than-not to be realized in the future due to our cumulative losses in recent years.
The deferred tax assets subject to valuation allowance include certain operating loss carryforwards, deferred tax deductions, capital loss
carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards.
Loss from discontinued operations
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Net revenue

$

(Loss) gain on sale of discontinued businesses, net of income taxes
Loss from operations of discontinued businesses, before income taxes
Adjustment to carrying value of disposal group
Income tax benefit

—

$

0.4

—
—
—
—
$

Loss from discontinued businesses, net of income taxes

—

$

(1.7)
(0.6)
—
—
$

(2.3)

40.7
0.9
(14.2)
(6.7)
—

$

(20.0)

Loss from discontinued operations represents the results of operations from our former XtremeMac and Memorex consumer electronics
businesses. The 2014 loss includes a $1.2 million adjustment to expected proceeds on the sale of the XtremeMac business and a $0.5 million
loss on the initial sale of the XtremeMac business, which closed on January 31, 2014. The 2013 loss represents the results of operations from our
XtremeMac and Memorex consumer electronics businesses as well as a $6.7 million write-down of the carrying value of the XtremeMac disposal
group to its estimated fair value. This was partially offset by a $0.9 million gain on the sale of the Memorex consumer electronics business which
occurred on October 15, 2013. The increase in operating loss for 2014 compared with 2013 reflects the write-down of the carrying value discussed
above, lower revenues and lower gross margins in these businesses, in addition to severance expense of $1.6 million recorded in 2014. See Note
4 - Acquisitions and Divestitures in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the divestitures of these two
businesses.
Segment Results
Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2015, in conjunction with our accelerated wind-down of the Company's legacy business, the Company
changed the manner in which it evaluates the operations of the Company and makes decisions around the allocation of resources. The Company
operated in three reportable segments as of December 31, 2015: “Nexsan”, “IronKey” and "Storage Media and Accessories." Nexsan is expected
to be our go forward business. (See Note 18 - Subsequent Events on the sale of IronKey on February 2, 2016). Storage Media and Accessories
(consisting of our Commercial Storage Media, Consumer Storage Media and Audio and Accessories product categories) is collectively referred to
as our "legacy business" and is in the process of being wound-down (which is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2016). Going
forward, we will focus on Nexsan business and evaluating other investment opportunities.
The segment information for prior periods have been revised to conform to the 2015 reportable segment presentation.
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We evaluate segment performance based on revenue and operating income (loss). The operating income (loss) reported in our segments
excludes corporate and other unallocated amounts. Although such amounts are excluded from the business segment results, they are included in
reported consolidated results. Corporate and unallocated amounts include litigation settlement expense, goodwill impairment, intangible
impairments, intangible asset abandonment, corporate expense, contingent consideration adjustments, inventory write-offs related to our
restructuring programs and restructuring and other expenses which are not allocated to how management evaluates segment performances.
During the first quarter of 2013, we announced our plans to divest our XtremeMac and Memorex consumer electronics businesses. The
operating results for these businesses are presented in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as discontinued operations and are not
included in segment results for any periods presented. See Note 4 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for further information.
Information related to our segments is as follows:
Nexsan
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Net revenue
Operating (loss)
As a percent of revenue

$

62.8
$
(25.4)
(40.4)%

63.5
$
(34.3)
(54.0)%

78.2
(14.8)
(18.9)%

(1.1)%
(25.9)%

(18.8)%
131.8 %

The decrease in Nexsan revenue in 2015 compared with 2014 was due to rationalization of the product lines and regional footprint.
Operating loss decreased in 2015 compared with 2014 due to improved margins and lower selling, general and administrative expenses. During
the third quarter of 2015, management revised our business strategy in Nexsan business such that operating expenses were significantly reduced
due to the rationalizing of product lines and footprint.
Operating loss increased in 2014 compared with 2013 due to revenue declines and an increased investment in R&D and SG&A driven by hiring
sales and engineering resources and value-added resellers, introducing new products and promoting the brand globally.
IronKey
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Net revenue
Operating (loss)
As a percent of revenue

$

18.9
$
(6.9)
(36.5)%

20.6
$
(10.4)
(50.5)%

22.4
(12.5)
(55.8)%

(8.3)%
(33.7)%

(8.0)%
(16.8)%

The decrease in revenue in 2015 compared with 2014 was due to the strategic shift associated with IronKey to focus on reducing the operating
loss instead of continuing to invest for expected revenue growth. We sold the IronKey business in February, 2016. (See Note 18)
Operating loss decreased in 2015 compared with 2014 due to improved margins and lower selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Storage Media and Accessories
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Net revenue
Operating income (loss)
As a percent of revenue

$

447.5
$
(2.2)
(0.5)%

645.4
$
25.7
4.0%

760.2
55.9
7.4%

(30.7)%
(108.6)%

(15.1)%
(54.0)%

The decrease in Storage Media and Accessories segment revenue in 2015 compared with 2014 was driven by declines in Commercial Storage
Media, Consumer Storage Media and Audio and Accessories product lines and currency impacts. Revenue decreased during the first three
quarters of the year due to the ongoing declines in magnetic tape and optical media products and decreased in the fourth quarter due to our actions
to terminate our global sales and operations. The wind down of our legacy business is expected to be complete in early 2016. The Storage Media
and Accessories segment was also impacted by the termination of our use of TDK licensing rights and the divestiture of the RDX product line.
Operating results decreased in 2015 compared with 2014, due primarily to lower revenue and inventory write-offs of $9.7 million and accounts
receivable write-offs of $5.2 million taken as a result of our actions to end sales and operations in our legacy businesses.
The decrease in Storage Media and Accessories segment revenue in 2014 compared with 2013 was driven by declines in the Commercial
Storage Media and Consumer Storage Media product lines which was partially offset by an increase in Audio and Accessories. Commercial
Storage Media products decreased $37.6 million in 2014 compared with 2013. From a product perspective, the decrease in Commercial Storage
Media product revenue was primarily composed of lower revenue from magnetic tape products of $34.1 million compared with 2013. Tape media
has been impacted by industry wide dynamics including competing formats, as well as continuing improvements in compression and deduplication
technologies driving the secular declines in this category. Consumer Storage Media revenue decreased due to expected secular declines in optical
media products of $76.3 million. Partially offsetting the decrease in revenue from Consumer Storage Media was an increase in Audio and
Accessories products, as we saw revenue increase in consumer electronic accessories and TDK Life on Record consumer electronic products.
Operating income decreased in 2014 compared with 2013 due primarily to lower revenue and margins on our Commercial Storage Media
business in 2014 and the reversal of $23.1 million of accruals for Italian and French copyright levies in the second and fourth quarters of 2013,
respectively. This was partially offset by lower SG&A expense.
Corporate and Unallocated
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Percent Change
2013

2015 vs. 2014

2014 vs. 2013

(In millions)

Operating loss

$

(142.8)

$

(85.1)

$

(48.7)

67.8%

74.7%

The corporate and unallocated operating loss includes costs which are not allocated to the business segments in management’s evaluation of
segment performance such as litigation settlement expense, goodwill impairment, intangible impairments, intangible asset abandonment, corporate
expense, contingent consideration adjustments, and other expenses.
Corporate and unallocated amounts above include non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $36.1 million and $35.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, non-cash intangible asset impairment charges of $37.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
restructuring and other costs of $47.9 million, $13.6 million and $11.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
and other corporate expenses of $21.2 million and $36.1 million and $39.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively. The 2013 operating loss also included a $10.6 million loss related to the settlement of our UK pension plan and a $9.8 million gain on
the sale of land at a previously closed facility and a litigation settlement gain of $2.5 million.
35

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

Table of Contents
Financial Position
Our cash and cash equivalents balance as of December 31, 2015 was $70.4 million, a decrease of $44.2 million from $114.6 million as of
December 31, 2014. The decrease was primarily driven by the investment in Nexsan and IronKey, net debt repayments of $18.5 million,
restructuring payments of $12.6 million, restricted cash of $9.9 million, capital expenditures of $3.0 million, and share repurchases of $1.7 million,
offset by cash generated from legacy businesses.
Our accounts receivable balance as of December 31, 2015 was $25.4 million, a decrease of $109.0 million from $134.4 million as of
December 31, 2014 as a result of lower sales during the period and write-offs taken as a result of our actions to end sales and operations of our
legacy business. This resulted in a Days sales outstanding of 32 days as of December 31, 2015, compared to 55 Days sales outstanding in
December 31, 2014. Days sales outstanding is calculated using the count-back method, which calculates the number of days of most recent
revenue that is reflected in the net accounts receivable balance.
Our inventory balance as of December 31, 2015 was $10.5 million, a decrease of $47.2 million from $57.7 million as of December 31, 2014.
The decrease in inventory is due to the depletion of inventory and write-offs taken as a result of our actions to end sales and operations of our
legacy business. Days of inventory supply was 132 days as of December 31, 2015, up 88 days from December 31, 2014. The increase reflects
longer lead times for the remaining Nexsan and IronKey businesses. Days of inventory supply is calculated using the current period inventory
balance divided by an estimate of the inventoriable portion of cost of goods sold expressed in days.
Our accounts payable balance as of December 31, 2015 was $44.3 million, a decrease of $51.2 million from $95.5 million as of December 31,
2014. The decrease in accounts payable was mainly due fewer purchases and spending as a result of our actions to end sales and operations of
our legacy business and further reduce and rationalize our corporate overhead.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
We have various resources available to us for purposes of managing liquidity and capital needs. Our primary sources of liquidity include our
cash and cash equivalents. Our primary operating liquidity needs relate to our working capital and funding our operations.
We had $70.4 million cash on hand as of December, 2015. In Q1 2016, we generated approximately $25 million from non-core asset sales. In
addition, we expect to extract $5 million to $10 million from our legacy business working capital (accounts receivables minus accounts payables).
Our liquidity needs for 2016 include the following: restructuring payments of approximately $15 million to $20 million, other liabilities of
approximately $5 million to $10 million, cash necessary to fund our expected operating loss of $9 million to $16 million, capital expenditures of
approximately $1 million to $3 million, operating lease payments of approximately $2 million, pension funding of approximately $1 million to $2
million, any amounts associated with organic investment opportunities and any amounts associated with the repurchase of common stock under
the authorization discussed above. In addition, we may need to pay up to $20 million of accounts payables currently under dispute.
We expect that our cash positions in the U.S, and outside of the U.S. will provide liquidity sufficient to meet our needs for our operations and
our obligations in the countries in which we operate. We also plan to raise additional capital if necessary.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less. Restricted cash is related to
contractual obligations or restricted by management and is included in other current assets or other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
depending on the timing of the restrictions. The restricted cash balance in other current assets as of December 31, 2015 was $9.9 million which
relates to court ordered vendor payment disputes, future employee payments and bank deposits. The restricted cash balance in other assets as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $1.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively, which relates to cash set aside as indemnification for certain
customers.
Analysis of Cash Flows
Cash Flows Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:
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Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

(194.0)
131.7
44.5

$

(114.7)
68.8
38.1

$

(44.4)
32.1
34.4

$

(17.8)

$

(7.8)

$

22.1

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctuate from period to period as many items can impact cash flows. Cash used in operating
activities in 2015 was driven primarily by the net loss, partially offset by cash provided from working capital reductions. Operating cash outflows
included restructuring payments of $12.6 million, $6.7 million and $19.4 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
During 2015 and 2014 we recorded non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $36.1 million and $35.4 million, respectively. During 2015 we
recorded an intangible asset impairment charges of $37.6 million.
Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of assets and business
Recovery of investments
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchase of tradename
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

$

(3.0)
3.3
—
(3.1)
—

$

(5.6)
3.4
—
—
—

$

(7.0)
11.0
0.2
1.6
—

$

(2.8)

$

(2.2)

$

5.8

In 2015, we received $3.3 million from the sales of our Memorex consumer electronic business and Weatherford, Oklahoma property. Cash
used in investing activities included $4.3 million for the acquisition of Connected Data, Inc. Cash used in investing activities also included $3.0
million of capital expenditures.
In 2014, we received $3.4 million from the sales of our XtremeMac and Memorex consumer electronic business. Cash used in investing
activities also included $5.6 million of capital expenditures.
In 2013, we received $10.1 million for land classified as held for sale and $0.9 million related to the sale of our Memorex consumer electronics
business. Cash provided by investing activities also included $7.0 million of capital expenditures.
See Note 4 - Acquisitions in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding our acquisitions.
Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Purchase of treasury stock
Debt issuance costs
Debt borrowings
Debt repayments
Contingent consideration payments
Exercise of stock options
Net cash used in financing activities

$

(1.7)
—
16.5
(35.0)
—
—

$

(2.5)
—
38.7
(39.2)
—
0.4

$

(2.5)
(0.4)
4.9
(4.9)
(0.5)
—

$

(20.2)

$

(2.6)

$

(3.4)
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On May, 2, 2012, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program that allowed for the repurchase of 5.0 million shares of
common stock. The Company's previous authorization, which had 1.2 million shares remaining for purchase, was canceled with the new
authorization. Since the inception of this authorization, we have repurchased 3.0 million shares of common stock at an average price of $3.84 per
share and as of December 31, 2015 we had remaining authorization to repurchase up to 2.0 million shares. We repurchased 0.4 million, 0.8 million
and 0.6 million shares in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
No dividends were declared or paid during 2015, 2014 or 2013. Any future dividends are at the discretion of and subject to the approval of our
Board of Directors.
Cash used in financing activities included borrowings of $16.5 million, $38.7 million and $4.9 million and repayments of $35.0 million, $39.2
million and $4.9 million during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively on our credit facilities primarily for the use in financing our working capital
seasonal needs. During 2015 we did not capitalize any debt issuance costs.
Credit Facilities
As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had short-term borrowings of $0.2 million and $18.9 million, respectively. The decrease
in outstanding debt from December 31, 2014 is due to the termination of the Company's credit agreements with various banks in the United States,
Europe and Japan.
On October 30, 2015, the Company terminated its Japan Credit Agreement entered into on July 16, 2013. At the time of termination, the
Company paid down its short-term borrowings of $7.6 million. Additionally, capitalized costs for the credit facility of $0.1 million were charged to
interest expense. The Company incurred an early termination penalty less than $0.1 million in connection with the termination.
On November 25, 2015, the Company terminated its Amended Credit Agreement entered into on May 18, 2012. At the time of termination, the
Company paid down its short-term borrowings of $10.4 million. Additionally, capitalized costs for the credit facility of $1.1 million were charged to
interest expense. No early termination penalty was incurred by the Company in connection with the termination.
We had $48.2 million of cash outside the U.S. at December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had changed its position on the
permanent reinvestment assertion of its unremitted foreign earnings. The deferred tax liability recorded as of December 31, 2015 for the impact of
future repatriation of the unremitted foreign earnings is $9.4 million. Of this liability, $8.2 million would be fully offset by net operating losses, and
the remaining $1.2 million liability is related to foreign tax withholding. We also have significant net operating loss carryforwards offset by a full
valuation allowance in the U.S.
Related Party Transactions
See Note 16 - Related Party Transactions for information on related party transactions between the Company and Imation's Board of Directors
and Executive Officers.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Other than the operating lease commitments discussed in Note 15 - Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, we are not using off-balance sheet arrangements, including special purpose entities.
Summary of Contractual Obligations
Payments Due by Period
Less Than
1 Year

Total

1-3 Years

More Than
5 Years

3-5 Years

(In millions)

Operating lease obligations
Purchase obligations (1)
Short-term debt
Other liabilities (2)
Total

$

5.7
4.0
0.2
14.9

$

2.7
4.0
0.2
0.4

$

1.7
—
—
0.3

$

1.0
—
—
—

$

0.3
—
—
14.2

$

24.8

$

7.3

$

2.0

$

1.0

$

14.5

_______________________________________
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(1)

(2)

The majority of the purchase obligations consist of 90-day rolling estimates. In most cases, we provide suppliers with a three to six month
rolling forecast of our demand. The forecasted amounts are generally not binding on us. However, it may take 60 to 90 days from the
purchase order issuance to receipt, depending on supplier and inbound lead time.
Timing of payments for the vast majority of other liabilities cannot be reasonably determined and, as such, have been included in the
“More Than 5 Years” category.

The table above does not include payments for non-contributory defined benefit pension plans. It is our general practice, at a minimum, to fund
amounts sufficient to meet the requirements set forth in applicable benefits laws and local tax laws. From time to time, we contribute additional
amounts, as we deem appropriate. We expect to contribute approximately $1 million to $2 million to our pension plans in 2016 and have $20.7
million recorded in other liabilities related to pension plans as of December 31, 2015. See Note 9 - Retirement Plans in our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for information on our pension plans.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates to ensure they are consistent with
historical experience and the various assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions and could materially impact our results of operations.
We believe the following critical accounting policies are affected by significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Uncertain Tax Positions. Our income tax returns are subject to review by various U.S. and foreign taxing authorities. As such, we record
accruals for items that we believe may be challenged by these taxing authorities. The threshold for recognizing the benefit of a tax return position
in the financial statements is that the position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained by the taxing authorities based solely on the technical
merits of the position. If the recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is measured and recognized as the largest amount of tax benefit that, in
our judgment, is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized.
The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2015 was $1.7 million, excluding accrued interest and penalties described
below. If the unrecognized tax benefits were recognized in our Consolidated Financial Statements, $1.5 million would affect income tax expense
and our related effective tax rate.
Interest and penalties recorded for uncertain tax positions are included in our income tax provision. As of December 31, 2015, $0.1 million of
interest and penalties was accrued, excluding the tax benefit of deductible interest. The reversal of accrued interest and penalties would affect
income tax expense and our related effective tax rate.
Our U.S. federal income tax returns for 2012 through 2014 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). With few
exceptions, we are no longer subject to examination by foreign tax jurisdictions or state and local tax jurisdictions for years before 2009.
The ultimate outcome of tax matters may differ from our estimates and assumptions. Unfavorable settlement of any particular issue may
require the use of cash and could result in increased income tax expense. Favorable resolution could result in reduced income tax expense. It is
reasonably possible that our unrecognized tax benefits could increase or decrease significantly during the next twelve months due to the resolution
of certain U.S. and international tax uncertainties; however it is not possible to estimate the potential change at this time.
Intangibles. We record all assets and liabilities acquired in purchase acquisitions, including intangibles, at estimated fair value. Intangible
assets with a definite life are amortized based on a pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed, typically with useful lives
ranging from one to 30 years. The initial recognition of intangible assets, the determination of useful lives and, if necessary, subsequent
impairment analysis require management to make subjective judgments concerning estimates of how the acquired assets will perform in the future
using certain valuation methods including discounted cash flow analysis. We evaluate assets on our balance sheet, including such intangible
assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors such as unfavorable
variances from forecasted cash flows, established
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business plans or volatility inherent to external markets and industries may indicate a possible impairment that would require an impairment test.
While we believe that the current carrying value of these assets is not impaired, materially different assumptions regarding future performance of
our businesses, which in many cases require subjective judgments concerning estimates, could result in significant impairment losses. The test
for impairment requires a comparison of the carrying value of the asset or asset group with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows. If the
carrying value of the asset or asset group is considered impaired, an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the carrying value of
the asset or asset group exceeds its fair value. See Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill for information on our 2015 and 2014 intangible
assets.
Goodwill. We record all assets and liabilities acquired in purchase acquisitions, including goodwill, at fair value. The initial recognition of
goodwill and subsequent impairment analysis require management to make subjective judgments concerning estimates of how the acquired assets
will perform in the future using valuation methods including discounted cash flow analysis. Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquired entity
over the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized. We test the carrying
amount of a reporting unit's goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter of each year (as of November 30th) or if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would warrant impairment testing during an interim period.
Goodwill is considered impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its implied fair value. The first step of the impairment test involves
comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to which goodwill was assigned to its carrying amount. The second step of the impairment test
compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying amount of
the reporting unit’s goodwill is greater than the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill an impairment loss must be recognized for the
excess. This involves measuring the fair value of the reporting unit’s assets and liabilities (both recognized and unrecognized) at the time of the
impairment test. The difference between the reporting unit’s fair value and the fair values assigned to the reporting unit’s individual assets and
liabilities is the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. See Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill for information on our 2015 and 2014
goodwill.
In determining the estimated fair value of the reporting units, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts and the market approach, a valuation technique that provides an estimate of the
value of the reporting unit based on a comparison to other similar businesses. Our expected cash flows are affected by various significant
assumptions, including projected revenue, gross margin and expense expectations, terminal growth rate and a discount rate. Our analyses utilize
discounted forecasted cash flows over a multi-year period depending on the reporting unit with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We
use our business plans and projections as the basis for these cash flow assumptions.
Copyright Levies. In many European Union (EU) member countries, the sale of recordable optical media is subject to a private copyright levy.
The levies are intended to compensate copyright holders with "fair compensation" for the harm caused by private copies made by natural persons
of protected works under the European Copyright Directive, which became effective in 2002 (Directive). Levies are generally charged directly to the
importer of the product upon the sale of the products. Payers of levies remit levy payments to collecting societies which, in turn, are expected to
distribute funds to copyright holders. Levy systems of EU member countries must comply with the Directive, but individual member countries are
responsible for administering their own systems. Since implementation, the levy systems have been the subject of numerous litigation and law
making activities. On October 21, 2010, the Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU) ruled that fair compensation is an autonomous
European law concept that was introduced by the Directive and must be uniformly applied in all EU member states. The CJEU stated that fair
compensation must be calculated based on the harm caused to the authors of protected works by private copying. The CJEU ruling made clear
that copyright holders are only entitled to fair compensation payments (funded by levy payments made by importers of applicable products,
including the Company) when sales of optical media are made to natural persons presumed to be making private copies. Within this disclosure, we
use the term "commercial channel sales" when referring to products intended for uses other than private copying and "consumer channel sales"
when referring to products intended for uses including private copying.
Since the Directive was implemented in 2002, we estimate that we have paid in excess of $100 million in levies to various ongoing collecting
societies related to commercial channel sales. Based on the CJEU's October 2010 ruling and subsequent litigation and law making activities, we
believe that these payments were not consistent with the Directive and should not have been paid to the various collecting societies. Accordingly,
subsequent to the October 21, 2010 ECJ ruling, we began withholding levy payments to the various collecting societies and, in 2011, we reversed
our existing accruals for unpaid levies related to commercial channel sales. However, we continued to
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accrue, but not pay, a liability for levies arising from consumer channel sales, in all applicable jurisdictions except France due to court rulings. See
Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of these court rulings. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had accrued liabilities of $5.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, associated with levies related to consumer
channel sales for which we are withholding payment.
Since the October 2010 CJEU ruling, we evaluate quarterly on a country-by-country basis whether (i) levies should be accrued on current
period commercial and/or consumer channel sales; and, (ii) accrued, but unpaid, copyright levies on prior period consumer channel sales should be
reversed. Our evaluation is made on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis and considers ongoing and cumulative developments related to levy
litigation and law making activities within each jurisdiction as well as throughout the EU. In 2015, we reversed $3.8 million of copyright levies as a
reduction of cost of sales. We did not reverse any amounts into cost of goods sold for prior year obligations in 2014. In 2013, we reversed $23.1
million of copyright levies as a reduction of cost of sales. However, we continued to accrue, but not pay, a liability for levies arising from consumer
channel sales, in all applicable jurisdictions except Italy and France due to court rulings. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had accrued
liabilities of $5.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, associated with levies related to consumer channel sales for which we are withholding
payment. See Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of reversals of
copyright levies.
Litigation. We record a liability when a loss from litigation is known or considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Our
current estimated range of liability related to pending litigation is based on claims for which we can estimate the amount or range of loss. Based
upon information presently available, we believe that accruals for these claims are adequate. Due to uncertainties related to both the amount and
range of loss on the remaining pending litigation, we are unable to make a reasonable estimate of the liability that could result from an unfavorable
outcome. While these matters could materially affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in future periods depending on
the final resolution, it is our opinion that after final disposition, any monetary liability to us beyond that provided in our Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of December 31, 2015, would not be material to our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. As additional information becomes
available, the potential liability related to pending litigation will be assessed and estimates will be revised as necessary.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosure related to recently
issued accounting standards.
Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
We may from time to time make written or oral forward-looking statements with respect to our future goals, including statements contained in
this Form 10-K, in our other filings with the SEC and in our reports to shareholders.
Certain information which does not relate to historical financial information may be deemed to constitute forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements include information concerning strategic
initiatives and potential acquisitions, the results of operations of our existing business lines and our ability to implement our restructuring plans, as
well as other actions, strategies and expectations, and are identifiable by use of the words “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “plans,”
“seeks,” “estimates,” “projects,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “might,” or “continues” or similar expressions. Such statements are subject to a wide range of
risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results in the future to differ materially from our historical results and those presently
anticipated or projected. We wish to caution investors not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date on which such statements are made, and we undertake no obligation to update such statements to reflect
events or circumstances arising after such date. Risk factors include various factors set forth from time to time in our filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission including the following: our ability to successfully implement our strategy for our existing business as well as other
lines of business that we may pursue; our ability to grow our business in new products with profitable margins and the rate of revenue decline for
certain existing products; our ability to meet future revenue growth, gross margin and earnings targets; our participation in any future joint
investment could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-making authority, our reliance on a partner's financial condition and disputes
between us and our partners; future acquisitions or business opportunities could involve unknown risks that could harm our business and
adversely affect our financial condition; our ability to successfully identify suitable acquisition targets to implement
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our new strategy and to compete for these opportunities with others who may have greater resources; our ability to conduct due diligence on
businesses we acquire to ensure that we have identified and addressed key aspects of liability and risk; the impact of expending significant
resources in considering acquisition targets or business opportunities that are not consummated; we may engage in business combinations that
are dilutive to existing shareholders, result in unanticipated accounting charges or otherwise harm our result of operations, and result in difficulties
in assimilating and integrating the operations, personnel, technologies, products and information systems of acquired companies or businesses;
the impact of additional material charges and expenses associated with our oversight of acquired or target businesses and the integration of
acquired businesses into our systems for financial reporting; previous or future acquisitions might not be successful and might adversely affect our
business, operating results, or financial condition; our ability to successfully integrate current and future acquired businesses into our existing
operations and achieve the expected economic benefits; our ability to effectively increase the size of our organization, if needed, and manage our
growth; acquisitions may require capital infusions; the possible need to raise additional debt or equity financing for acquisitions in addition to the
use of our excess cash; the ability to quickly develop, source, introduce and deliver differentiated and innovative products; our potential
dependence on third parties for new product introductions or technologies in order to introduce our own new products; our ability to successfully
implement restructuring plans; foreign currency fluctuations; the ready availability and price of energy and key raw materials or critical components
including the effects of natural disasters and our ability to pass along raw materials price increases to our customers; potential acquisitions or
investments in a foreign business or company with significant foreign operations may subject us to additional risks; continuing uncertainty in global
and regional economic conditions; our ability to identify, value, integrate and realize the expected benefits from any acquisition which has occurred
or may occur in connection with our strategy; the possibility that our goodwill and intangible assets or any goodwill or intangible assets that we
acquire may become impaired; the ability of our security products to withstand cyber-attacks; the loss of a major customer, partner or reseller;
changes in European law or practice related to the imposition or collectability of optical levies; the seasonality and volatility of the markets in
which we operate; significant changes in discount rates and other assumptions used in the valuation of our pension plans; changes in tax laws,
regulations and results of inspections by various tax authorities; tax consequences associated with our acquisition, holding and disposition of
target companies and assets; our ability to successfully defend our intellectual property rights and the ability or willingness of our suppliers to
provide adequate protection against third party intellectual property or product liability claims; the outcome of any pending or future litigation and
patent disputes; our ability to access financing to achieve strategic objectives and growth due to changes in the capital and credit markets; our
ability to retain and attract key employees to manage our existing businesses and the businesses we may acquire; increased compliance with
changing laws and regulations potentially affecting our operating results; failure to adequately protect our information systems from cyber-attacks;
the effect of the announcement of our review of strategic alternatives; the effect of the transition of our Board of Directors; the volatility of our
stock price due to our results or market trends; and the ability to meet the continued listing requirements of the NYSE; loss of or inability to attract
talented individuals to executive our strategic alternatives business strategy; the implementation of new systems and enhancements may be
disruptive and could impact our ability to accurately report our financial results; decreasing revenues and greater losses in our Nexsan business
may have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of operations and capital resources; the investment in Clinton Lighthouse Equities
Strategy Fund (Offshore) Ltd. may not product positive returns and may results in losses, as well as various factors set forth from time to time in
Item 1A of this Form 10-K and from time to time in our filings with the SEC.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
We are exposed to various market risks including volatility in foreign currency exchange rates and credit risk. International operations, which
comprised approximately 61 percent of our revenue in 2015, may be subject to various risks that are not present in domestic operations. The
additional risks include political and economic instability, terrorist activity, the possibility of expropriation, trade tariffs or embargoes, unfavorable
tax laws, restrictions on royalties, dividends and currency remittances, requirements for governmental approvals for new ventures and local
participation in operations such as local equity ownership and workers’ councils.
Our foreign currency hedging policy attempts to manage some of the foreign currency risks over near term periods; however, we cannot
ensure that these risk management activities will offset more than a portion of the adverse financial impact resulting from unfavorable movements
in foreign exchange rates or that medium and longer term effects of exchange rates will not be significant. Although we attempt to utilize hedging
to manage the impact of changes in currency exchange rates, our revenue or costs are adversely impacted when the U.S. dollar sustains a
strengthening position against currencies in which we sell products or a weakening exchange rate against currencies in which we incur costs.
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In accordance with established policies and procedures, we may utilize derivative financial instruments, including forward exchange contracts,
options, combination option strategies and swap agreements to manage certain of these exposures. Factors that could impact the effectiveness of
our hedging include the accuracy of our forecasts, the volatility of the currency markets and the availability of hedging instruments. We do not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes and we are not a party to leveraged derivative transactions. The
utilization of derivatives and hedging activities is described more fully in Note 12 - Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Financial Instruments
in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
As a result of our actions to terminate our Storage Media and Accessories businesses, the foreign exchange risk has significantly decreased
from prior year. As of December 31, 2015, we did not have any foreign currency forward or option contracts outstanding. This compares to $163.2
million notional amount of foreign currency forward and option contracts as of December 31, 2014, of which $29.4 million hedged recorded balance
sheet exposures.
We are exposed to credit risk associated with cash investments. We do not believe that our cash investments present significant credit risk
because the counterparties to the instruments consist of major financial institutions.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Imation Corp.:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statement of operations, of comprehensive loss, of
shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Imation Corp. and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company's management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 15, 2016
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IMATION CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net revenue
Cost of goods sold

$

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Intangible impairments
Litigation settlement
Goodwill impairment
Restructuring and other

529.2
427.9

$

729.5
591.1

$

860.8
672.1

101.3

138.4

188.7

137.8
19.2
37.6
—
36.1
47.9

174.7
18.8
—
—
35.4
13.6

181.6
18.4
—
(2.5)
—
11.3

Total
Operating loss
Other (income) expense
Interest income
Interest expense
Other expense, net

278.6
(177.3)

242.5
(104.1)

208.8
(20.1)

(0.4)
3.3
1.3

(0.5)
2.6
3.1

(0.2)
2.5
0.6

Total
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax provision

4.2
(181.5)
12.5

5.2
(109.3)
3.1

2.9
(23.0)
1.4

Loss from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
(Loss)/gain on sale of discontinued businesses, net of income taxes
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

(194.0)

(112.4)

(24.4)

—
—

(1.7)
(0.6)

0.9
(20.9)

—

(2.3)

(20.0)

Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per common share — basic:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per common share — diluted:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net loss
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividend paid per common share

$

(194.0)

$

(114.7)

$

(44.4)

$

(4.84)
—
(4.84)

$

(2.74)
(0.06)
(2.80)

$

(0.60)
(0.49)
(1.10)

$

(4.84)
—
(4.84)

(2.74)
(0.06)
(2.80)

$

(0.60)
(0.49)
(1.10)

40.1
40.1
—

41.0
41.0
—

$

$

$

40.5
40.5
—

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IMATION CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Net loss

$

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Net unrealized (losses) gains on derivative financial instruments:
Net holding gains arising during the period
Reclassification adjustment for net realized (gains) losses recorded in net loss
Total net unrealized (losses) gains on derivative financial instruments
Net pension adjustments, net of tax:
Liability adjustments for defined benefit pension plans
Reclassification of adjustments for defined benefit plans recorded in net loss
Total net pension adjustments
Unrealized foreign currency translation losses
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
$

Comprehensive loss

(194.0)

$

(114.7)

$

(44.4)

(1.4)
(3.7)

6.1
(3.4)

7.0
(7.3)

(5.1)

2.7

(0.3)

(1.5)
2.0

(10.4)
1.4

10.7
5.5

0.5

(9.0)

16.2

(6.7)

(15.7)

(4.5)

(11.3)

(22.0)

11.4

(205.3)

$

(136.7)

$

(33.0)

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IMATION CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2015

2014

(In millions, except per
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Assets held for sale
Other current assets

$

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other assets

70.4
25.4
10.5
20.6
24.8

$

151.7
4.6
4.2
3.8
4.1

Total assets

114.6
134.4
57.7
1.2
31.5
339.4
45.0
57.9
36.1
20.8

$

168.4

$

499.2

$

44.3
0.2
65.6

$

95.5
18.9
98.2

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Short-term debt
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Other liabilities

110.1
33.9

212.6
45.8

Total liabilities

144.0

258.4

—
0.4
1,042.0
(893.9)
(96.1)
(28.0)

—
0.4
1,034.6
(699.9)
(84.8)
(9.5)

Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 25 million shares, none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 100 million shares, 44.4 million issued
Additional paid-in capital
Retained deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, at cost
Total shareholders’ equity

24.4
$

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

168.4

240.8
$

499.2

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IMATION CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Common
Stock

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Retained
Deficit

Total
Shareholders’
Equity

Treasury
Stock

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Balance as of December 31, 2012

$

0.4

$

1,052.6

$

Net loss

(540.8)

$

(74.2)

$

(37.6)

$

(44.4)

400.4
(44.4)

Purchase of treasury stock

(2.5)

(2.5)

Restricted stock grants and other

(4.2)

7.9

3.7

401(k) matching contribution

(3.6)

5.3

1.7

Stock-based compensation related to options

2.9

2.9

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

(4.5)

(4.5)

Pension adjustments, net of tax

16.2

16.2

Cash flow hedging, net of tax

(0.3)

Balance as of December 31, 2013

$

0.4

$

1,047.7

$

Net loss

(585.2)

$

(62.8)

(0.3)
$

(26.9)

$

(114.7)

Exercise of stock options

(114.7)

(1.7)

2.1

0.4

(2.5)

(2.5)

(10.3)

13.5

3.2

(2.5)

4.3

1.8

Purchase of treasury stock
Restricted stock grants and other
401(k) matching contribution
Stock-based compensation related to options

1.4

1.4

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment
Pension adjustments, net of tax
Cash flow hedging, net of tax
Balance as of December 31, 2014

(15.7)

(15.7)

(9.0)

(9.0)

2.7
$

0.4

$

1,034.6

$

Net loss

(699.9)

$

(84.8)

2.7
$

(9.5)

$

(194.0)

240.8
(194.0)

Purchase of treasury stock

(1.7)

Restricted stock grants and other

373.2

3.8

Value of shares received in TDK transaction

(1.7)

(3.2)

0.6

(13.6)

(13.6)

Issuance of stock for acquisition

2.6

2.6

Contingent consideration in shares

0.6

0.6

Stock-based compensation related to options

0.4

0.4

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

(6.7)

Pension adjustments, net of tax
Cash flow hedging, net of tax
Balance as of December 31, 2015

$

0.4

$

1,042.0

$

(893.9)

$

(6.7)

0.5

0.5

(5.1)

(5.1)

(96.1)

$

(28.0)

$

24.4

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IMATION CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes and valuation allowance
Goodwill, intangible and other asset impairments
Inventory write-offs
Bad debt expense
Pension settlement and curtailments
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration
Gain on sale of land
Gain from RDX sale
Gain from TDK transaction (non-cash)
Other, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Assets held for sale
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and other liabilities
Restricted cash

$

(194.0)

$

(114.7)

$

(44.4)

16.8
1.7
13.0
99.3
9.7
5.2
0.2
—
—
(4.5)
(9.1)
(0.6)

21.7
5.3
3.2
37.8
4.6
1.0
0.2
—
—
—
—
(5.0)

23.7
6.9
(4.7)
7.1
2.7
1.0
12.7
(0.6)
(9.8)
—
—
(6.9)

101.2
35.2
(19.4)
29.0
(50.4)
(41.5)
(9.6)

18.1
15.5
4.0
11.4
6.8
(15.5)
(2.2)

47.8
64.2
(2.7)
10.5
(63.3)
(29.6)
7.5

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of assets and business
Recovery of investments
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

(17.8)

(7.8)

22.1

(3.0)
3.3
—
(3.1)

(5.6)
3.4
—
—

(7.0)
11.0
0.2
1.6

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Purchase of treasury stock
Debt issuance costs
Debt borrowings
Debt repayments
Contingent consideration payments
Exercise of stock options

(2.8)

(2.2)

5.8

(1.7)
—
16.5
(35.0)
—
—

(2.5)
—
38.7
(39.2)
—
0.4

(2.5)
(0.4)
4.9
(4.9)
(0.5)
—

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(20.2)
(3.4)

(2.6)
(5.4)

(3.4)
(0.6)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of period

(44.2)
114.6

(18.0)
132.6

$

Cash and cash equivalents — end of period

70.4

$

114.6

23.9
108.7
$

132.6

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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IMATION CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 — Background and Basis of Presentation
Background
Imation Corp., a Delaware Corporation, is a global data storage and data security company. With a 60-year history of technology leadership,
the Company's mission is to help organizations create an integrated storage, private cloud, file sync and share enterprise solution. The Company
historically operated in two reportable segments: Consumer Storage and Accessories (which consisted of our Consumer Storage Media and Audio
and Accessories businesses) and Tiered Storage and Security Solutions (which consisted of our Commercial Storage Media and Storage and
Security Solutions (i.e. Nexsan and IronKey) businesses).
The company is executing on a restructuring plan whereby it is in the final phases of winding down its Consumer Storage and Accessories,
Audio and Accessories, and Commercial Storage Media businesses (combined the "legacy businesses"). Additionally, in January 2016, we sold
our IronKey business (which was part of our historical Tiered Storage and Security Solutions reportable segment). Going forward, we will focus on
our Nexsan business as well as explore strategic alternatives to deploy any excess capital.
Basis of Presentation
The financial statements are presented on a consolidated basis and include the accounts of the Company and our wholly-owned subsidiaries.
See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further information regarding consolidation. Our Consolidated Financial Statements
are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). All significant inter-company
transactions have been eliminated.
The Company’s continued operations and ultimate ability to continue as a going concern will depend on its ability to enhance revenue and
operating results, enter into strategic relationships or raise additional capital. The Company can provide no assurances that such plans will occur
and if the Company is unable to return to profitability or otherwise raise sufficient capital, there would be a material adverse effect on its business.
Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported asset and liability amounts and the contingent asset and liability disclosures at the date of the financial statements, as well
as the revenue and expense amounts reported during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Foreign Currency. For our international operations, where the local currency has been determined to be the functional currency, assets and
liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates with cumulative translation adjustments included as a component of shareholders’ equity.
Income and expense items are translated at average foreign exchange rates prevailing during the year. Gains and losses from foreign currency
transactions are included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of
purchase. The carrying amounts reported in our Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash equivalents approximate fair value.
Restricted Cash. Cash related to contractual obligations or restricted by management for specific use is classified as restricted and is included
in other current assets and/or other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets depending on the timing of the restrictions. We had $9.9 million of
restricted cash in other current assets as of December 31, 2015 which relates to court ordered vendor payment disputes, employee severance
payments and collateral deposits required by our bank associated with outstanding letters of credit. In other assets we had $1.9 million and $2.2
million of restricted cash as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which relates to cash set aside as indemnification for certain
customers.
Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowances. Trade accounts receivable are stated net of estimated allowances, which primarily represent
estimated amounts associated with customer returns, discounts on payment terms and the inability of certain customers to make the required
payments. When determining the allowances, we take several factors into consideration, including prior history of accounts receivable credit
activity and write-offs, the overall composition of accounts receivable aging, the types of customers and our day-to-day knowledge of
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specific customers. Changes in the allowances are recorded as reductions of net revenue or as bad debt expense (included in selling, general and
administrative expense), as appropriate, in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. In general, accounts which have entered into an
insolvency action, have been returned by a collection agency as uncollectible or whose existence can no longer be confirmed are written off in full
and both the receivable and the associated allowance are removed from our Consolidated Balance Sheet. If, subsequent to the write-off, a portion
of the account is recovered, it is recorded as a reduction of bad debt expense in our Consolidated Statements of Operations at the time cash is
received.
Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis. We provide estimated
inventory write-downs for excess, slow-moving and obsolete inventory as well as inventory with a carrying value in excess of estimated net
realizable value.
Derivative Financial Instruments. We recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at their estimated fair value. Fair value of our derivative
contracts with durations of twelve months or less are classified as current and durations of greater than twelve months as non-current. Changes in
the estimated fair value of derivatives that are not designated as, and qualify for, hedge accounting are recorded in our results of operations. We
do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes, and we are not a party to leveraged derivatives. If a
derivative is designated as, and qualifies for, hedge accounting, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative
are either offset against the change in fair value of the underlying assets or liabilities through operations or recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss in shareholders’ equity until the underlying hedged item is recognized in operations. These gains and losses are generally
recognized as an adjustment to cost of goods sold for inventory-related hedge transactions, or as adjustments to foreign currency transaction
gains or losses included in non-operating expenses for foreign denominated payables- and receivables-related hedge transactions. Cash flows
attributable to these derivatives are included with cash flows of the associated hedged items. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair
value is immediately recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. See Note 12 - Fair Value Measurements for more information on
our derivative financial instruments.
Investments. Investments include trading investments. The corresponding gain or loss associated with these investments is reported in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations as a component of other expense.
Assets Held for Sale. Assets held for sale consists of assets recorded at the lower of the carrying value or fair value less costs to sell for
which management has committed to plan to sell the assets, the sale is probable and will occur within a year. We had $20.6 million and $1.2
million of assets held for sale as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The assets classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015
relate to our corporate headquarter facility, Canadian facility and the assets to be sold related to the Memorex trademark transaction. See Note 18
- Subsequent Events for further information on the corporate headquarter facility and Memorex transactions. The assets classified as held for sale
as of December 31, 2014 relate to our Weatherford, Oklahoma facility.
Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold and other improvements that extend an asset’s useful life
or productive capabilities, are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation
of assets sold or otherwise disposed are removed from the related accounts, and the gains or losses are reflected in the results of operations.
Property, plant and equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated depreciable
lives range from 10 to 20 years for buildings and 5 to 10 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehold and other improvements are amortized
over the remaining life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is shorter. Depreciation expense was $7.0 million,
$8.8 million and $9.4 million for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Intangible Assets. We record all assets and liabilities acquired in purchase acquisitions, including intangibles, at estimated fair value. The
initial recognition of intangible assets, the determination of useful lives and, if necessary, subsequent impairment analyses require management to
make subjective estimates of how the acquired assets will perform in the future using certain valuation methods. See Note 6 - Intangible Assets
and Goodwill for further information on our intangible assets and impairment testing.
Goodwill. Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. Goodwill is not amortized. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter, or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill is considered impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its
implied fair value. The Company may assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that
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the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, including goodwill. If we determine in this assessment that the fair value of the
reporting unit is more than its carrying amount we may conclude that there is no need to perform Step 1 of the impairment test. We have an
unconditional option to bypass the qualitative assessment for any reporting unit in any period and proceed directly to performing Step 1 of the
goodwill impairment test.
Step 1 of the impairment test involves comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to which goodwill was assigned to its carrying amount. If
fair value is deemed to be less than carrying value, Step 2 of the impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill
with the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill is greater than the implied fair value
of the reporting unit's goodwill, an impairment loss must be recognized for the excess. This involves measuring the fair value of the reporting unit's
assets and liabilities (both recognized and unrecognized) at the time of the impairment test. The difference between the reporting unit's fair value
and the fair values assigned to the reporting unit's individual assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill. See
Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill for further information on our goodwill and impairment testing.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We periodically review the carrying value of our property and equipment and our intangible assets to test
whether current events or circumstances indicate that such carrying value may not be recoverable. For the testing of long-lived assets that are
"held for use," if the tests indicate that the carrying value of the asset group that contains the long-lived asset being evaluated is greater than the
expected undiscounted cash flows to be generated by such asset or asset group, an impairment loss would be recognized. The impairment loss is
determined by the amount by which the carrying value of such asset group exceeds its estimated fair value. We generally measure fair value by
considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting estimated future cash flows from such assets using an appropriate discount rate. See
Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill for further information on impairment testing.
Assets to be disposed of and qualify as being "held for sale" are carried at the lower of their carrying value or fair value less costs to sell.
Management judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value of assets and, accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from such
estimates.
Revenue Recognition. We sell a wide range of data storage, mobile security and consumer storage solutions audio products and accessories.
Net revenue consists primarily of data storage, mobile security, magnetic, optical, flash media, consumer electronics and accessories sales. We
recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, installation has been completed (if applicable) or
services have been rendered, fees are fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. For product sales, delivery is considered to
have occurred when the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the customer. For inventory maintained at the customer site, revenue is
recognized at the time these products are sold by the customer. We base our estimates for returns on historical experience and have not
experienced significant fluctuations between estimated and actual return activity. Non-income based taxes collected from customers are also
recorded as revenue and include levies and various excise taxes, mainly in non-U.S. jurisdictions. These taxes included in revenue in 2015, 2014,
and 2013 were $4.9 million, $7.1 million, and $10.3 million, respectively.
The majority of the Company’s Nexsan and IronKey products have both software and non-software components that together deliver the
products’ essential functionality. The software is embedded within the hardware and sold together as a single storage solution to the customer.
Accordingly, the software and non-software components do not qualify as separate units of accounting as prescribed in Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 605-25 and are combined as a single unit of accounting. There are no situations where revenue is recognized separately for
software.
We also offer services in conjunction with our Nexsan and IronKey products which may include installation, training, hardware maintenance
and software support. For such services that are determined to be essential to the functionality of the product, the product and services do not
qualify as separate units of accounting as prescribed in ASC 605-25 and are combined as a single unit of accounting. In situations where the sale
of our Storage and Security Solutions products and associated services qualify as multiple element arrangements, we allocate arrangement
consideration to each unit of accounting based on its relative selling price, and revenue is recognized for each element when all of the criteria for
revenue recognition for such elements have been met. Revenue from services is not a significant component of total consolidated revenues.
Revenue associated with stand-alone service arrangements (such as maintenance arrangements) that are sold separately is recorded ratably
over the service period.
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Rebates that are provided to our customers are accounted for as a reduction of revenue at the time of sale based on an estimate of the cost to
honor the related rebate programs. The rebate programs that we offer vary across our businesses as we serve numerous markets. The most
common incentives relate to amounts paid or credited to customers that are volume-based and rebates to support promotional activities.
Concentrations of Credit Risk. We sell a wide range of products and services to a diversified base of customers around the world and perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition. Therefore, we believe there is no material concentration of credit risk. No single
customer represented more than 10 percent of total net revenue or accounts receivable in 2015, 2014, or 2013.
Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold includes raw materials, direct labor, manufacturing overhead, shipping and receiving costs, freight
costs, depreciation of manufacturing equipment and other less significant indirect costs related to the production of our products.
Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses. SG&A expenses include sales and marketing, customer service, finance, legal, human
resources, information technology, general management and similar expenses.
Research and Development Costs. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs include
salaries, payroll taxes, employee benefit costs, supplies, depreciation and maintenance of research equipment.
Rebates Received. We receive rebates from some of our inventory vendors if we achieve pre-determined purchasing thresholds. These
rebates are accounted for as a reduction of the price of the vendor's products and are included as a reduction of our cost of goods sold in the
period in which the purchased inventory is sold.
Income Taxes. We are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves
estimating our actual current tax obligations based on expected taxable income, statutory tax rates and tax credits allowed in the various
jurisdictions in which we operate. Tax laws require certain items to be included in our tax returns at different times than the items are reflected in
our results of operations. Some of these differences are permanent, such as expenses that are not deductible in our tax returns, and some are
temporary differences that will reverse over time. Temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. We must assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be realized and establish a valuation allowance to
the extent necessary.
We record income taxes using the asset and liability approach. Under this approach, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities. We measure deferred tax
assets and liabilities using the enacted statutory tax rates that are expected to apply in the years in which the temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or paid.
We regularly assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered in the future. In accordance with accounting rules, a valuation
allowance is recorded to the extent we conclude a deferred tax asset is not considered to be more-likely-than-not to be realized. We consider all
positive and negative evidence related to the realization of the deferred tax assets in assessing the need for a valuation allowance. If we determine
it is more-likely-than-not that we will not realize all or part of our deferred tax assets, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset will be charged to
earnings in the period such determination is made.
Our income tax returns are subject to review by various U.S. and foreign taxing authorities. As such, we record accruals for items that we
believe may be challenged by these taxing authorities. The threshold for recognizing the benefit of a tax return position in the financial statements
is that the position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained by the taxing authorities based solely on the technical merits of the position. If the
recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is measured and recognized as the largest amount of tax benefit that, in our judgment, is greater than
50 percent likely to be realized. Interest and penalties recorded for uncertain tax positions are included in our income tax provision.
Treasury Stock. Our repurchases of shares of common stock are recorded at cost as treasury stock and are presented as a reduction of
shareholders’ equity. When treasury shares are reissued, we use a last-in, first-out method, and the difference between repurchase cost and fair
value at reissuance is treated as an adjustment to equity.
Stock-Based Compensation. Stock-based compensation awards classified as equity awards are measured at fair value at the date of grant
and expensed over their vesting or service periods. We also have stock appreciation
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rights outstanding which are considered liability awards as the settlement of these awards, if they were to vest, would be in cash. If these awards
were determined to be probable of achieving its stock price conditions and revenue performance conditions, we would record the estimated fair
value of such awards as a liability and re-measure their estimated value each reporting period.
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The assumptions used
in the valuation model are supported primarily by historical indicators and current market conditions. Expected volatilities are based on historical
volatility of our stock and are calculated using the historical weekly close rate for a period of time equal to the expected term. The risk-free rate for
the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. We use historical data and management
judgment to estimate option exercise and employee termination activity within the valuation model. The expected term of stock options granted is
based on historical data and represents the period of time that stock options granted are expected to be outstanding. It is calculated on an
aggregated basis and estimated based on an analysis of options already exercised and any foreseeable trends or changes in recipients’ behavior.
In determining the expected term, we consider the vesting period of the awards, the contractual term of the awards, historical average holding
periods, stock price history, impacts from recent restructuring initiatives and the relative weight for each of these factors. The dividend yield, if
applicable, is based on the latest dividend payments made on or announced by the date of the grant. Forfeitures are estimated based on historical
experience and current demographics. See Note 8 - Stock-Based Compensation for further information regarding stock-based compensation.
Weighted Average Basic and Diluted Shares Outstanding. Basic (loss) earnings per common share is calculated using the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted (loss) earnings per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average basic
shares outstanding plus the dilutive effect of our stock-based compensation plans using the “treasury stock” method. Unvested restricted stock
and treasury shares are excluded from the calculation of weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Once restricted stock vests, it
is included in our common shares outstanding.
Potential common shares are excluded from the computation of diluted (loss) earnings per common share when the effect would be antidilutive. All potential common shares are anti-dilutive in periods of net loss available to common shareholders. Stock options are also anti-dilutive
when the exercise price of these instruments is greater than the average market price of the Company's common stock for the period. See Note 3
- (Loss) Earnings per Common Share for our calculation of weighted average basic and diluted shares outstanding.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued new accounting guidance related to revenue recognition. This new guidance
will replace all current U.S. GAAP guidance on revenue recognition and eliminate all industry-specific guidance. The new revenue recognition
standard provides a unified model to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The underlying principle is that an entity will recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods
or services. The guidance provides a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is recognized. Other major provisions
include capitalization of certain contract costs, consideration of time value of money in the transaction price and allowing estimates of variable
consideration to be recognized before contingencies are resolved in certain circumstances. The guidance also requires enhanced disclosures
regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. In July 2015, the
guidance was revised to be effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2017. The guidance permits the use of
either a retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. We have not yet selected a transition method and are currently evaluating the impact
of this new guidance on our financial position and results of operations.
In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-15 - Presentation of
Financial Statements, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The ASU requires management to
evaluate whether there are conditions and events that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one
year after the financial statements are issued and if Management’s plans will alleviate that doubt. Management will be required to make this
evaluation for both annual and interim reporting periods. The accounting guidance is effective for Imation beginning in the first quarter of 2016.
In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued new accounting guidance related to debt issuance costs. Under this new
standard, debt issuance costs reported on the consolidated balance sheet would be
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reflected as a direct deduction from the related debt liability rather than as an asset. For Imation, this is effective January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. Retroactive application to prior periods is required. As this standard impacts only the classification of certain amounts within
the consolidated balance sheet, Imation does not expect this new standard to have a material impact on our financial position and results of
operations.
In May 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued new accounting guidance related to the disclosures for investments in certain
entities that calculate net asset value per share (or its equivalent). This standard modifies existing disclosure requirements such that investments
for which the practical expedient is used to measure their fair value at net asset value (NAV) would be removed from the fair value hierarchy
disclosures. Instead, an entity would be required to include those investments as a reconciling item such that the total fair value amount of
investments in the fair value hierarchy disclosure is consistent with the amount on the balance sheet. Changes were also made to the
requirements in a sponsor’s employee benefit plan asset disclosures. For Imation, this standard is effective January 1, 2016, with retrospective
application required. Early adoption is permitted. As this standard only impacts certain disclosures, it will not impact the Company’s consolidated
results of operations and financial condition.
In July 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-11, Simplifying the
Measurement of Inventory, which modifies existing requirements regarding measuring inventory at the lower of cost or market. Under existing
standards, the market amount requires consideration of replacement cost, net realizable value (NRV), and NRV less an approximately normal profit
margin. The new ASU replaces market with NRV, defined as estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably
predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. This eliminates the need to determine and consider replacement cost or NRV less an
approximately normal profit margin when measuring inventory. For Imation, this standard is effective prospectively beginning January 1, 2017, with
early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this new ASU on Imation’s consolidated results of operations and
financial condition.
In September 2015, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2015-16, Business Combinations
(Topic 805), which requires that an acquirer recognizes adjustments to provisional amounts that are identified during the measurement period in the
reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. This guidance requires that the acquirer record, in the same period’s financial
statements, the effect on earnings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any, as a result of the change in provisional
amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. This guidance requires an entity to present separately on the
face of the income statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the amount recorded in current-period earnings by line item that would have
been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The
accounting guidance is effective for Imation beginning in the first quarter of 2016. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this new ASU
on Imation’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which
revises the accounting related to (1) the classification and measurement of investments in equity securities and (2) the presentation of certain fair
value changes for financial liabilities measured at fair value. The ASU also amends certain disclosure requirements associated with the fair value
of financial instruments. The new guidance requires the fair value measurement of investments in equity securities and other ownership interests
in an entity, including investments in partnerships, unincorporated joint ventures and limited liability companies (collectively, equity securities) that
do not result in consolidation and are not accounted for under the equity method. Entities will need to measure these investments and recognize
changes in fair value in net income. Entities will no longer be able to recognize unrealized holding gains and losses on equity securities they
classify under current guidance as available for sale in other comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no longer be able to use the cost method
of accounting for equity securities that do not have readily determinable fair values. Instead, for these types of equity investments that do not
otherwise qualify for the net asset value practical expedient, entities will be permitted to elect a practicability exception and measure the
investment at cost less impairment plus or minus observable price changes (in orderly transactions). The ASU also establishes an incremental
recognition and disclosure requirement related to the presentation of fair value changes of financial liabilities for which the fair value option (FVO)
has been elected. Under this guidance, an entity would be required to separately present in OCI the portion of the total fair value change
attributable to instrument-specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting the entire amount in earnings. For derivative liabilities for which the FVO has
been elected, however, any changes in fair value attributable to instrument-specific credit risk would continue to be presented in net income, which
is consistent with current guidance. For Imation, this standard is effective beginning January 1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to
beginning retained earnings, except for guidance relative to equity securities without readily
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determinable fair values which is applied prospectively. The Company is currently assessing this ASU’s impacts on our consolidated results of
operations and financial condition.
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842), which requires lessees to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet. ASU 2016-02 is to be applied using
a modified retrospective approach at the beginning of the earliest comparative period in the financial statements. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for
the company beginning on January 1, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard
on its consolidated financial statements.
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic
740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which amends the guidance requiring companies to separate deferred income tax liabilities
and assets into current and non-current amounts in a classified statement of financial position. This accounting guidance simplifies the
presentation of deferred income taxes, such that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as non-current in a classified statement of
financial position. This determination is still required to be performed at a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. This accounting guidance is effective for
Imation beginning in the first quarter of 2017, but we have elected to adopt this guidance prospectively as of December 31, 2015. As a result, we
have classified all deferred tax liabilities and assets as non-current in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2015. Amounts on the
December 31, 2014 Consolidated Balance Sheet were not retrospectively adjusted.
Note 3 — (Loss) Earnings per Common Share
The following table sets forth the computation of the weighted average basic and diluted loss per share:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Numerator:
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss

$

(194.0)
—

$

(112.4)
(2.3)

$

(24.4)
(20.0)

$

(194.0)

$

(114.7)

$

(44.4)

Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period
Dilutive effect of stock-based compensation plans

40.1
—

41.0
—

40.5
—

Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding during the period

40.1

41.0

40.5

Basic loss per common share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net loss
Diluted loss per common share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net loss
Anti-dilutive shares excluded from calculation

$

(4.84)
—
(4.84)

$

(2.74)
(0.06)
(2.80)

$

(0.60)
(0.49)
(1.10)

$

(4.84)
—
(4.84)
3.6

$

(2.74)
(0.06)
(2.80)
4.5

$

(0.60)
(0.49)
(1.10)
6.1
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Note 4 — Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions
Connected Data, Inc.
On October 14, 2015, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Connected Data, Inc. (CDI) to augment the Company’s vision in delivering
a comprehensive and secure storage, backup and collaboration ecosystem. The purchase price consisted of a cash payment of $0.7 million,
issuance of 1,511,151 unregistered shares of Imation common stock valued at $2.6 million (based on applying a 15% liquidity discount to the fair
value of our stock) at acquisition date, $2.6 million associated with the repayment of all of CDI's outstanding debt at the time of acquisition and
future contingent consideration totaling up to $5 million (considered to have an estimated fair value of $0.8 million at the time of acquisition) for a
total purchase price of $6.7 million. The purchase price allocation resulted in goodwill of $3.8 million which is primarily attributable to its workforce,
strategic synergies and intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition. This goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.
The following table illustrates our finalized allocation of the purchase price to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as of acquisition date:
Amount
(In millions)

Cash
Inventory
Prepaid and other
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue - current

$

0.2
0.2
0.1
4.3
3.8
(0.7)
(1.1)
(0.1)

$

6.7

Our allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in the recognition of the following intangible asset:
Weighted
Average
Amount

Life

(In millions)

Other - developed technology

$

4.3

6 years

Actual results related to CDI included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 were not
material.
Due to the immateriality of this acquisition, no pro forma disclosures have been presented.
Goodwill acquired in the acquisition of CDI was fully allocated to our Nexsan reporting unit. Upon the acquisition of CDI, we quickly began
integrating CDI with our Nexsan business, both operationally and with respect to its management team.
The contingent consideration arrangement includes the potential for three separate payments of cash and unregistered shares of Imation
common stock based on defined revenue targets. The first contingent consideration payment is for $0.1 million of cash and 313,538 shares of
unregistered Imation common stock. The first contingent payment is based on revenue targets achieved from January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016.
The second contingent consideration payment is for $0.3 million of cash and 574,819 shares of unregistered Imation common stock. The second
contingent payment is based on revenue targets achieved from July 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016. The third contingent consideration payment is
for $0.3 million of cash and 574,819 shares of unregistered Imation common stock. The third contingent payment is based on revenue targets
achieved from January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017. We used the real option valuation technique for calculating the estimated fair value of contingent
consideration with a 15% discount rate.
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Discontinued Operations
On February 13, 2013, we announced our plans to divest our XtremeMac and Memorex consumer electronics businesses. As a part of exiting
these disposal groups, we sold the assets directly associated with these businesses, which primarily included inventory, tooling and intangible
assets.
Memorex
On October 15, 2013 we completed the sale of the Memorex consumer electronics business for $9.3 million of total consideration consisting
of two separate receivables from the purchaser. The first was a $3.8 million note receivable that required a $0.9 million payment in December 2013
with the remainder to be paid by March 31, 2014. We received the required $0.9 million cash payment during the fourth quarter of 2013. The $2.9
million note receivable balance was restructured into four installments with final payment due in 2015. Imation received $1.6 million of note
receivable balance in 2014 and the remaining $1.3 million was paid in 2015. The second receivable was for $5.5 million and did not bear interest.
This second receivable required payments between 2014 and 2018 in increasing annual increments (ranging from $0.2 million in 2014 to $2.2
million in 2018). Our arrangement for the sale of this business also provided Imation with the ability to receive additional consideration through
2018 to the extent the purchaser’s sales exceed certain thresholds.
On January 4, 2016, the Company sold its Memorex trademark and corresponding trademark licenses. Amounts due to the Company after
January 4, 2016 associated with the $5.5 million receivable described above were part of the assets sold in this transaction and were classified as
an asset held for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015. See Note 18 - Subsequent Events for information on the
Memorex trademark sale. The remaining receivable due to Imation from the 2013 sale of the Memorex consumer electronics business is $0.2
million and is classified as an other current asset on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015.
The sale of our Memorex consumer electronics business resulted in a net gain of $0.9 million which was recorded as an element of
discontinued operations during the year ended December 31, 2013.
XtremeMac
On January 31, 2014 we completed the sale of the XtremeMac business. The sales price consisted of $0.3 million of cash consideration
received at closing and an interest-bearing note receivable of $0.3 million due on December 15, 2015. The sales price also included additional
future cash consideration originally estimated at $3.0 million and which was based on the proceeds the purchaser was able to achieve from selling
the acquired inventory. During 2013, we adjusted downward our estimate of the expected consideration to be received by $1.2 million. Accordingly,
we adjusted the carrying value of the XtremeMac disposal group, and recorded a charge of $1.2 million in 2013 which brought our total full-year
2013 impairment charge associated with this disposal group to $6.7 million. We recorded a charge of an additional $1.2 million in 2014 related to
the expected consideration, which is included in the loss on sale of discontinued businesses. We have collected the remaining consideration. The
impairment charges are recorded as an element of discontinued operations.
Results of Discontinued Operations
The operating results for these businesses are presented in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as discontinued operations for all
periods presented and reflect revenues and expenses that are directly attributable to these businesses that were eliminated from our ongoing
operations.
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The key components of the results of discontinued operations were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Net revenue

$

—

$

0.4

$

40.7

(Loss) gain on sale of discontinued businesses, net of income taxes
Loss from operations of discontinued businesses, before income taxes
Adjustment to carrying value of disposal group
Income tax benefit

$

—
—
—
—

$

(1.7)
(0.6)
—
—

$

0.9
(14.2)
(6.7)
—

Loss from discontinued businesses, net of income taxes

$

—

$

(2.3)

$

(20.0)

Due to the expected finalization of the wind-down of our legacy business in 2016 as well as the sale of IronKey in 2016, it is expected that a
substantial amount of our historical operations will require presentation as discontinued operations in future periods.
Note 5 — Supplemental Balance Sheet Information
Additional supplemental balance sheet information is provided in the tables that follow.
As of December 31,
2015

2014
(In millions)

Inventories
Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials and supplies
Total inventories
Property, Plant and Equipment
Land
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

$

2.4
0.7
7.4

$

51.1
0.7
5.9

$

10.5

$

57.7

$

—
4.9
10.3
—

$

1.2
94.7
88.0
0.1

Total
Less accumulated depreciation

15.2
(10.6)

Property, plant and equipment, net
Assets held for sale
Corporate headquarter facility (Note 18)
Other facilities
Memorex trademark and associated receivables (Note 18)
Total assets held for sale

184.0
(139.0)

$

4.6

$

45.0

$

11.0
0.2
9.4

$

—
1.2
—

$

20.6

$

1.2

During 2015, we classified our corporate headquarters facility as an asset held for sale. The amounts transferred out of property, plant and
equipment and accumulated depreciation in 2015, was $125.6 million and $93.5 million, respectively. The carrying value of $32.1 million was
subsequently written down to $11.0 million, which is the value of net proceeds received from the property sale that occurred on January 4, 2016
and is reported in assets held for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015. See Note 7 - Restructuring and Other
Expense for further information on the facility write down and Note 18 - Subsequent Events for further information on the facility sale.
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As a result of our restructuring plan to wind down our legacy business, the Company recorded $3.5 million of write downs of property, plant and
equipment for the year ended December 31, 2015. Property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation in 2015 were adjusted based on
fair market value by $24.6 million and $21.1 million, respectively. See Note 7 - Restructuring and Other Expense
Accounts
Receivable*
(In millions)

Reserves and Allowances
Balance, as of December 31, 2012
Additions
Write-offs, net of recoveries

$

18.0
6.6
(10.1)

Balance, as of December 31, 2013
Additions
Write-offs, net of recoveries

$

14.5
2.9
(8.3)

Balance, as of December 31, 2014
Additions
Write-offs, net of recoveries

$

9.1
9.9
(10.0)

Balance, as of December 31, 2015

$

9.0

*Accounts receivable reserves and allowances include estimated amounts for customer returns, discounts on payment terms and the inability
of certain customers to make the required payment.
Other current assets includes $9.9 million of restricted cash as of December 31, 2015. There was no restricted cash in other current assets as
of December 31, 2014.
Other current liabilities (included as a separate line item in our Consolidated Balance Sheet) includes the following:
As of December 31,
2015

2014
(In millions)

Rebates payable
Accrued payroll
Deferred Revenue
Restructuring accruals (Note 7)
Other current liabilities
Total other current liabilities

$

5.5
6.2
8.2
16.9
28.8

$

26.9
18.4
8.3
1.3
43.3

$

65.6

$

98.2
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Note 6 — Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of the following:

Trade Names

Customer
Relationships

Software

Developed
Technology & Other

Total

(In millions)

December 31, 2014
Cost
Accumulated amortization

$

34.2
(14.0)

$

60.1
(55.3)

$

20.0
(3.7)

$

26.2
(9.6)

$

140.5
(82.6)

Intangible assets, net

$

20.2

$

4.8

$

16.3

$

16.6

$

57.9

December 31, 2015
Cost
Accumulated amortization

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

4.3
(0.1)

$

4.3
(0.1)

Intangible assets, net

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

4.2

$

4.2

The following table presents the changes in intangible assets:

Trade Names

Customer
Relationships

Software

Developed
Technology & Other

Total

(In millions)

December 31, 2014
Acquisition
Amortization
Impairment losses
Foreign currency translation
TDK brand transaction (Note 16)
Memorex trademark (Note 18)

$

20.2
—
(3.8)
(6.0)
—
(4.5)
(5.9)

$

4.8
—
(1.7)
(3.1)
—
—
—

$

December 31, 2015

$

—

$

—

$

16.3
—
(1.6)
(14.7)
—
—
—
—

$

16.6
4.3
(2.7)
(13.8)
(0.2)
—
—

$

57.9
4.3
(9.8)
(37.6)
(0.2)
(4.5)
(5.9)

$

4.2

$

4.2

For purposes of long-lived asset impairment assessments, we have generally determined our asset groups to be at the level of each brand as
this is the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are available and are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets. Each reporting
period, we review our long-lived assets and associated asset groups to determine if there is a triggering event which would require that we perform
an impairment test.
2015 Intangible Asset Analysis
During the third quarter of 2015, management and the Board of Directors engaged in a detailed strategic and financial assessment of the
Company. As a result of this assessment, we significantly revised our previous business strategy by adjusting our product portfolio to a smaller
product offering as well as changing our investment philosophy such that the investment in operating expenses will be significantly reduced.
Because of our strategy change, smaller product portfolio and reduced future investment, we revised our forecasts, which we determined to be a
triggering event for impairment testing. This required the assessment of the recoverability of the long-lived assets (including definite-lived
intangible assets).
We compared the carrying value of our asset groups with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows and determined that the carrying
value of certain asset groups exceeded the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset group. For those asset groups, we
then compared the carrying value of the asset group to its estimated fair value to determine the amount by which our long-lived assets (primarily
intangible assets) with the asset group were impaired. As a result of these analyses, we recorded an impairment charge of $37.6 million in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the period ended September 30, 2015. In Q4 2015 we recorded an intangible asset of $4.3 million
related to the CDI acquisition.
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In determining the estimated fair value of the asset groups, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the asset group's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows are affected by various significant assumptions, including
the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth
rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 years period with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use
our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash flows. The assumptions included utilized discount rates of approximately
16% percent and terminal growth rates ranging from zero to 3.0 percent.
As of December 31, 2015, we had an intangible asset balance of $4.2 million related to developed technology.
See Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on intangible assets
including our valuation approach and assumptions.
2014 Intangible Asset Analysis
As a part of our annual goodwill impairment test for our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units, we also tested for the impairment of long-lived
assets, including intangible assets with the asset groups included in our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. In performing these tests, we
compared the carrying values of these asset groups with their estimated undiscounted future cash flows and determined that the undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset groups significantly exceeded their carrying values resulting in no impairment. During the first
and third quarters of 2014, as noted below under our 2014 goodwill analysis discussion, we performed interim goodwill impairment testing for our
Nexsan reporting unit due to lower than anticipated results. We determined these factors to be an event that warranted interim tests as to whether
our intangible assets associated with Nexsan were impaired. Based on our impairment analysis performed in the first and third quarters of 2014,
we concluded that we did not have an impairment of our intangible assets associated with Nexsan at those times.
Amortization Expense
Amortization expense from continuing operations for intangible assets consisted of the following:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Amortization expense

$

9.8

$

12.9

$

13.2

Based on the intangible assets in service as of December 31, 2015, estimated amortization expenses for each of the next five years ending
December 31 is as follows:
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

(In millions)

Amortization expense

$

0.7

$

0.7

$

0.7

$

0.7

$

0.6
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Goodwill
See Note 14 for discussion regarding our changes to reportable segments which occurred in the fourth quarter of 2015. The following table
presents the changes in goodwill allocated to our reportable segments:
Nexsan

Storage Media and
Accessories

IronKey

Total

(In millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2013:
Goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses

$

64.1 $
—
64.1

Goodwill impairment
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of December 31, 2014:
Goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses

32.9
(24.9)

$

8.0

(35.4)
(0.6)

Goodwill from acquisition of Connected Data, Inc.
Goodwill impairment
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of December 31, 2015:
Goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses

$

249.3
(177.2)

—

72.1

—
—

(35.4)
(0.6)

63.5
(35.4)

32.9
(24.9)

28.1

8.0

—

36.1

(8.0)
—

—
—
—

3.8
(36.1)
—

3.8
(28.1)

67.3
(63.5)
$

152.3
(152.3)

3.8 $

152.3
(152.3)

32.9
(32.9)
—

248.7
(212.6)

152.3
(152.3)
$

—

252.5
(248.7)
$

3.8

We test the carrying amount of a reporting unit's goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter of each year or if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would warrant impairment testing during an interim period. Goodwill acquired in the acquisition of CDI was
fully allocated to the Nexsan reporting unit. Upon the acquisition of CDI, we began quickly integrating CDI with our Nexsan business, both
operationally and with respect to its management team.
2015 Goodwill Analysis
We test the carrying amount of a reporting unit's goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter of each year and during
an interim period if an event occurs or circumstances change that would warrant impairment testing. During the third quarter of 2015, management
and the Board of Directors engaged in an assessment of the Nexsan and IronKey businesses of the Company. As a result of this assessment, we
significantly revised our previous business strategy by adjusting our product portfolio to a smaller product offering as well as changing our
investment philosophy associated with these businesses such that the investment in operating expenses will be significantly reduced. Because of
our strategy change, smaller product portfolio and reduced future investment, we revised our forecasts, which we determined to be a triggering
event requiring us to review our goodwill related to our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units for impairment.
In determining the estimated fair value of these reporting units, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows are affected by various significant assumptions, including
the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth
rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 year period with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use
our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash flows. The assumptions included utilized discount rates of approximately
16.0 percent and terminal growth rates ranging from zero to 3.0 percent.
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As a result of this assessment, it was determined that the carrying values of our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units exceeded their estimated
fair values. Accordingly, we performed a Step 2 goodwill impairment test which compared the implied value of the goodwill associated with each of
these reporting units to the carrying value of the goodwill associated with each of these reporting units. Based on this analysis, the carrying values
of the goodwill associated with Nexsan exceeded its implied value by $28.1 million and the carrying values of the goodwill associated with IronKey
exceeded its implied value by $8.0 million. Consequently, we recorded an impairment charge of 36.1 million in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2015.
See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements as well as Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates for further background and information on goodwill impairments.
2014 Goodwill Analysis
During the first and then again in the third quarter of 2014, we adjusted our internal forecast for our Nexsan reporting unit due to lower than
anticipated results. We considered these factors to be an event that warranted an interim test as to whether goodwill was impaired in each of these
periods. The first quarter test resulted in no impairment of goodwill as the estimated fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value. In
performing Step 1 of the third quarter test, it was determined that the carrying value of our Nexsan reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value.
Accordingly, we performed a Step 2 goodwill impairment test which compared the implied value of the goodwill associated with Nexsan to the
carrying value of such goodwill. Based on this analysis, the carrying value of the Nexsan goodwill exceeded its implied value by $35.4 million and,
consequently, we recorded an impairment charge of that amount in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
In determining the estimated fair value of the reporting unit, we used the income approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate
future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows are affected by various significant assumptions, including
the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth
rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 year period with an estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use
our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash flows. The assumptions included utilized a discount rate of 16.5 percent
and a terminal growth rate of 3.0 percent. Because our Nexsan reporting unit had not been able to achieve its anticipated results, we increased our
discount rate by 2.0 percent over the estimated market discount rate of 14.5 percent.
During the fourth quarter of 2014, we performed our annual impairment testing of goodwill for our Nexsan and IronKey reporting units. In
performing Step 1 of these tests, we compared the estimated fair value of these reporting units to the carrying value. These impairment tests
resulted in no fourth quarter impairment as the estimated fair value of each reporting unit exceeded the carrying value for the Nexsan and IronKey
reporting units, respectively.
In determining the estimated fair value of the reporting units for our annual test performed in the fourth quarter of 2014, we used the income
approach, a valuation technique under which we estimate future cash flows using the reporting unit's financial forecasts. Our expected cash flows
are affected by various significant assumptions, including the discount rate, revenue, gross margin and EBITA (earnings before interest, taxes and
amortization) expectations and the terminal value growth rate. Our analysis utilized discounted forecasted cash flows over a 10 year period with an
estimation of residual growth rates thereafter. We use our business plans and projections as the basis for expected future cash flows. The
assumptions included utilized a discount rate of 16.5 percent and a terminal growth rate of 3.0 percent for each reporting unit.
Note 7 — Restructuring and Other Expense
Restructuring expenses generally include severance and related charges, lease termination costs and other costs related to restructuring
programs. Employee-related severance charges are largely based upon distributed employment policies and substantive severance plans.
Generally, these charges are reflected in the period in which the Board approves the associated actions, the actions are probable and the amounts
are estimable which may occur prior to the communication to the affected employee(s). This estimate takes into account all information available
as of the date the financial statements are issued.
Restructuring Plan
On September 27, 2015, the Company adopted a restructuring plan pursuant to which it wind down all sales and operations of its legacy
business in an accelerated manner and further reduce and rationalize its corporate overhead (the Restructuring Plan).
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The Company entered into the Restructuring Plan as a result of continued losses due to secular declines in its legacy business and to reduce
the cost structure and streamline the organization in light of these changes. The Company expects that it will incur approximately $120 million in
total charges for the Restructuring Plan excluding tax impact and approximately $35 million of the total charges will require cash expenditures. The
Company expects that the Restructuring Plan and associated wind down of its legacy business will be substantially complete during the first
quarter of 2016.
In October 2012, the Board of Directors approved our Global Process Improvement (GPI) Program in order to realign our business structure
and significantly reduce operating expense over time. This restructuring program addressed product line rationalization and infrastructure and
included a planned reduction in our global workforce. The GPI restructuring program is closed and 2015 charges (beginning with the third quarter of
2015) and future related charges will be reported as part of the Restructuring Plan discussed above.
Restructuring and Other Expense
The components of our restructuring and other expense included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Restructuring
Severance and related
Lease termination costs
Other
Total restructuring

$

24.5
1.5
2.6

$

3.9
0.3
1.2

$

2.1
0.7
2.4

$

28.6

$

5.4

$

5.2

Other
Settlement of UK pension plan (Note 9)
Gain on sale of fixed assets held for sale
Acquisition and integration related costs
Pension settlement/curtailment (Note 9)
Asset disposals / write down
Other

—
—
0.5
(0.8)
24.6
(5.0)
$

Total

47.9

0.5
—
—
0.2
1.8
5.7
$

13.6

10.6
(9.8)
2.8
2.1
—
0.4
$

11.3

Restructuring Expense
During the year ended December 31, 2015 we recorded $28.6 million of total restructuring charges for which $24.5 million relates to severance
almost exclusively associated with our Restructuring Plan. Total restructuring charges of $5.4 million and $5.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were related to the GPI program.
Other Expense
Certain amounts recorded in Other are discussed elsewhere in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. See note references in table
above.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, we had $0.5 million of acquisition and integration related costs related to the acquisition of
Connected Data, Inc.
During the year ended December 31, 2015 we recorded $24.6 million of charges associated with asset disposals / asset write downs for which
$21.0 million relates to the write down of our corporate headquarters facility and $3.6 million relates to other miscellaneous asset disposals and
write downs caused by our restructuring efforts. During 2015, based on the Board of Director's and management's decision to sell tour corporate
headquarters facility in light of the other restructuring activities that were approved in September 2015, we classified our corporate headquarters
facility as an asset held for sale. The carrying value of our corporate headquarters facility of $32.1 million was subsequently written down to $11.0
million which is the value of net proceeds received from the property sale that occurred on January 4, 2016.
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The $5.0 million of gain in other includes a $9.1 million gain on the termination of the TDK license, a $4.5 million gain on the sale of our RDX
Storage product line. These gains were partially offset by certain employee costs, consulting fees for external and related parties directly
associated with our restructuring efforts, the US pension cost and others. See Note 16 - Related Party Transactions for further information on the
TDK transaction and related party consulting fees. See Note 12 - Fair Value Measurements for further information on the RDX transaction.
During the year ended December 31, 2014 we had $1.8 million of asset disposals / asset write downs for which $1.0 million relates to the write
down of our Weatherford, Oklahoma facility and $0.8 million relates to miscellaneous asset disposals.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, we had $5.7 million of other expenses which includes certain employee costs and consulting fees
directly associated with our restructuring efforts.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, a gain of $9.8 million was recorded related to the sale of our Camarillo, California manufacturing
facility.
Restructuring Accruals
Activity related to the new and existing restructuring accruals was as follows:
Severance and
Related

Lease Termination
Costs

Other

Total

(In millions)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2013
Charges
Usage
Currency impacts

$

2.2
3.7
(5.1)
—

$

0.4
0.1
(0.2)
—

$

0.8
0.6
(1.4)
0.2

$

3.4
4.4
(6.7)
0.2

Accrued balance at December 31, 2014
Charges
Usage
Currency impacts

$

0.8
24.5
(11.1)
—

$

0.3
1.5
(0.6)
—

$

0.2
2.6
(1.3)
—

$

1.3
28.6
(13.0)
—

Accrued balance at December 31, 2015

$

14.2

$

1.2

$

1.5

$

16.9

Cost of Goods Sold
In addition to the restructuring charges recorded in restructuring in other, we recorded inventory write-offs of $9.7 million, $4.6 million, and $2.7
million related to the rationalization of certain product lines for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which are
included in cost of goods sold in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.
Note 8 — Stock-Based Compensation
Stock compensation consisted of the following:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Stock compensation expense

$

1.7

$

5.3

$

6.3

We have stock-based compensation awards outstanding under four plans (collectively, the Stock Plans). We have stock options outstanding
under our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Incentive Plan) and 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (2005 Incentive Plan), and we have stock options and
restricted stock outstanding under our 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (2008 Incentive Plan). We have stock options, restricted stock and stock
appreciations rights (SARs) outstanding under our 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (2011 Incentive Plan). Restricted stock granted and stock option
awards exercised are issued from our treasury stock. The purchase of treasury stock is discretionary and will be subject to determination by our
Board of Directors each quarter following its review of our financial performance and other factors.
No further shares are available for grant under the Directors Plan, the 2000 Incentive Plan, the 2005 Incentive Plan or the 2008 Incentive Plan.
Stock-based compensation awards issued under these plans generally have terms
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of ten years and, for employees, vest over a four-year period. Awards issued to directors under these plans become fully exercisable on the first
anniversary of the grant date. Stock options granted under these plans are not incentive stock options. Exercise prices of awards issued under
these plans are equal to the fair value of the Company's stock on the date of grant. As of December 31, 2015, there were 2,135,693 stock-based
compensation awards outstanding that were issued under these plans and consist of stock options and restricted stock.
The 2011 Incentive Plan was approved and adopted by our shareholders on May 4, 2011 and became effective immediately. The 2011
Incentive Plan was amended and approved by our shareholders on May 8, 2013. The 2011 Incentive Plan permits the grant of stock options,
SARs, restricted stock, restricted stock units, dividend equivalents, performance awards, stock awards and other stock-based awards. The
aggregate number of shares of our common stock that may be issued under all stock-based awards made under the 2011 Incentive Plan is 6.0
million. The number of shares available for awards, as well as the terms of outstanding awards, is subject to adjustments as provided in the 2011
Incentive Plan for stock splits, stock dividends, recapitalization and other similar events. Awards may be granted under the 2011 Incentive Plan
until the earlier to occur of May 3, 2021 or the date on which all shares available for awards under the 2011 Incentive Plan have been granted;
provided, however, that incentive stock options may not be granted after February 10, 2021.
Stock-based compensation awards issued under the 2011 Incentive Plan generally have a term of ten years and, for employees, vest over a
three-year period. Awards issued to directors under this plan become fully exercisable on the first anniversary of the grant date. Stock options
granted under these plans are not incentive stock options. Exercise prices of awards issued under these plans are equal to the fair value of the
Company's stock on the date of grant.
As of December 31, 2015 we had 3,578,304 of stock-based compensation awards consisting of stock options and restricted stock outstanding
under the 2011 Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2015 there were 125,649 shares available for grant under our 2011 Incentive Plan.
Stock Options
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The assumptions used in
the valuation model are supported primarily by historical indicators and current market conditions. Volatility was calculated using the historical
weekly close rate for a period of time equal to the expected term. The risk-free rate of return was determined by using the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected term was calculated on an aggregated basis and estimated based on an analysis of options
already exercised and any foreseeable trends or changes in recipients’ behavior. In determining the expected term, we considered the vesting
period of the awards, the contractual term of the awards, historical average holding periods, stock price history, impacts from recent restructuring
initiatives and the relative weight for each of these factors. The dividend yield was based on the latest dividend payments made on or announced
by the date of the grant.
The following table summarizes our weighted average assumptions used in the valuation of options for the years ended December 31:
2015

Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life (months)
Dividend yield

2014

41%
1.84%
72
—%

2013

46%
1.93%
73
—%

43%
1.05%
72
—%
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The following table summarizes our stock option activity:

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Stock Options

Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual Life
(Years)

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value
(millions)

Outstanding December 31, 2012
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Forfeited

5,818,472
1,034,406
—
(1,069,192)
(412,148)

$

16.57
3.85
—
25.22
7.13

5.9 $

—

Outstanding December 31, 2013
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Forfeited

5,371,538
61,275
(87,569)
(881,069)
(566,189)

$

13.11
3.72
3.97
19.05
4.14

6.1 $

0.8

Outstanding December 31, 2014
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Forfeited

3,897,986
1,314,547
(20,000)
(574,368)
(66,944)

$

13.07
1.45
3.84
19.68
6.16

4.8 $

—

Outstanding December 31, 2015

4,551,221

$

9.02

4.4 $

—

Of the options granted during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, 24,547 and 61,275, respectively, were performance-based options
that vest based on the Company's performance against Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) targets for the
subsequent three year period.
The aggregate intrinsic value of all outstanding stock options was less than $0.1 million, less than $0.1 million and $0.8 million as of
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2015 and 2014 was less than $0.1 million. The
weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the years 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $0.60, $1.72 and $1.61, respectively.
The following table summarizes exercisable options and options expected to vest as of December 31, 2015:
Exercisable Options

Range of Exercise

Options Expected to Vest

Weighted
Average
Remaining

Weighted
Average

Weighted
Average
Remaining

Weighted
Average

Stock

Contractual

Exercise

Stock

Contractual

Exercise

Prices

Options

Life (Years)

Price

Options

Life (Years)

Price

$3.48 to $6.16

833,362
422,603
1,244,009
7,500
342,612
152,170
93,985
—

3.8 $
2.3
2.5
1.0
1.3
0.8
0.3
0.0

5.18
8.62
10.05
20.31
24.61
37.25
41.61
—

1,158,188
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

8.2 $
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

1.73
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

3,096,241

2.5 $

12.47

1,158,188

8.2 $

1.73

$6.17 to $9.64
$9.65 to $19.20
$19.21 to $23.95
$23.96 to $28.70
$28.71 to $39.38
$39.39 to $41.75
$41.76 to $46.97
$3.48 to $46.97

Total stock-based compensation expense associated with stock options related to continuing operations recognized in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
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was $0.4 million, $1.4 million and $2.7 million, respectively. This expense would result in related tax benefits of $0.1 million, $0.5 million and $0.9
million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. However, these tax benefits are included in the U.S. deferred tax
assets which are subject to a full valuation allowance, and due to the valuation allowance, we did not recognize the related tax benefits in 2015,
2014 or 2013. As of December 31, 2015 there was $0.7 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding stock options.
That expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.8 years.
No related stock-based compensation was capitalized as part of an asset for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 or 2013.
Restricted Stock
The following table summarizes our restricted stock activity:

Restricted Stock

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value Per Share

Nonvested as of December 31, 2012
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

1,025,804
837,443
(561,099)
(109,827)

$

7.12
3.75
6.99
6.59

Nonvested as of December 31, 2013
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

1,192,321
1,229,249
(734,533)
(338,120)

$

4.87
3.65
5.19
3.95

Nonvested as of December 31, 2014
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

1,348,917
1,724,518
(868,985)
(1,041,674)

$

3.81
2.89
3.90
3.85

Nonvested as of December 31, 2015

1,162,776

$

2.34

Effective May 22, 2015, a “Change of Control” occurred under the terms of the Company’s Amended and Restated Severance and Change in
Control Agreements and certain incentive award agreements with its executives as a result of the election of three new directors to the Company’s
Board of Directors by shareholders at the shareholder meeting on May 20, 2015 (the "May 2015 Change of Control Event"). Upon a change of
control, under the terms of the agreements with these executives, the performance-based restricted shares are converted into a right to receive
cash, and a portion of such awards vest immediately and are settled in cash. As a result, 225,347 restricted shares covered by such at the time of
the May 2015 Change of Control Event vested immediately, and a cash payment of $1.0 million was made to settle such awards. The only
situation in which such shares would have been settled in cash was pursuant to a change of control. Additionally, 866,820 restricted shares that
were subject to vesting in the future were forfeited and were recorded as treasury shares.
Of the restricted stock granted during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, 1,264,661 and 914,768, respectively, were performancebased restricted stock that vest based on various performance metrics such as revenue, EBITDA and liquidity.
The total fair value of shares that vested during the years 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $3.4 million, $3.8 million and $3.9 million, respectively.
Total stock-based compensation expense associated with restricted stock relating to continuing operations recognized in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $1.3 million, $3.9 million and $3.6 million, respectively.
This expense would result in related tax benefits of $0.5 million, $1.5 million and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively. However, these tax benefits are included in the U.S. deferred tax assets which are subject to a full valuation allowance and
due to the valuation allowance, we did not recognize the related tax benefit in 2015, 2014 and 2013. As of December 31, 2015 there was $1.6
million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to
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outstanding restricted stock. That expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.6 years.
No related stock-based compensation was capitalized as part of an asset for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 or 2013.
Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs)
The following table summarizes our stock appreciation rights activity:
Stock Appreciation Rights

Outstanding as of December 31, 2012
Granted
Canceled

—
3,108,128
(89,286)

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013
Granted
Canceled

3,018,842
659,473
(703,383)

Outstanding as of December 31, 2014
Granted
Canceled

2,974,932
2,725,330
(1,905,328)

Outstanding as of December 31, 2015

3,794,934

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we granted 2.7 million and 0.7 million SARs under the 2011 Incentive Plan to certain
employees associated with our Nexsan and IronKey operations. These awards were issued to incentivize employees to grow revenues. These
awards expire on December 31, 2017 and only vest when both stock price and revenue performance conditions specified by the terms of the SARs
are met. Additionally, under the terms of the 2015 SARs, any cash payments to an individual under a 2015 vested SAR would reduce any cash
payment received under any earlier SAR grant pertaining to that individual, if an when such earlier SAR vests. For the stock price condition, based
on the terms of the awards, 50 percent of the SARs may vest if the 30-day average Imation stock price reaches $8 per share or more by
December 31, 2017 and the remaining 50 percent of the SARs could vest if the 30-day average Imation stock price reaches $12 per share or more
by December 31, 2017. Additionally, for the revenue performance condition, as a condition necessary for vesting, the net revenue of Nexsan or
IronKey (depending on the award) must reach certain specified stretch targets by December 31, 2017. If exercised, the SARs require a cash
payment to the holder in an amount based on the Imation stock price at the date of exercise as compared to the stock priced at the date of grant.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 we have not recorded any compensation expense associated with these SARs based on the applicable
accounting rules. We will continue to assess these SARs each quarter to determine if any expense should be recorded.
Note 9 — Retirement Plans
Pension Plans
We have various non-contributory defined benefit pension plans covering United States employees employed prior to January 1, 2010 and
certain employees outside the United States, primarily in Germany and Japan. Total pension expense was $0.5 million, $0.2 million and $2.6
million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The measurement date of our pension plans is December 31st. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2015 we contributed $1.2 million to our worldwide pension plans. We presently anticipate contributing between $1 million and $2
million to fund our worldwide pension plans in 2016. It is our general practice, at a minimum, to fund amounts sufficient to meet the requirements
set forth in applicable benefits laws and local tax laws. From time to time, we contribute additional amounts, as we deem appropriate.
Effective January 1, 2010, the U.S. plan was amended to exclude new hires and rehires from participating in the plan. In addition, we
eliminated benefit accruals under the U.S. plan as of January 1, 2011, thus “freezing” the defined benefit pension plan. Under the plan freeze, no
pay credits were made to a participant’s account balance after December 31, 2010. However, interest credits will continue in accordance with the
annual update process.
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For the U.S. plan, employees who have completed three years or more of service, including service with 3M Company before July 1, 1996, or
who have reached age 65, are entitled to pension benefits beginning at normal retirement age (65) based primarily on employees’ pay credits and
interest credits. Through December 31, 2009, pay credits were made to each eligible participant's account equal to six percent of that participant's
eligible earnings for the year. Beginning on January 1, 2010 and through December 31, 2010, pay credit contributions were reduced to three
percent of each participant’s eligible earnings. In conjunction with the plan freeze, no additional pay credits were made to a participant’s account
balance after December 31, 2010. A monthly interest credit is made to each eligible participant’s account based on the participant’s account
balance as of the last day of the preceding year. The interest credit rate is established annually and is based on the interest rate of certain low-risk
debt instruments. The interest credit rate was 3.04 percent for 2015. In accordance with the annual update process, the interest credit rate will be
3.03 percent for 2016.
In connection with actions taken under our announced restructuring programs, the number of employees accumulating benefits under our
pension plan in the United States continues to decline. Participants in our U.S. plan have the option of receiving cash lump sum payments when
exiting the plan, which a number of participants exiting the plan have elected to receive. Lump sum payments in 2015, 2014 and 2013 exceeded
the service and interest costs associated with those years. As a result, a partial settlement event occurred in those years and, accordingly, we
recognized a settlement loss of $1.7 million, $1.1 million and $2.1 million during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These settlement losses are
included in restructuring and other in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The U.S. pension plan permits four payment options: a lump-sum option, a life income option, a survivor option or a period certain option.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded a pension curtailment gain of $1.5 million related to its pension plan in
Japan. The pension plan in Japan was terminated as of December 31, 2015 and due to this termination, all assets associated with the plan which
remain after paying out all benefits were classified as a current asset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015, as the assets
will be remitted back to the Company in 2016.
We maintained a defined benefit pension plan located in the United Kingdom (UK Plan) for former employees with no current employees in the
plan. During the third quarter of 2013 we settled our UK Plan by way of a transaction with Pension Insurance Corporation (PIC) whereby PIC fully
assumed the projected benefit obligation and underlying plan assets. The net balance assumed by PIC represented an asset balance of $6.4
million and no cash consideration took place between Imation and PIC associated with this transaction for the initial settlement. As a result of this
transaction, we removed this net asset and related unrecognized net actuarial loss in other comprehensive loss and recorded a loss of $10.6
million in restructuring and other in our Consolidated Statements of Operations during the year ended December 31, 2013. Additionally, the
settlement of the UK Plan resulted in the removal of a deferred tax liability related to the plan resulting in a $2.3 million credit to income tax
expense for the year ended December 31, 2013. It is a standard practice in the United Kingdom (UK) for a review process by the UK government,
entailing a review of the plan obligations and participant data, to occur upon a transaction such as this one involving a transfer of a pension plan.
The regulatory review was finalized in 2014 and as result of the findings, we recorded a true-up of $0.5 million of additional loss in restructuring and
other in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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The benefit obligations and plan assets, changes to the benefit obligations and plan assets, and the funded status of the defined benefit
pension plans were as follows:
United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2015

2014

2015

2014

(In millions)

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Settlement payments
Curtailments
Foreign exchange rate changes
Projected benefit obligation, end of year
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Foreign exchange rate changes
Company contributions
Benefits paid
Settlement payments

$

78.8
—
3.0
(0.8)
(2.2)
(6.0)
—
—

$

78.5
—
3.3
4.4
(1.8)
(5.6)
—
—

$

33.2
0.2
0.5
(2.7)
(4.9)
—
(0.6)
(2.9)

$

31.4
0.3
0.9
6.5
(1.6)
—
—
(4.3)

$

72.8

$

78.8

$

22.8

$

33.2

$

67.5
(0.8)
—
0.6
(2.2)
(6.0)

$

71.0
2.5
—
1.4
(1.8)
(5.6)

$

23.6
1.1
(1.8)
0.6
(4.9)
—

$

26.1
1.6
(3.2)
0.7
(1.6)
—

$

(13.7)

$

(11.3)

Fair value of plan assets, end of year
Funded status of the plan, end of year

59.1

67.5

18.6
$

(4.2)

23.6
$

(9.6)

Amounts recognized in our Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following:
United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2015

2014

2015

2014

(In millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Noncurrent liabilities
Accumulated other comprehensive loss — pre-tax

$

—
—
(13.7)
20.3

$

—
—
(11.3)
19.0

$

2.8
—
(7.0)
7.3

$

—
1.6
(11.2)
10.4

Pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of the following:
United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2015

2014

2015

2014

(In millions)

Net actuarial loss
Prior service credit
Transition asset obligation

$

20.3
—
—

$

19.0
—
—

$

7.3
—
—

$

12.1
(2.2)
0.5

Total

$

20.3

$

19.0

$

7.3

$

10.4
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The following table includes information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets. The balances
presented as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 exclude our Japan plan which had plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit obligation for both
years.
United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2015

2014

2015

2014

(In millions)

Projected benefit obligation, end of year
Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year
Plan assets at fair value, end of year

$

72.8
72.8
59.1

$

78.8
78.8
67.5

$

22.8
22.8
15.8

$

28.7
28.7
17.6

Components of net periodic pension cost included the following:
United States

International

Years Ended December 31,

Years Ended December 31,

2015

2014

2013

2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of net actuarial loss
Amortization of prior service credit
Amortization of transition obligation

$

—
3.0
(4.1)
1.2
—
—

Net periodic pension cost (credit)
Settlements and curtailments
Total pension cost

$

$

—
3.3
(4.8)
1.1
—
—

$

—
3.3
(5.1)
1.9
—
—

$

0.2
0.5
(0.7)
0.3
(0.2)
0.1

$

0.3
0.9
(0.8)
0.2
(0.3)
0.1

0.1

(0.4)

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.7

1.1

2.1

(1.5)

(0.9)

1.8

$

0.7

$

2.2

$

(1.3)

$

(0.5)

$

0.5
2.0
(2.5)
0.5
(0.4)
0.3
0.4
—

$

0.4

Total pension cost for each of our international plans individually ranged from less than $0.1 million to $0.3 million in 2015, $0.1 million to $0.4
million in 2014 and $0.1 million to $0.5 million in 2013. Total pension credit ranged from less than $0.1 million to $1.5 million during each of 2015,
2014 and 2013.
The estimated net actuarial loss, prior service credit and net obligations at transition for the defined benefit pension plans that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit costs in 2016 are a $1.4 million loss, $0.2 million credit and $0.1
million obligation, respectively.
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations were as follows (international assumptions are a weighted average of all of our international
plans):
United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2015

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

2014

2015

2014

4.25%

4.00%

2.40%

1.89%

—%

—%

3.00%

2.92%

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs were as follows (international assumptions are a weighted average of all of our
international plans):

2015

United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2014

2013

2015

2014

2013

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets

4.00%

4.25%

4.00%

1.90%

3.27%

2.70%

6.50%

7.75%

7.75%

3.49%

3.35%

4.53%

Rate of compensation increase

—%

—%

—%

2.00%

2.86%

2.00%
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The discount rate for the U.S. plan is determined through a modeling process utilizing a customized portfolio of high-quality bonds whose
annual cash flows cover the expected benefit payments of the plan, as well as comparing the results of our modeling to other corporate bond and
pension liability indices. Appropriate benchmarks are used to determine the discount rate for the international plans. The expected long-term rate of
return on assets assumption is derived from a study that includes a review of anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset classes
and consideration of the appropriate asset allocation strategy given the anticipated requirements of the plan to determine the average rate of
earnings expected on the funds invested to provide for the pension plan benefits. While the study gives appropriate consideration to recent fund
performance and historical returns, the assumption is primarily a long-term, prospective rate. The expected long-term rate of return on assets
assumption for the international plans reflects the investment allocation and expected total portfolio returns specific to each plan and country.
Beginning in 2011, the projected salary increase assumption was not applicable for the U.S. plan due to the elimination of benefit accruals as of
January 1, 2011.
The mortality table for the U.S. plan used the "RP 2014 Mortality Tables" for December 31, 2015.
The plans' asset allocations by asset category were as follows:
United States

International

As of December 31,

As of December 31,

2015

Short-term investments
Fixed income securities
Equity securities
Absolute return strategy equity funds
Insurance contracts
Total

2014

2015

2014

—%
54%
45%
1%
—%

1%
23%
57%
19%
—%

1%
14%
—%
—%
85%

1%
24%
—%
—%
75%

100%

100%

100%

100%

For the U.S. plan, we maintain target allocation percentages among various asset classes based on an investment policy established for the
plan, which is designed to achieve long-term objectives of return, while mitigating against downside risk and considering expected cash flows. The
current target asset allocation includes equity securities at 20 to 50 percent, fixed income securities at 45 to 75 percent and other investments at 0
to 5 percent. Other investments include short-term investments and absolute return strategy funds which are investments designed to achieve a
certain return. Management reviews our U.S. investment policy for the plan at least annually. Outside the U.S., the investment objectives are
similar to the U.S., subject to local regulations. In some countries, a higher percentage allocation to fixed income securities is required.
As of December 31, 2015, the following reflects estimated future benefit payments in each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the
five years thereafter:
United States

International

(In millions)

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025

$15.9
4.2
4.3
4.4
5.1
22.7

$0.9
1.0
1.0
1.0
1.0
5.4

The assets in our defined benefit pension plans are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually). A three-level hierarchy is
used for fair value measurements based upon the observability of the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date.
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
Short-term investments. The carrying value of these assets approximates fair value because maturities are generally less than three months.
Accordingly, these investments are classified as Level 1 financial instruments.
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Mutual funds. Investments in mutual funds are valued using the net asset value (NAV) of shares held as of December 31st. The NAV is a
quoted transactional price for participants in the fund which do not represent an active market. In relation to these investments, there are no
unfunded commitments and the shares can be redeemed on a daily basis with minimal restrictions. Events that may lead to a restriction to
transact with the funds are not considered probable. These investments are generally classified as Level 1 financial instruments, however for
certain mutual funds, the NAV is not published, and accordingly, these investments are classified as Level 2 financial instruments. The
investment objective of our mutual funds in the U.S. Plan is to provide capital appreciation through an investment strategy that allocates its assets
among limited liability companies and/or separate investment accounts or to invest in large cap equity funds focusing on high quality yields
through short maturity investments in spread sectors depending on the fund.
Common stocks. Investments in common stock are valued at the closing price reported on major markets on which the individual securities
are traded. Accordingly, these investments are classified as Level 1 financial instruments.
Comingled trust funds. These assets are valued using the NAV of shares as of December 31st. The NAV is a quoted transactional price for
participants in the fund which do not represent an active market. In relation to these investments, there are no unfunded commitments and the
shares can be redeemed on a daily basis with minimal restrictions. Events that may lead to a restriction to transact with the funds are not
considered probable. These investments are classified as Level 2 financial instruments. The Fund’s investment objective is to achieve long-term
growth primarily by investing in a diversified portfolio of equity securities of companies located in any country other than the United States.
Insurance contracts. These assets are valued using quoted prices for similar assets. Accordingly, these investments are classified as Level 2
financial instruments.
These methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of the net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while we believe the valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different value measurement.
Investments, in general, are subject to various risks, including credit, interest and overall market volatility risks. There were no transfers into or out
of Level 1 or Level 2 during the years ended December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.
The fair value of the plan assets by asset category were as follows:

United States

December 31, 2015

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

(In millions)

Mutual Funds
Equity securities
Large-cap growth funds
International growth fund
Fixed income securities
Absolute return strategy funds
Common stocks
Commingled trust funds
Total

10.2
7.5
0.8
0.7
3.2
36.7
$

59.1

—
4.6
0.8
—
3.2
—
$

8.6

10.2
2.9
—
0.7
—
36.7
$

50.5

—
—
—
—
—
—
$

—
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International

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

December 31, 2015

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

(In millions)

Short-term investments
Other
Commingled trust funds
Insurance contracts
Total

$

0.1
2.7
15.8

$

—
—
—

$

0.1
2.7
15.8

$

—
—
—

$

18.6

$

—

$

18.6

$

—

United States

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

December 31, 2014

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

(In millions)

Short-term investments
Money market securities
Mutual Funds
Equity securities
Large-cap growth funds
International growth fund
Fixed income securities
Absolute return strategy funds
Common stocks
Commingled trust funds
Total

$

0.4

$

14.6
10.8
15.5
13.2
7.3
5.7
$

International

67.5

0.4

$

—

—
7.3
15.5
—
7.3
—
$

30.5

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

December 31, 2014

$

—

14.6
3.5
—
13.2
—
5.7
$

37.0

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

—
—
—
—
—
—
$

—

Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

(In millions)

Short-term investments
Other
Mutual Funds
Fixed income securities
Insurance contracts
Total

$

0.3

$

5.7
17.6
$

23.6

—

$

—
—
$

—

0.3

$

5.7
17.6
$

23.6

—
—
—

$

—

Employee Retirement Savings Plans
Effective January 1, 2011, our matching formula under our 401(k) retirement plan is 100 percent of employee contributions up to the first five
percent of eligible compensation. We used shares of treasury stock to match employee 401(k) contributions for 2014 and 2013. Starting on
January 1, 2015, we matched contributions in cash. Total expense related to 401(k) cash contributions was $1.4 million in 2015. Total expense
related to the use of shares of treasury stock to match employee 401(k) contributions was $1.8 million and $1.7 million in 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Starting on January 1, 2016, the Company will no longer make 401(k) matching contributions to the 401(k) retirement plan.
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We also sponsor a variable compensation program in which we may, at our discretion, contribute up to three percent of eligible employee
compensation to employees’ 401(k) retirement accounts, depending upon total Company performance. We use shares of treasury stock for this
contribution. A contribution of $0.9 million was made under the variable compensation program during the year ended December 31, 2015 for 2014.
A contribution of $0.4 million was made under the variable contribution program during the year ended December 31, 2014 for 2013. No contribution
was made under the variable compensation program during the year ended December 31, 2013 for 2012. Starting on January 1, 2016, the
Company will no longer make variable compensation contributions to employees' 401(k) retirement accounts.
Note 10 — Income Taxes
The components of loss from continuing operations before income taxes were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

U.S.
International

$

(147.6)
(33.9)

$

(95.3)
(14.0)

$

(25.2)
2.2

Total

$

(181.5)

$

(109.3)

$

(23.0)

The components of the income tax provision from continuing operations were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Current
Federal
State
International
Deferred
Federal
State
International

$

0.1
(0.4)
0.5

$

(0.3)
—
12.6
$

Total

12.5

0.5
(0.5)
(0.1)

$

1.7
—
1.5
$

3.1

(0.7)
—
5.9
—
—
(3.8)

$

1.4

The income tax provision from continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory United States income tax
rate (35 percent) because of the following items:
77

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

Table of Contents

Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Tax at statutory U.S. tax rate
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Net effect of international operations
Settlement of UK pension plan
Valuation allowances
Tax on unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries
U.S. tax on foreign earnings
Stock-based compensation
Uncertain tax positions
Goodwill impairment
Capital losses
Other

$

(63.5)
(4.6)
6.6
—
66.2
(6.3)
1.1
1.2
(0.3)
10.8
—
1.3

$

(38.3)
(3.2)
1.1
—
22.9
15.9
4.7
2.1
(1.2)
10.7
(11.4)
(0.2)

$

(8.1)
(0.2)
3.1
(2.3)
(3.2)
—
6.2
3.1
2.2
—
—
0.6

Income tax provision

$

12.5

$

3.1

$

1.4

Our 2015 tax provision of $12.5 million was significantly impacted by tax expense related to the recording of $12.6 million of valuation
allowances on deferred tax assets associated with operations outside the United States.
Our 2014 tax provision of $3.1 million primarily represents tax expense related to operations outside the United States and tax expense
recorded for the liability on unremitted foreign earnings of $1.7 million.
In 2015, 2014 and 2013 the net cash paid for income taxes, relating to both continuing and discontinued operations, was $1.9 million, $4.7
million and $4.6 million, respectively.
Tax laws require certain items to be included in our tax returns at different times than the items are reflected in our results of operations. Some
of these items are temporary differences that will reverse over time. We record the tax effect of temporary differences as deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
As of December 31,
2015

2014
(In millions)

Accounts receivable allowances
Inventories
Compensation and employee benefits
Tax credit carryforwards
Net operating loss carryforwards
Accrued liabilities and other reserves
Pension
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets, net
Capital losses
Other, net

$

Total deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries
Total deferred tax liabilities

2.1
4.0
5.6
30.0
205.7
3.9
7.7
9.7
49.2
14.1
1.5

$

333.5
(325.3)

287.1
(262.4)

8.2
(9.4)

24.7
(15.7)

(9.4)
$

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

1.6
7.6
6.6
33.9
149.4
7.0
9.0
10.2
49.6
11.5
0.7

(1.2)

(15.7)
$

9.0

We regularly assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered in the future. A valuation allowance is recorded to the extent
we conclude a deferred tax asset is not considered to be more-likely-than-not to be realized. We consider all positive and negative evidence
related to the realization of the deferred tax assets in assessing the need for a valuation allowance.
Our accounting for deferred tax consequences represents our best estimate of future events. A valuation allowance established or revised as
a result of our assessment is recorded through income tax provision (benefit) in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Changes in our
current estimates due to unanticipated events, or other factors, could have a material effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
We maintain a valuation allowance related to our U.S. deferred tax assets and the majority of our foreign deferred tax assets. The valuation
allowance was $325.3 million and $262.4 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The valuation allowance change in 2015
compared to 2014 was due primarily to operating losses and the recording of valuation allowances on deferred tax assets from operations outside
the United States. In the third and fourth quarters of 2015, the Company initiated actions to wind down operations of the Company's legacy Storage
Media and Accessories segment. The Company determined that it is no longer more likely than not that the foreign entities will be able to utilize
their deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance change in 2014 compared to 2013 was primarily due to operating losses.
In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic
740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which amends the guidance requiring companies to separate deferred income tax liabilities
and assets into current and non-current amounts in a classified statement of financial position. This accounting guidance simplifies the
presentation of deferred income taxes, such that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as non-current in a classified statement of
financial position. This determination is still required to be performed at a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. This accounting guidance is effective for
Imation beginning in the first quarter of 2017, but we have elected to adopt this guidance prospectively as of December 31, 2015. As a result, we
have classified all deferred tax liabilities and assets as non-current in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2015. Amounts on the
December 31, 2014 Consolidated Balance Sheet were not retrospectively adjusted. The table below shows the components of our deferred tax
balances as they are recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets:
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As of December 31
2015

2014
(In millions)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax
Deferred tax
Deferred tax

asset - current
asset - non-current
liability - current
liability - non-current

—
—
—
(1.2)

Total

$

(1.2)

3.2
8.1
—
(2.3)
$

9.0

Federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $467.1 million will begin expiring in 2026. This figure includes $27.9 million of federal net
operating loss carryforwards, subject to Internal Revenue Code section 382. We have state income tax loss carryforwards of $459.2 million, $1.1
million of which will expire between 2016 and 2018 and the remaining will expire at various dates up to 2035. We have U.S. and foreign tax credit
carryforwards of $30.0 million, $5.3 million of which will expire between 2016 and 2018, $22.3 million of which will expire between 2019 and 2032
and $2.4 million may be carried forward indefinitely. Federal capital losses of $36.7 million will expire between 2018 and 2020. Of the aggregate
foreign net operating loss carryforwards totaling $76.9 million, $0.5 million will expire between 2016 and 2018, $33.1 million will expire at various
dates up to 2025 and $43.3 million may be carried forward indefinitely.
During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company changed its assertion related to the permanent reinvestment of foreign unremitted earnings due
to its reassessment of possible future cash needs associated with the continued execution of its strategic transformation. Accordingly, the
permanent reinvestment assertion of foreign unremitted earnings was removed and a deferred tax liability was recorded for the estimated impact of
future repatriation of the unremitted foreign earnings. The deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2015 is $9.4 million. Net operating losses fully
offset $8.2 million of this liability, and the remaining $1.2 million liability is related to foreign tax withholding, assuming such repatriation were to
occur.
Our income tax returns are subject to review by various U.S. and foreign taxing authorities. As such, we record accruals for items that we
believe may be challenged by these taxing authorities. The threshold for recognizing the benefit of a tax return position in the financial statements
is that the position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained by the taxing authorities based solely on the technical merits of the position. If the
recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is measured and recognized as the largest amount of tax benefit that, in our judgment, is greater than
50 percent likely to be realized.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
2015

2014

2013

(In Millions)

Beginning Balance
Additions:
Additions for tax positions of current years
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions:
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Settlements with taxing authorities
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitations

$

Total

2.1

$

5.3

$

4.4

0.3
—

0.3
0.1

0.3
1.1

—
—
(0.7)

(1.9)
(1.3)
(0.4)

(0.4)
—
(0.1)

1.7

2.1

5.3

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, which excludes accrued interest and penalties described below, as of December 31, 2015 was
$1.7 million. If the unrecognized tax benefits remaining at December 31, 2015 were recognized in our consolidated financial statements, $1.5
million would ultimately affect income tax expense and our related effective tax rate.
It is reasonably possible that the amount of the unrecognized tax benefits could increase or decrease significantly during the next twelve
months; however, it is not possible to reasonably estimate the effect on the unrecognized tax benefit at this time.
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Interest and penalties recorded for uncertain tax positions are included in our income tax provision. During the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, we recognized approximately $0.1 million benefit, $0.4 million expense and $0.8 million expense, respectively, in interest
and penalties. We had approximately $0.1 million, $0.2 million and $1.1 million accrued, excluding the tax benefit of deductible interest, for the
payment of interest and penalties at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reversal of accrued interest and penalties would affect
income tax expense and our related effective tax rate.
Our federal income tax returns for 2012 through 2014 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). We currently have
foreign tax audits underway in various jurisdictions. Based on available information, the uncertain tax position associated with these foreign audits
have been assessed and included in our income tax provision. For state and foreign tax purposes, the statutes of limitation vary by jurisdiction.
With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to examination by foreign tax jurisdictions or state and local tax jurisdictions for years before 2009.
Note 11 — Debt
2015 Debt
As of December 31, 2015, we had short-term borrowings of $0.2 million on credit lines. The decrease in outstanding debt from December 31,
2014 is due to the termination of the Company's credit agreements with various banks in the United States, Europe and Japan.
On October 30, 2015, the Company terminated its Japan Credit Agreement entered into on July 16, 2013. At the time of termination, the
Company paid down its short-term borrowings of $7.6 million. Additionally, capitalized costs for the credit facility of $0.1 million were charged to
interest expense. The Company incurred an early termination penalty less than $0.1 million in connection with the termination.
On November 25, 2015, the Company terminated its Amended Credit Agreement entered into on May 18, 2012. At the time of termination, the
Company paid down its short-term borrowings of $10.4 million. Additionally, capitalized costs for the credit facility of $1.1 million were charged to
interest expense. No early termination penalty was incurred by the Company in connection with the termination.
2014 Debt
As of December 31, 2014, we had short-term borrowings of $18.9 million. The borrowings in 2014 were primarily from our credit agreements
with various banks in the United States, Europe, and Japan.
As of December 31, 2014 we had a 600 million Japanese Yen, or approximately $5.0 million overdraft line of credit available in Japan. As of
December 31, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings under this overdraft line of 300 million Japanese Yen or approximately $2.5 million.
Other outstanding borrowings on lines of credit lines were $0.5 million for December 31, 2014.
Interest Expense
Our interest expense, which includes letter of credit fees, facility fees, commitment fees, amortization of debt issuance costs and write-offs of
debt issuance costs, for 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $3.3 million, $2.6 million and $2.5 million, respectively. Cash paid for interest for 2015, 2014
and 2013, relating to both continuing and discontinued operations, was $1.2 million, $1.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively.
During 2015 and 2014 we did not capitalize any debt issuance costs. We did not have any capitalized debt costs on our Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of December 31, 2015. In prior years, capitalized debt issue costs are recorded to Other assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and
are being amortized over the term of the credit agreements.
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Note 12 — Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability, or the exit price in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A three-level hierarchy is used for fair value measurements based upon the
observability of the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. Level 1 measurements consist of unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 measurements include quoted prices in markets that are not active or model
inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Level 3 measurements include
significant unobservable inputs. A financial instrument's level within the hierarchy is based on the highest level of any input that is significant to
the fair value measurement. Following is a description of our valuation methodologies used to estimate the fair value for our assets and liabilities.
Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
The Company's non-financial assets such as goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are recorded at fair value when an
impairment is recognized or at the time acquired in a business combination. As discussed in Note 6 - Intangible Assets and Goodwill and Note 7 Restructuring and Other Expense, during 2015 and 2014, we recorded impairment charges associated with goodwill, intangible assets or property,
plant and equipment and reduced the carrying amount of such assets subject to the impairment to their estimated fair value. Additionally, as
discussed in Note 4 - Acquisitions, the Company acquired Connected Data, Inc. during 2015 and recorded the acquired assets and liabilities,
including goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment at their estimated fair value. The determination of the estimated fair value
of such assets required the use of significant unobservable inputs which would be considered Level 3 fair value measurements.
Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The Company measures certain assets and liabilities at their estimated fair value on a recurring basis, including cash and cash equivalents,
derivative instruments and our contingent consideration obligations associated with the acquisition of CDI.
The following table provides information by level for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis for year ended
December 31, 2015:

Description

December 31, 2015

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

(In millions)

Assets:
Trading securities
Warrants
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration associated with CDI
acquisition

$

1.0
0.4

0.8

$

1.0
—

—

$

—
—

0.8

$

—
0.4

—

There was no activity to report for the year ended December 31, 2014.
Trading Securities
On August 13, 2015 the Company entered into an agreement to sell its RDX™ Storage product line, including $1.5 million of associated
inventory, to Sphere 3D for approximately 1.5 million shares of Sphere 3D common stock and a warrant exercisable into up to an additional
250,000 shares (at a $0.01 exercise price per share) of Sphere 3D common stock. The Company recognized a gain of $4.5 million within
"Restructuring and other" upon the closing of this transaction. For the year ended December 31, 2015 the Company recorded a $0.5 million loss on
the value Sphere 3D shares held. The loss was recorded in other (income) expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as the
investments are classified as trading securities under applicable accounting criteria. The Company sold 1.2 million shares of Sphere 3D common
stock during the fourth quarter of 2015 for $2.7 million in proceeds. The estimated fair value of the remaining shares held is $0.5 million and is
included in other current assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015.
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The estimated fair value of the warrants exercisable into shares of Sphere 3D stock was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2015 and is included
in other current assets. On February 22, 2016 the Company exercised the aforementioned warrant into 250,000 shares of Sphere 3D common
stock.
Derivative Financial Instruments
We maintain a foreign currency exposure management policy that allows the use of derivative instruments, principally foreign currency
forward, option contracts and option combination strategies to manage risks associated with foreign exchange rate volatility. Generally, these
contracts are entered into to fix the U.S. dollar amount of the eventual cash flows. The derivative instruments range in duration at inception from
between one to 16 months. The fair value of our derivative instruments is determined based on inputs that are observable in the public market, but
are other than publicly quoted prices (Level 2). We are exposed to the risk of nonperformance by our counter-parties, but we do not anticipate
nonperformance by any of these counter-parties. We actively monitor our exposure to credit risk through the use of credit approvals and credit
limits and by using major international banks and financial institutions as counter-parties.
Cash Flow Hedges. We attempt to substantially mitigate the risk that forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currencies may be
adversely affected by changes in the currency exchange rates through the use of option, forward and combination option contracts. The degree of
our hedging can fluctuate based on management judgment and forecasted projections. We formally document all relationships between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as our risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedged items. This process includes
linking all derivatives to forecasted transactions. We formally assess, both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the
derivatives used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of hedged items. We did not have any
contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2014, our contracts had durations of 12 months or less. The fair value of the
2014 contracts is recorded in other current assets and other current liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Gains and losses related to cash flow hedges are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss with a corresponding asset or liability.
When the hedged transaction occurs, the gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive loss are reclassified into our Consolidated
Statements of Operations in the same line as the item being hedged. If at any time it is determined that a derivative is ineffective, we discontinue
hedge accounting prospectively, with the ineffective portion of a derivative's change in fair value being recognized in current period operations.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, we deemed certain cash flow hedges as ineffective due to the wind down of our legacy business. As
such, we discontinued hedge accounting and recorded a gain of $1.7 million to other expense in our Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2015.
The following table sets forth our cash flow hedges which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
December 31, 2015
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

December 31, 2014

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs (Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In millions)

Derivative assets
Foreign currency
contracts
Foreign currency
contracts
Derivative liabilities
Foreign currency
contracts
Foreign currency
contracts

option
$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

forward
—

—

—

—

7.3

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

option
forward

Total

—
$

—

—
$

—

—
$

—

—
$

—

—
$

7.3

—
$

—

Other Derivative Instruments. We used foreign currency forward contracts to manage the foreign currency exposure related to our monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. We record the estimated
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fair value of these forward contracts within other current assets or other current liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets and because we do
not receive hedge accounting for these derivatives, changes in their value are recognized every reporting period in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
For 2015, 2014 and 2013 we recorded foreign currency gains of $0.9 million, losses of $2.2 million, and gains of $0.5 million, respectively, in
other expenses, net in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. These results reflect changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign
denominated assets and liabilities and are net of losses of $0.3 million, losses of $0.8 million and gain of $1.7 million, from the related foreign
currency forward contracts for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The notional amounts and fair values of our derivative instruments recorded in other current assets and other current liabilities in our
Consolidated Financial Statements were as follows:
December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Fair Value
Other Current
Assets

Notional Amount

Fair Value

Other Current
Liabilities

Notional
Amount

Other Current
Assets

Other Current
Liabilities

(In millions)

Cash flow hedges designated as
hedging instruments
Other hedges not receiving hedge
accounting
Total

$

—

$

—
$

—

—

$

—
$

—

—

$

—
$

—

86.7

$

23.4
$

110.1

7.3

$

—
$

7.3

—
—

$

—

Other Assets and Liabilities
The carrying value of accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their fair values due to the short-term duration of these items.
Additionally, our borrowings of $0.2 million of outstanding debt at December 31, 2015, as further described in Note 11 - Debt, approximates fair
value due to the short nature of this debt.
Note 13 — Shareholders' Equity
Treasury Stock
On May 2, 2012, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program that allowed for the repurchase of 5.0 million shares of
common stock. Since the inception of this authorization, we have repurchased 3.0 million shares of common stock for $13.3 million and, as of
December 31, 2015, we had authorization to repurchase up to 2.0 million additional shares. During the year ended December 31, 2015, the
Company purchased 0.4 million of treasury shares for $1.7 million. The treasury stock held as of December 31, 2015 was acquired at an average
price of $3.84 per share. The following is a summary of treasury share activity:
Treasury Shares

Balance as of December 31, 2012
Purchases
Restricted stock grants and other
401(k) matching contribution

1,563,321
616,581
(622,241)
(435,735)

Balance as of December 31, 2013
Purchases
Exercise of stock options
Restricted stock grants and other
401(k) matching contribution

1,121,926
760,268
(87,569)
(739,408)
(427,421)

Balance as of December 31, 2014
Purchases
Exercise of stock options
Restricted stock grants and other
Shares received in TDK transaction (Note 16)

627,796
382,448
(12,656)
(513,878)
6,675,764

Balance as of December 31, 2015

7,159,474
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Accumulated other comprehensive loss and related activity consisted of the following:
Gains (Losses) on
Derivative Financial
Instruments

Defined Benefit
Plans

Foreign Currency
Translation

Total

(In millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2014
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications,
net of tax (1)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive
loss, net of tax

$

5.1

Net current period other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance as of December 31, 2015

$

$

(20.6)

$

(69.3)

$

(1.4)

(1.5)

(3.7)

2.0

0.8

(0.9)

(5.1)

0.5

(6.7)

(11.3)

—

$

(20.1)

(7.5)

(84.8)

$

(76.0)

(10.4)

$

(96.1)

(1) Income tax benefit of $0.8 million was recorded for unrealized gains on derivative financial instruments and no income tax expense was
recorded for liability adjustments for defined benefit plans for the year ended December 31, 2015.

In 2015, the Company adopted a comprehensive restructuring plan pursuant to which it will wind down all sales and operations of its legacy
business in an accelerated manner and further reduce and rationalize its corporate overhead. See Note 7 - Restructuring and Other Expense for
further information on the Company's Restructuring Plan. U.S. GAAP requires accumulated foreign currency translation balances to be reclassified
into the Consolidated Statement of Operations once the liquidation of the net assets of a foreign entity is complete. We reclassified $0.8 million of
foreign currency translation losses to other expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2015. As of
December 31, 2015, the Company had $76.0 million remaining of accumulated foreign currency translation losses in other comprehensive loss for
which significant balances could be reclassified into the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the future.
Details of amounts reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive loss and the line item in our Consolidated Statement of Operations for
the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:
Amounts Reclassified
from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss

Affected Line Item in the Statement Where Net Loss is
Presented

(In millions)

(Gains) losses on cash flow hedges
Income tax expense

$

Net (gains) losses on cash flow hedges
Amortization of net actuarial loss
Pension settlement loss
Income tax expense
Net pension adjustments, net of tax
Foreign currency translation
Total reclassifications for the period

$

(5.6)
1.9

Cost of goods sold
Income tax (benefit) provision

(3.7)
1.7
(0.2)
0.5

Selling, general and administrative
Restructuring and other
Income tax (benefit) provision

2.0
0.8

Other (income) expense

(0.9)

Income taxes are not provided for foreign translation relating to permanent investments in international subsidiaries. Reclassification
adjustments are made to avoid double counting in comprehensive loss items that are also recorded as part of net loss and are presented net of
taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss.
382 Rights Agreement
On August 6, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted a rights plan intended to avoid an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), and thereby preserve
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the current ability of the Company to utilize certain net operating loss carryovers and other tax benefits of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
Tax Benefits). If the Company experiences an “ownership change,” as defined in Section 382 of Code, the Company’s ability to fully utilize the Tax
Benefits on an annual basis will be substantially limited, and the timing of the usage of the Tax Benefits and such other benefits could be
substantially delayed, which could therefore significantly impair the value of those assets. The rights plan is intended to act as a deterrent to any
person or group acquiring “beneficial ownership” of 4.9% or more of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock, without the approval of
the Board. The description and terms of the Rights (as defined below) applicable to the rights plan are set forth in the 382 Rights Agreement, dated
as of August 7, 2015 (the Rights Agreement), by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Rights Agent.
As part of the Rights Agreement, the Board authorized and declared a dividend distribution of one right (a Right) for each outstanding share of
the Company’s common stock, to stockholders of record at the close of business on September 10, 2015. Each Right entitles the holder to
purchase from the Company a unit consisting of one one-hundredth of a share (a Unit) of Series A Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01
per share, of the Company (the Preferred Stock) at a purchase price of $15.00 per Unit, subject to adjustment (the Purchase Price). Until a Right is
exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no separate rights as a stockholder of the Company, including the right to vote or to receive
dividends in respect of Rights.
Under the Rights Agreement, an Acquiring Person is any person or group of affiliated or associated persons (a Person) who is or becomes the
beneficial owner of 4.9% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock other than as a result of repurchases of stock by the
Company, dividends or distribution by the Company, stock issued under certain benefit plans or certain inadvertent actions by stockholders. For
purposes of calculating percentage ownership under the Rights Agreement, outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock include all of the
shares of common stock actually issued and outstanding. Beneficial ownership is determined as provided in the Rights Agreement and generally
includes, without limitation, any ownership of securities a Person would be deemed to actually or constructively own for purposes of Section 382 of
the Code or the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder. The Rights Agreement provides that the following shall not be deemed an Acquiring
Person for purposes of the Rights Agreement: (i) the Company or any subsidiary of the Company and any employee benefit plan of the Company,
or of any subsidiary of the Company, or any Person or entity organized, appointed or established by the Company for or pursuant to the terms of
any such plan or (ii) any Person that, as of August 7, 2015, is the beneficial owner of 4.9% or more of the shares of Common Stock outstanding
(such Person, an Existing Holder) unless and until such Existing Holder acquires beneficial ownership of additional shares of common stock (other
than pursuant to a dividend or distribution paid or made by the Company on the outstanding shares of common stock or pursuant to a split or
subdivision of the outstanding shares of common stock) in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the outstanding shares of common stock.
The Rights Agreement provides that a Person shall not become an Acquiring Person for purpose of the Rights Agreement in a transaction that
the Board determines is exempt from the Rights Agreement, which determination shall be made in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board,
upon request by any Person prior to the date upon which such Person would otherwise become an Acquiring Person, including, without limitation, if
the Board determines that (i) neither the beneficial ownership of shares of common stock by such Person, directly or indirectly, as a result of such
transaction nor any other aspect of such transaction would jeopardize or endanger the availability to the Company of the Tax Benefits or (ii) such
transaction is otherwise in the best interests of the Company.
Initially, the Rights will not be exercisable and will be attached to all common stock representing shares then outstanding, and no separate
Rights certificates will be distributed. Subject to certain exceptions specified in the Rights Agreement, the Rights will separate from the common
stock and become exercisable and a distribution date (a Distribution Date) will occur upon the earlier of (i) 10 business days (or such later date as
the Board shall determine) following a public announcement that a Person has become an Acquiring Person or (ii) 10 business days (or such later
date as the Board shall determine) following the commencement of a tender offer, exchange offer or other transaction that, upon consummation
thereof, would result in a Person becoming an Acquiring Person.
Until the Distribution Date, common stock held in book-entry form, or in the case of certificated shares, common stock certificates, will
evidence the Rights and will contain a notation to that effect. Any transfer of shares of common stock prior to the Distribution Date will constitute a
transfer of the associated Rights. After the Distribution Date, the Rights may be transferred on the books and records of the Rights Agent as
provided in the Rights Agreement.
If on or after the Distribution Date, a Person is or becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right, other than certain Rights including
those beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person (which will have become void), will
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have the right to receive upon exercise common stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, property or other securities of the Company) having a
value equal to two times the Purchase Price.
In the event that, at any time following the first date of a public announcement that a Person has become an Acquiring Person or that
discloses information which reveals the existence of an Acquiring Person or such earlier date as a majority of the Board becomes aware of the
existence of an Acquiring Person (any such date, the Stock Acquisition Date), (i) the Company engages in a merger or other business combination
transaction in which the Company is not the surviving corporation, (ii) the Company engages in a merger or other business combination transaction
in which the Company is the surviving corporation and the common stock of the Company is changed or exchanged or (iii) 50% or more of the
Company’s assets, cash flow or earning power is sold or transferred, each holder of a Right (except Rights which have previously been voided as
set forth above) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise, common stock of the acquiring company having a value equal to two
times the Purchase Price.
At any time following the Stock Acquisition Date and prior to the acquisition by the Acquiring Person of 50% or more of the outstanding
common stock, the Board may exchange the Rights (other than Rights owned by such Person which have become void), in whole or in part, for
common stock or Preferred Stock at an exchange ratio of one share of common stock, or one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock (or of a
share of a class or series of the Company’s preferred stock having equivalent rights, preferences and privileges), per Right, subject to adjustment.
The Rights and the Rights Agreement will expire on the earliest of (i) 5:00 P.M. New York City time on August 7, 2018, (ii) the time at which
the Rights are redeemed or exchanged pursuant to the Rights Agreement, (iii) the date on which the Board determines that the Rights Agreement
is no longer necessary for the preservation of material valuable Tax Benefits or is no longer in the best interest of the Company and its
stockholders, (iv) the beginning of a taxable year to which the Board determines that no Tax Benefits may be carried forward and (v) the first
anniversary of the adoption of the Agreement if stockholder approval has not been received by or on such date.
At any time until the earlier of the Distribution Date or the expiration date of the Rights, the Company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not
in part, at a price of $0.001 per Right. Immediately upon the action of the Board ordering redemption of the Rights, the Rights will terminate and the
only right of the holders of Rights will be to receive the $0.001 redemption price.
Note 14 — Business Segment Information and Geographic Data
Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2015, in conjunction with our accelerated wind-down of the Company's legacy business, the Company
changed the manner in which it evaluates the operations of the Company and makes decisions around the allocation of resources. The Company
operated in three reportable segments as of December 31, 2015: “Nexsan”, “IronKey” and "Storage Media and Accessories." Nexsan is expected
to be our go forward business. (See Note 18 - Subsequent Events on the sale of IronKey on February 2, 2016). Storage Media and Accessories
(consisting of our Commercial Storage Media, Consumer Storage Media and Audio and Accessories product categories) is collectively referred to
as our "legacy business" and is in the process of being wound-down (which is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2016). Going
forward, we will focus on Nexsan business and evaluating other investment opportunities.
The segment information for prior periods have been revised to conform to the 2015 reportable segment presentation.
We evaluate segment performance based on revenue and operating income (loss). The operating income (loss) reported in our segments
excludes corporate and other unallocated amounts. Although such amounts are excluded from the business segment results, they are included in
reported consolidated results. The corporate and unallocated operating loss includes costs which are not allocated to the business segments in
management’s evaluation of segment performance such as litigation settlement expense, goodwill impairment, intangible impairments, intangible
asset abandonment, corporate expense, contingent consideration adjustments, inventory write-offs related to our restructuring programs and
restructuring and other expenses. Inventory and accounts receivable write-offs incurred for the year-ended December 31, 2015 of $9.7 million and
$5.2 million, respectively have been absorbed by their respective business segments.
During the first quarter of 2013, we announced our plans to divest our XtremeMac and Memorex consumer electronics businesses. The
operating results for these businesses are presented in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as discontinued operations and are not
included in segment results for any periods presented. See Note 4 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for further information.
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Net revenue and operating income (loss) by segment were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Net Revenue
Nexsan
IronKey
Storage Media and Accessories
Total Net Revenue

$

62.8
18.9
447.5

$

63.5
20.6
645.4

$

529.2

$

729.5

78.2
22.4
760.2
$

860.8

Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Operating Income (Loss)
Nexsan
IronKey
Storage Media and Accessories

$

(25.4)
(6.9)
(2.2)

$

(34.3)
(10.4)
25.7

$

(14.8)
(12.5)
55.9

Total segment operating income (loss)
Corporate and unallocated

(34.5)
(142.8)

(19.0)
(85.1)

28.6
(48.7)

Total operating loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Other expense, net

(177.3)
(0.4)
3.3
1.3

(104.1)
(0.5)
2.6
3.1

(20.1)
(0.2)
2.5
0.6

$

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

(181.5)

$

(109.3)

$

(23.0)

We have not provided specific asset information by segment, as it is not provided to our chief operating decision maker for review at a
segment specific level. Corporate and unallocated amounts above include non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $36.1 million and $35.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, non-cash intangible asset impairment charges of $37.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015, restructuring and other costs of $47.9 million, $13.6 million and $11.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013, respectively, and other corporate expenses of $21.2 million and $36.1 million and $39.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. The 2013 operating loss also included a $10.6 million loss related to the settlement of our UK pension plan and a
$9.8 gain on the sale of land at a previously closed facility and a litigation settlement gain of $2.5 million.
The following table presents net revenue by geographical region based on the country in which the revenue originated:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Net Revenue
United States
International

$

207.2
322.0

$

253.6
475.9

$

348.1
512.7

Total

$

529.2

$

729.5

$

860.8

The United States and Japan each comprise more than 10 percent of our total net revenue. Net revenue from Japan was 24.0 percent, 23.5
percent and 20.6 percent of total net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The following table presents long-lived assets by geographical region:
88

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

Table of Contents
As of December 31,
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Long-Lived Assets
United States
International
Total

$

3.0
1.6

$

41.6
3.4

$

47.0
4.6

$

4.6

$

45.0

$

51.6

Note 15 — Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation
In the normal course of business, we periodically enter into agreements that incorporate general indemnification language. Performance under
these indemnities would generally be triggered by a breach of terms of the contract or by a supportable third-party claim. There have historically
been no material losses related to such indemnifications. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, estimated liability amounts associated with such
indemnifications are inconsequential.
We are the subject of various pending or threatened legal actions in the ordinary course of our business. All such matters are subject to many
uncertainties and outcomes that are not predictable with assurance. Additionally, our businesses are subject to allegations of patent infringement
by our competitors as well as by non-practicing entities (NPEs), sometimes referred to as “patent trolls,” who may seek monetary settlements from
us, our competitors, suppliers and resellers. Consequently, as of December 31, 2015, we are unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate aggregate
amount of any monetary liability or financial impact that we may incur with respect to these matters. It is reasonably possible that the ultimate
resolution of these matters could materially affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
On May 22, 2013, Imation was sued in U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware by five entities: One-Blue, LLC (One-Blue), which is an
entity with licensing authority for a pool of patents relating to Blu-ray discs, and four members of One-Blue, Koninklijke Philips N.V., Panasonic
Corporation, Pioneer Corporation and Sony Corporation. The plaintiffs alleged that Imation's sales of certain Blu-ray discs infringed six patents and
sought unspecified damages, treble damages, and attorney's fees. The parties entered into a Settlement Agreement covering these U.S. patent
claims for a nominal amount and, effective November 12, 2015, these claims were dismissed.
SpearPoint Capital Fund LP et al. v. Mark E. Lucas, et al. This shareholder derivative action was filed in Delaware Chancery Court on
February 9, 2015. It names as defendants the Company and the members of its Board of Directors. Plaintiffs contend that the defendants paid
excessive compensation to the directors. They seek damages for breaches of fiduciary duties, waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment.
They also seek corporate governance reforms related to the Company’s compensation practices. The Directors have responded to the complaint
denying all the allegations; the Company, as the nominal defendant has responded denying the allegations as well. The parties are now engaged in
discovery. Trial, should it be necessary, has been scheduled for June 2016.
Operating Leases
We incur rent expense under operating leases, which primarily relate to equipment and office space. Most long-term leases include one or
more options to renew at the then fair rental value for a period of approximately one to three years. The following table sets forth the components
of net rent expense for the years ended December 31:
2015

2014

2013

(In millions)

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rentals
Rental income
Sublease income

$

8.1
0.1
(8.2)
—

$

7.8
1.6
(8.6)
—

$

8.5
3.8
(8.4)
(0.5)

Total rental expense, net

$

—

$

0.8

$

3.4
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Minimum lease payments and contingent rental expenses associated with agreements with warehouse providers are included as a component
of cost of goods sold in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. The minimum lease payments under such arrangements were $0.6 million,
$0.8 million and $0.9 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The contingent rental expenses under such arrangements were $0.7 million,
$1.8 million and $2.8 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The following table sets forth the minimum rental payments under operating leases with non-cancellable terms in excess of one year as of
December 31, 2015. The Company will keep a small team and its headquarters in Minnesota in 2016, and those lease costs are included below.
The amount for 2016 includes an estimate of the lease termination fees that we will have to pay in order to cancel certain leases upon the full
wind-down of our legacy business.
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Thereafter

Total

(In millions)

Minimum lease payments

$

2.7

$

0.9

$

0.8

$

0.6

$

0.4

$

0.3

$

5.7

Environmental Matters
Our operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental laws. Environmental remediation costs are accrued when a
probable liability has been determined and the amount of such liability has been reasonably estimated. These accruals are reviewed periodically as
remediation and investigatory activities proceed and are adjusted accordingly. Compliance with environmental regulations has not had a material
adverse effect on our financial results. We did not have any environmental accruals as of December 31, 2015.
Copyright Levies
In many European Union (EU) member countries, the sale of recordable optical media is subject to a private copyright levy. The levies are
intended to compensate copyright holders with "fair compensation" for the harm caused by private copies made by natural persons of protected
works under the European Copyright Directive, which became effective in 2002 (Directive). Levies are generally charged directly to the importer of
the product upon the sale of the products. Payers of levies remit levy payments to collecting societies which, in turn, are expected to distribute
funds to copyright holders. Levy systems of EU member countries must comply with the Directive, but individual member countries are
responsible for administering their own systems. Since implementation, the levy systems have been the subject of numerous litigation and law
making activities. On October 21, 2010, the Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU) ruled that fair compensation is an autonomous
European law concept that was introduced by the Directive and must be uniformly applied in all EU member states. The CJEU stated that fair
compensation must be calculated based on the harm caused to the authors of protected works by private copying. The CJEU ruling made clear
that copyright holders are only entitled to fair compensation payments (funded by levy payments made by importers of applicable products,
including the Company) when sales of optical media are made to natural persons presumed to be making private copies. Within this disclosure, we
use the term "commercial channel sales" when referring to products intended for uses other than private copying and "consumer channel sales"
when referring to products intended for uses including private copying.
Since the Directive was implemented in 2002, we estimate that we have paid in excess of $100 million in levies to various ongoing collecting
societies related to commercial channel sales. Based on the CJEU's October 2010 ruling and subsequent litigation and law making activities, we
believe that these payments were not consistent with the Directive and should not have been paid to the various collecting societies. Accordingly,
subsequent to the October 21, 2010 CJEU ruling, we began withholding levy payments to the various collecting societies and, in 2011, we
reversed our existing accruals for unpaid levies related to commercial channel sales. However, we continued to accrue, but not pay, a liability for
levies arising from consumer channel sales, in all applicable jurisdictions except Italy and France due to court rulings that are discussed below. As
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had accrued liabilities of $5.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, associated with levies related to
consumer channel sales for which we are withholding payment.
Since the October 2010 CJEU ruling, we evaluate quarterly on a country-by-country basis whether (i) levies should be accrued on current
period commercial and/or consumer channel sales; and, (ii) whether accrued, but unpaid, copyright levies on prior period consumer channel sales
should be reversed. Our evaluation is made on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis and considers ongoing and cumulative developments related to
levy litigation and law making activities within each jurisdiction as well as throughout the EU. See following for discussion of reversals of copyright
levies in 2013.
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Italy. During the second quarter of 2013, an Italian court rendered a decision associated with a copyright levy matter to which Imation was not
a party. This decision (i) confirmed and provided further specificity to the October 21, 2010 ruling of the CJEU that levies should not be paid on
commercial channel sales and (ii) evaluated, via audit, the plaintiff's documentation and evidence for distinguishing between levies paid on
commercial and consumer channel sales. During the second quarter of 2013, Imation reversed $13.6 million of Italian copyright levies (existing at
the time of a 2013 Italian court decision) that arouse from consumer channel sales that had been accrued but not paid to cost of sales. Based on
the ruling of this Italian court, in combination with other applicable levy and law-making activities within the EU, including Italy, we believed there
was sufficient evidence that we may offset the ongoing levy liability with the Italian collecting society for Imation's sales in the consumer channel
against the estimated $39.0 million we have overpaid for copyright levies in Italy (due to us paying levies on commercial channel sales prior to the
October 21, 2010 CJEU ruling). We continued this practice of offsetting until December 2015. In December 2015, we settled our claim for
reimbursement of the levies that Imation had paid for sales into its commercial channel with the Italian collecting society, S.I.A.E. The settlement
was for $1.0 million and is recorded as a reduction in cost of sales.
France. As the case in Italy, Imation has overpaid levies related to sales into its commercial channel in an amount of $55.1 million. Likewise,
Imation has been offsetting levy liability with the French collecting society for Imation's sales in the consumer channel against the $55.1 million we
have overpaid for copyright levies in France (due to us paying levies on commercial channels sales prior to the October 21, 2010 CJEU ruling).
During the fourth quarter of 2013, Imation reversed $9.5 million of French copyright levies (existing at the time of a 2013 French court decision)
that arouse from consumer channel sales that had been accrued but not paid to cost of sales. To date, Imation has offset approximately $14.4
million.
We believe that we have utilized a methodology, and have sufficient documentation and evidence, to fully support our estimates that we have
overpaid $55.1 million to the French collection society of levies on commercial channel sales and that we have incurred (but not paid) $14.4 million
of levies on consumer channel sales in France. However, such amounts are currently subjected to challenge in court and there is no certainty that
our estimates would be upheld and supported. In December 2012, Imation filed a complaint against the French collection society , Copie France,
for reimbursement of the $55.1 million in commercial channel levies that Imation had paid prior to October 2010. On December 8, 2015, there was
a hearing in the Paris District Court. A ruling is expected during the first quarter of 2016.
Other Jurisdictions. During the first quarter of 2015, Imation reversed $2.8 million accrual for German copyright levies on optical products as
the result of a favorable German court decision retroactively setting levy rates at a level much lower than the rates sought by the German
collecting society. The reversal was recorded as a reduction of cost of sales. At December 31, 2015, the recovery of some or all of the copyright
levies previously paid on commercial sales in EU jurisdictions other than Italy, France and Germany represents a gain contingency that has not
yet met the required criteria for recognition in our financial statements. There is no assurance that we will realize any of this gain contingency. We
have an estimated $5.1 million of accrued but unpaid levies associated with consumer sales in EU jurisdictions other than Italy and France that we
continue to carry on our books.
We are subject to several pending or threatened legal actions by the individual European national levy collecting societies in relation to private
copyright levies under the Directive. Those actions generally seek payment of the commercial and consumer optical levies withheld by Imation.
Imation has corresponding claims in those actions seeking reimbursement of levies improperly collected by those collecting societies. We are
subject to threatened actions by certain customers of Imation seeking reimbursement of funds they allege relate to commercial levies that they
claim they should not have paid. Although these actions are subject to the uncertainties inherent in the litigation process, based on the information
presently available to us, management does not expect that the ultimate resolution of these actions will have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We anticipate that additional court decisions may be rendered in 2016 that may directly or
indirectly impact our levy exposure in specific European countries which could trigger a review of our levy exposure in those countries.
Accounts Payable
The Company is currently disputing trade payables with certain vendors associated with the legacy businesses. As of December 31, 2015, the
Company has $26.0 million of trade payables recorded to these vendors, which is based on amounts billed to the Company, but not paid. The
Company alleges historical nonperformance by these vendors and, accordingly, is disputing the amounts presently being claimed as being owed.
To the extent the Company is able to settle this dispute for amounts lower than $26.0 million, it will record a gain at that time. As a
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part of this dispute, these vendors have taken action to seize approximately $5.3 million of the Company's cash, which is recorded as restricted
cash on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015.
Note 16 - Related Party Transactions
Clinton Relational Opportunity Master Fund, L.P. (the "Clinton Group") nominated 3 persons for election to Imation’s Board of Directors (the
“Board”) at the Company's Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 20, 2015. Shareholders elected Clinton Group’s three nominees, Joseph A. De
Perio, Robert B. Fernander and Barry L. Kasoff, replacing three incumbent directors who were standing for reelection.
Mr. De Perio currently serves as Senior Portfolio Manager of the Clinton Group. During the third quarter of 2015, the Board authorized
reimbursement to the Clinton Group for its documented expenses related to proxy contest fees for 2015 for $0.6 million. The fees were paid in
2015 and are recorded in restructuring and other charges for the year ended December 31, 2015. See Note 18 - Subsequent Events for additional
transaction with the Clinton Group.
On August 17, 2015, Imation entered into a consulting agreement with Mr. Fernander to perform certain services including assisting the
Company with a review and assessment of the Nexsan and IronKey businesses of the Company, for which he received consulting fees of $25,000
per week, subject to termination by the Company on a one week's notice. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company paid $0.3 million
to Mr. Fernander for these services, which is recorded in restructuring and other charges.
On September 27, 2015, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Fernander to serve as Interim Group President, Tiered Storage and Security
Solutions, effective September 28, 2015, and terminated the consulting agreement with Mr. Fernander.
On August 17, 2015, the Board appointed Mr. Kasoff to serve as Interim President of the Company effective August 19, 2015. Effective
October 14, 2015, in connection with the appointment of Mr. Fernander to the position of Interim Chief Executive Officer, the Board appointed Mr.
Kasoff as Chief Restructuring Officer at the same level of compensation he received as Interim President. Effective November 25, 2015, the
Board of Directors appointed Mr. Kasoff to also serve as the Company's Interim Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Kasoff also serves as president of Realization Services, Inc. (RSI), a management consulting firm specializing in assisting companies and
capital stakeholders in troubled business environments. Pursuant to a consulting agreement between the Company and RSI dated August 17,
2015 and subsequent amendments, RSI is performing consulting services for the Company for the period from August 8, 2015 up to March 30,
2016, unless terminated earlier by the Company, including assisting the Company with a review and assessment of the Company’s business and
the formulation of a business plan to enhance shareholder value going forward. RSI received consulting fees of $85,000 per week from the
Company under the terms of the Agreement plus up to an additional $225,000 for services for the period from August 26, 2015 through September
18, 2015. For the period September 19, 2015 to November 16, 2015 RSI received consulting fees of $125,000 per week. For the period from
November 17, 2015 through the remaining term of the agreement RSI received up to $172,000 per week. For the year ended December 31, 2015,
the Company paid $3.0 million to RSI which is recorded in restructuring and other charges.
On August 31, 2015, Imation entered into a consulting agreement with Geoff Barrall, a member of the Board pursuant to which Mr. Barrall will
perform certain services including formulating a business plan and budget for the Company which is subject to termination by the Company on a
one week's notice. The consulting agreement with Mr. Barrall was terminated on October 12, 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the
Company paid $0.2 million to Mr. Barrall associated with his consulting agreement which is recorded in restructuring and other charges.
On October 14, 2015, Imation acquired substantially all of the equity of Connected Data, Inc. (CDI) for approximately $6.7 million in cash,
shares of Imation common stock and repayment of debt. Mr. Barrall is the founder and, at the time of acquisition, was also the Chief Executive
Officer of CDI. In consideration for his CDI common shares and options to purchase CDI common shares, Mr. Barrall received approximately
$184,000 at the time of the acquisition and he will be eligible to receive up to an additional $260,000 to the extent certain CDI revenue targets are
achieved for the 3 consecutive six-month periods commencing January 1, 2016. See Note 4 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for further information
on the CDI acquisition.
TDK Corporation (TDK) owned approximately 18 percent of the Company's shares as of December 31, 2014 as a result of the arrangement to
acquire the rights to the TDK Life on Record brand under an exclusive long-term
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license from TDK. In connection with this arrangement, we entered into a supply agreement, dated July 31, 2007, with TDK (Supply Agreement).
In 2014 and 2013 we purchased products and services under the Supply Agreement which allowed us to purchase a limited number of LTO
Tape media and Blu-ray removable recording media and accessory products for resale in the aggregate amounts of approximately $3 million and
$28 million, respectively, from TDK or its affiliates. The Supply Agreement was terminated on March 31, 2014. We did not sell products nor
provide services to TDK or its affiliates in 2015, 2014 or 2013. No trade payables to TDK or its affiliates were outstanding at December 31, 2015 or
December 31, 2014. No trade receivables from TDK or its affiliates were outstanding as of December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.
In 2011, we discontinued our tape coating operations at our Weatherford, Oklahoma facility and closed the facility. We signed a strategic
agreement with TDK to jointly develop and manufacture magnetic tape technologies in which we collaborated on the research and development of
future tape formats in both companies’ research centers in the U.S. and Japan. At the end of 2013, TDK announced its intent to cease
manufacturing of magnetic tape and, as a result, we transitioned to source our product from alternate magnetic tape suppliers during 2014.
On September 28, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with TDK providing for the transfer of 6,675,764 shares of Imation common
stock from TDK to Imation, the termination of the Company's license agreement with TDK and the termination of certain rights of TDK under its
Investor Rights Agreement with the Company. The shares of Imation common stock were transferred back to Imation on October 29, 2015. The
transaction resulted in receipt of $13.6 million of Imation stock (subsequently recorded into treasury shares), the transfer back to TDK of the rights
to the TDK brand (which had a carrying value of $4.5 million at the time of the transaction) and an associated gain of $9.1 million. The gain is
recorded in restructuring and other charges for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Note 17 - Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
First

Second

Third

Fourth

Total(1)

(In millions, except per share amounts)

2014
Net revenue
Gross profit
Goodwill impairment
Restructuring and other
Operating loss
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per common share, continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss per common share, discontinued operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss per common share, net income:
Basic
Diluted
2015
Net revenue
Gross profit
Goodwill impairment
Intangible impairments
Restructuring and other
Operating loss
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per common share, continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss per common share, discontinued operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss per common share, net income:
Basic
Diluted

$

178.9
33.7
—
2.1
(16.1)
(16.8)
(0.7)
(17.5)

$

178.6
33.9
—
5.2
(20.1)
(19.8)
(1.6)
(21.4)

$

175.0
31.2
35.4
4.2
(55.8)
(61.4)
—
(61.4)

$

197.0
39.6
—
2.1
(12.1)
(14.4)
—
(14.4)

$

729.5
138.4
35.4
13.6
(104.1)
(112.4)
(2.3)
(114.7)

$

(0.41)
(0.41)

$

(0.48)
(0.48)

$

(1.49)
(1.49)

$

(0.35)
(0.35)

$

(2.74)
(2.74)

(0.02)
(0.02)

(0.04)
(0.04)

(0.43)
(0.43)

(0.52)
(0.52)

—
—

—
—

(1.49)
(1.49)

(0.06)
(0.06)

(0.35)
(0.35)

(2.80)
(2.80)

$

155.4
34.0
—
—
1.2
(13.0)
(14.4)
—
(14.4)

$

150.6
29.0
—
—
1.5
(15.9)
(17.4)
—
(17.4)

$

129.2
13.4
36.1
37.6
40.2
(148.7)
(152.3)
—
(152.3)

$

94.0
24.9
—
—
5.0
0.3
(9.9)
—
(9.9)

$

529.2
101.3
36.1
37.6
47.9
(177.3)
(194.0)
—
(194.0)

$

(0.35)
(0.35)

$

(0.42)
(0.42)

$

(3.70)
(3.70)

$

(0.27)
(0.27)

$

(4.84)
(4.84)

—
—
(0.35)
(0.35)

—
—
(0.42)
(0.42)

—
—
(3.70)
(3.70)

—
—
(0.27)
(0.27)

—
—
(4.84)
(4.84)

_______________________________________
(1)

The sum of the quarterly loss per share may not equal the annual loss per share due to changes in average shares outstanding and
rounding.
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Note 18 - Subsequent Events
On January 4, 2016, the Company completed the sale of its corporate headquarters facility in Oakdale, Minnesota to Larson Family Real
Estate LLLP for a gross purchase price of $11.5 million. See Note 5 - Supplemental Balance Sheet Information for discussion regarding this facility
being classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015.
On January 4, 2016, the Company closed on the sale of its Memorex trademark and receivables associated with two associated trademark
licenses to DPI Inc., a St. Louis-based branded consumer electronics company for $9.4 million. The Company classified all assets associated
with the sale as assets held for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015. These assets included the Memorex trademark
intangible asset (which had a carrying value of $5.9 million at December 31, 2015) and receivables associated with two trademark licenses (one of
which was the buyer of our Memorex consumer electronics business). The transaction resulted in an impairment of $1.8 million which was
recorded in our Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 in restructuring and other charges.
On February 2, 2016, the Company closed on a sale of its IronKey business to Kingston Digital, Inc. and Datalocker Inc. in two coordinated
asset sales. The Company received $4.7 million in cash at closing for the two sales. The Company sold to Kingston Digital, Inc. the assets
representing the business of developing, designing, manufacturing and selling IronKey mobile security solutions, excluding the business of
providing software and services, for $4.3 million. Imation retained the accounts receivable and accounts payable related to the business. The
Company sold to Datalocker Inc. the assets representing the business of providing software and services for IronKey products for $0.4 million.
Datalocker Inc. agreed to assume certain service obligations and additionally will pay Imation earnout payments during the next three years if
certain service revenue targets are achieved. While the Company was exploring options associated with the IronKey business, the criteria to be
considered as "held for sale" as of December 31, 2015 were not met at that time as we did not have Board approval. The accounting for the
transaction will take place in the first quarter of 2016 and is expected to result in a gain of approximately $3.0 million.
On February 8, 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with the Clinton Group for which they will manage $20 million of the
Company's cash for investment. The funds will be invested in Clinton Lighthouse Equities Strategy Fund (Offshore) Ltd. which is a market neutral
fund that provides daily liquidity to its investors. The agreement provides that the Clinton Group will be entitled to an incentive fee (payable in
Imation common stock) at an annualized rate equal to twenty-five percent of the total investment return. The accounting for the incentive fee will
take place when the Clinton Group performs their services.
On February 29, 2016 the Company closed on the sale of an Imation owned property in London, Ontario Canada for a net purchase price of
approximately $0.6 million and a gain of $0.4 million.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Based on an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2015, the end of the period covered by this report, the Interim Chief Executive Officer, Robert
B. Fernander, and the Interim Chief Financial Officer, Barry L. Kasoff have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
Changes in Internal Controls. During the quarter ended December 31, 2015, there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Management of Imation is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Imation’s internal control system is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Imation management assessed the effectiveness of Imation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework version 2013. Based on our assessment, we concluded that, as of December 31, 2015, Imation’s internal control
over financial reporting was effective, based on those criteria. Our independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
has audited the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as stated in their report which appears herein.
Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART III
Except where otherwise noted, the information required by Items 10 through 14 is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy
Statement pursuant to general instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, with the exception of the executive officers section of Item 10, which is included in
Item 1 of this Form 10-K. We will file our definitive Proxy Statement pursuant to Regulation 14A by April 30, 2016.
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
Board of Directors
Information regarding our Board of Directors as of March 15, 2016 is set forth below:
Robert B. Fernander, Interim Chief Executive Officer, Imation Corp. See Executive Officers in the Registrant in Item 1. Business for further
information.
Barry L. Kasoff, Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer, Imation Corp. See Executive Officers in the Registrant in Item
1. Business for further information.
Joesph De Perio, Senior Portfolio Manager, Clinton Group, Inc,
Tracy McKibben, President, MAC Energy Advisors LLC (a consulting and investment company that assists clients on investments and
strategic opportunities across a global platform).
Donald Putnam, Managing Partner, Grail Partners LLC (an investment bank and financial advisory services company).
Robert Searing, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer of BH Asset Management, LLC (a registered investment advisory firm).
Alex Spiro, Attorney, Brafman and Associates.
See Part I of this Form 10-K, “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” The Sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Board of Directors-Director
Independence and Determination of Audit Committee Financial Expert,” “Board of Directors-Meetings of the Board and Board Committees,”
“Information Concerning Solicitation and Voting — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Item No. 1-Election of
Directors — Information Concerning Directors” are incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.
We adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer/controller, or
persons performing similar functions and all our other employees. This code of ethics is part of our broader Business Conduct Policy, posted on
our website. The Internet address for our website is http://www.imation.com and the Business Conduct Policy may be found on the “Corporate
Governance” web page, which can be accessed from the “Investor Relations” page, which can be accessed from the main web page. We intend to
satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of the required code of
ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer/controller or persons performing similar
functions by posting such information on our website, at the address and location specified above.
Materials posted on our website are not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.
The Sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation Committee Report,” “Compensation of
Named Executive Officers” and “Board of Directors — Compensation of Directors” are incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
The Sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Information Concerning Solicitation and Voting - Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners” and “Information Concerning Solicitation and Voting - Security Ownership of Management” are incorporated by reference into this
Form 10-K.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table gives information about our common stock that may be issued under all of our existing equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2015, including the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2015, options and restricted stock had been granted under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, 2005 Stock
Incentive Plan and 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, and options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights had been granted
under the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan. Our shareholders have approved all of the compensation plans listed below.

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Shareholders

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

2011 Stock Incentive Plan
2008 Stock Incentive Plan
2005 Stock Incentive Plan

3,578,304
1,609,222
526,471
5,713,997

Total

(1)
(1)

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding
Securities Reflected in
the First Column)

$
$
$

2.31
10.38
31.29

8,276,182
16,701,157
16,475,699

$

7.25

41,453,038

(2)
(2)

This number does not include restricted stock of 1,347,199 shares under our 2011 Stock Incentive Plan or 1,718 shares under our 2008 Stock
Incentive Plan.
(1)

No additional awards may be granted under our 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, 2000 Stock Incentive Plan or 1996
Directors Stock Compensation Program.
(2)
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence.
The Sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Information Concerning Solicitation and Voting — Related Person Transactions and Related
Person Transaction Policy,” “Board of Directors — Director Independence and Determination of Audit Committee Financial Expert” and "Board of
Directors - Meetings of the Board and Board Committees" are incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The Section of the Proxy Statement entitled “Audit and Other Fees and Audit and Finance Committee Pre-Approval Policy” is incorporated by
reference into this Form 10-K.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
List of Documents Filed as Part of this Report
1. Financial Statements
Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

44
45
46
47
48
49
50

2. Financial Statement Schedules
All financial statement schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are required or because the required
information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the notes thereto.
3. Exhibits
The following Exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this report:
Number

Description of Exhibit

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated May 7, 2007, among Hopper Radio of Florida, Inc., Memcorp, Inc., Memcorp Asia Limited and
Imation Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)
2.2 Acquisition Agreement, dated April 19, 2007, by and between Imation Corp. and TDK Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on April 25, 2007)
2.3 Acquisition Agreement, dated January 19, 2006, by and between Imation Corp. and Memorex International Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on January 25, 2006)
2.4 Inducement Agreement, dated January 19, 2006, among Hanny Holding Limited, Hanny Magnetics (B.V.I.) Limited, Investor Capital
Management Asia Limited, Investor Capital Partners — Asia Fund L.P, Global Media Limited, Memorex Holdings Limited and Imation
Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on January 25, 2006)
2.5 Purchase Agreement, dated October 5, 2011, by and between Imation Corp. and FF Realty LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
2.5 of Imation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011)
2.6 First Amendment to Purchase Agreement, dated January 5, 2012, by and between Imation Corp. and FF Realty LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.6 of Imation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011)
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2.7 Second Amendment to Purchase Agreement, dated January 31, 2012, by and between Imation Corp. and FF Realty LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.7 of Imation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011)
2.8 Third Amendment to Purchase Agreement, dated February 10, 2012, by and between Imation Corp. and FF Realty LLC (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.8 of Imation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011)
2.9 Fourth Amendment to Purchase Agreement, dated November 6, 2013, by and between Imation Corp. and FF Realty LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.9 of Imation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013)
2.10 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 31, 2012, by and among Imation Corp., Naboo Merger Corp., and Nexsan
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Imation's Form 8-K/A Current Report filed on March 12, 2013) (Schedules
have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b(2) of Regulation S-K. Imation agrees to furnish a supplemental copy of any omitted
schedule to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.) **
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Imation Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registration Statement on Form 10,
No. 1-14310)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Imation Corp., effective November 7, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Imation’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013)
3.3 Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series A Participating Preferred Stock of Imation Corp. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 on Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 11, 2015)
4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2015, by and between Imation Corp. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Rights Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 11, 2015)
10.1 Trademark License Agreement, dated July 31, 2007, by and between Imation Corp. and TDK Corporation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on August 3, 2007)
10.2 IMN Trademark License Agreement, dated July 31, 2007, by and between IMN Data Storage Holdings C.V. and TDK Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on August 3, 2007)
10.3 Supply Agreement, dated July 31, 2007, by and between Imation Corp. and TDK Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on August 3, 2007)
10.4 Investor Rights Agreement, dated July 31, 2007, by and between Imation Corp. and TDK Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on August 3, 2007)
10.5* Stock Purchase and Merger Agreement, dated October 14, 2015, by and among Imation Corp., Imation Transporter Co., Connected
Data, Inc., and certain other parties named therein (incorporated by reference to Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed October
20, 2015)
10.6* Imation Corp. TDK Corporation Agreement dated September 28, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015)
10.7 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Imation Corp. and Larson Family Real Estate LLLP, dated December 18, 2015
10.8 First Amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement between Imation Corp. and Larson Family Real Estate LLLP, dated
December 30, 2015
10.9 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Imation Corp. and DPI Inc., dated January 4, 2016
10.10 Third Amendment, dated as of May 18, 2012, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (which amends and restates the
entire Credit Agreement) among Imation Corp., Imation Enterprises Corp. and Imation Europe B.V., as borrowers, Bank of America,
N.A., as administrative agent and l/c issuer, and a consortium of Lenders, dated as of August 3, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 24, 2012)**
10.11 Fourth Amendment, dated as of April 12, 2013, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Imation Corp., Imation
Enterprises Corp. and Imation Europe B.V., as borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and l/c issuer, and a
consortium of Lenders, dated as of August 3, 2010(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2013)
10.12 Fifth Amendment, dated as of August 27, 2013, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Imation Corp., Imation
Enterprises Corp. and Imation Europe B.V., as borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and l/c issuer, and a
consortium of Lenders, dated as of August 3, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2013)
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10.13 Form of Indemnity Agreement between Imation Corp. and each of its directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996)
10.14* 1996 Directors Stock Compensation Program, as amended May 8, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Imation’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002)
10.15* Imation Corp. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2003)
10.16* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.17* Amendment to 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.18* Form of Amendment to 2000 Employee Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreements — Executive Officer (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Imation’s Form 8- K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.19* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.20* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.21* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Employees 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004)
10.22* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Executive Officers 2004 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004)
10.23* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Employees 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004)
10.24* Form of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Executive Officers 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of
Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004)
10.25* Imation Corp. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended November 9, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 16, 2005)
10.26* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.27* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.28* Form of Amendment to 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Option Agreements — Executive Officer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.29* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.30* Form of Amendment to 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 16, 2005)
10.31* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.32* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.33* Form of Amendment to 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreements — Executive Officer (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.34* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 9, 2005)
10.35* Form of Amendment to 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement — Directors (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 16, 2005)
10.36* Form of Amendment to 2004 and 2005 Executive Officer Option Agreements under the 2000 Employee Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
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10.37* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to 2005 Stock Option Agreements — Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.38* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Employee Director Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.39* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to 2005 Restricted Stock Award Agreements — Non-Employee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.40* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 12, 2008)
10.41* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.42* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Executive Officer Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.43* Form of 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Executive Officer Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11
to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on February 13, 2006)
10.44* Imation Corp. 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on
May 12, 2008)
10.45* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 12, 2008)
10.46* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 12, 2008)
10.47* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 12, 2008)
10.48* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement for Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on May 12, 2008)
10.49* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Performance-Based Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Imation’s 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010)
10.50* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (3 yr vest) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011)
10.51* Form of 2008 Stock Incentive Plan Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to Imation’s 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010)
10.52* Imation Corp. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (2013) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Imation’s
Form S-8 Registration Statement, File No. 333-188429, filed on May 8, 2013)
10.53* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011)
10.54* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Award Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011)
10.55* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to Performance Award Agreement for Executive Officers (pre 2013) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.56* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement for Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Imation’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011)
10.57* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Imation’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011)
10.58* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to Performance Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers
(pre 2013) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.59* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to Performance Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers
(2013) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.60* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Award Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55
to Imation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012)
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10.61* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to Performance Award Agreement for Executive Officers (2013) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.62* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, Performance-Based Cash Award Agreement for Executive Officers for 2014 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Imation’s Form 8-K filed June 16, 2014)
10.63* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to Performance Award Agreement for Executive Officers (2014) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Imation’s Form 8-K/A Current Report filed on January 15, 2015)
10.64* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Imation's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013)
10.65* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers for 2014
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed June 16, 2014)
10.66* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Amendment to Performance Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers
(2014) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.67* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.68* Form of 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Award Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.69* Imation Corp. Director Compensation Program, effective May 4, 2005 (as amended effective May 20, 2015) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015)
10.70* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Directors (incorporated by Reference to Imation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 19, 2015)
10.71* Imation Excess Benefit Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registration Statement on Form 10, No. 1-14310)
10.72* Employment Offer Letter from Imation Corp. to Mark E. Lucas (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation’s Form 8-K
Current Report filed on February 17, 2009)
10.73* Description of 2013 Annual Bonus Plan Target Approval (incorporated by reference to Imation’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on
February 13, 2013)
10.74* Description of 2014 Annual Bonus Plan Target Approval (incorporated by reference to Imation's Form 8-K Current Report filed on
March 14, 2014)
10.75* Description of 2015 Annual Bonus Plan Target Approval (incorporated by reference to Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 13, 2015)
10.76* Form of Amended and Restated Severance and Change of Control Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation’s
Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 25, 2014)
10.77* Employment Agreement dated October 14, 2015, between the Company and Robert. B. Fernander (incorporated by reference to
Imation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 20, 2015)
10.78* Separation Agreement dated August 19, 2015, between the Company and Mark E. Lucas (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
on Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 19, 2015)
10.79* Separation Agreement dated September 28, 2015, between the Company and R. Ian Williams (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 on Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 29, 2015)
10.80* Separation Agreement dated as of November 25, 2015, between the Company and Scott J. Robinson (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 on Imation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 25, 2015)
10.81* Separation Agreement dated as of January 13, 2016, between the Company and John P. Breedlove (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 on Imation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 13, 2016)
10.82* Barrall Consulting Agreement dated August 31, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2015)
10.83* Fernander Consulting Agreement dated August 17, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2015)
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10.84* Realization Services Inc. (RSI) Consulting Agreement dated August 17, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Imation's
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015)
10.85* Amendment to Realization Services Inc. Consulting Agreement dated September 16, 2015 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Imation's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015)
10.86*
10.87*
21.1
23.1
24.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

Second Amendment to Realization Services Inc. Consulting Agreement dated November 17, 2015
Third Amendment to Realization Services Inc. Consulting Agreement dated January 1, 2016
Subsidiaries of Imation Corp.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Power of Attorney
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The following financial information from Imation Corp.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, filed
with the SEC on February 29, 2016, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statements
of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for
the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, (iv)
the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

_______________________________________

* Items that are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 15(b) of
Form 10-K.
** Pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, confidential portions of this exhibit have been deleted and filed
separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Imation Corp.
By:

/s/ ROBERT B. FERNANDER
Robert B. Fernander
Interim Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 15, 2016
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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Signature

/s/ ROBERT B. FERNANDER

Title

Date

Interim Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

March 15, 2016

Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Robert B. Fernander

/s/ BARRY L. KASOFF
Barry L. Kasoff
*
Joseph De Perio
*
Tracy McKibben
*
Donald Putnam
*
Robert Searing
*
Alex Spiro

*By:

/s/ ROBERT B. FERNANDER
Robert B. Fernander
Attorney-in-fact
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The following exhibits are filed as part of this report:

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.7 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Imation Corp. and Larson Family Real Estate LLLP, dated December 18, 2015
10.8 First Amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement between Imation Corp. and Larson Family Real Estate LLLP, dated
December 30, 2015
10.9 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Imation Corp. and DPI Inc., dated January 4, 2016
10.86 Second Amendment to Realization Services Inc. Consulting Agreement dated November 17, 2015
10.87 Third Amendment to Realization Services Inc. Consulting Agreement dated January 1, 2016
21.1 Subsidiaries of Imation Corp.
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
24.1 Power of Attorney
31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101 The following financial information from Imation Corp.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, filed
with the SEC on February 29, 2016, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statements
of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for
the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, (iv)
the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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EXECUTION VERSION

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of December 18, 2015 (the “Effective Date”), by
and between IMATION CORP., a Delaware corporation (“Seller”), and LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP , a
Minnesota limited partnership, and its permitted assignees (collectively, “Purchaser”).
RECITALS
A. Seller is the owner of those certain parcels of land consisting of approximately 122 acres of land, containing roughly
546,936 square feet of improvements thereon (such improvements, structures and fixtures, collectively, the “Improvements”)
(approximately 71 of the 122 acres consist of vacant land), located in the City of Oakdale, County of Washington, State of Minnesota,
with an address of 1 Imation Way, commonly known as the Imation Corporate Campus, and legally described on Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof, together with all right, title and interest of Seller to all strips and gores and any land lying in the bed of
any street, road or avenue, opened or proposed, in front of or adjoining such 122 acres and all written easements, right-of-way,
privileges, licenses and appurtenances thereto (collectively, the “Real Estate”) (the Real Estate and Improvements are collectively
referred to hereafter as the “Real Property”).
B.
Seller desires to sell, and Purchaser desires to purchase, the Real Property and certain other property and interests as
described in Section 1 of this Agreement subject to and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
AGREEMENTS
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein,
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as
follows:
1.
Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, Seller agrees to sell, convey and assign
to Purchaser, and Purchaser agrees to purchase and acquire from Seller, all of the following (collectively, the “Property”):
1.1 Real Estate and Improvements. The Real Property (as defined above).
1.2 Personal Property. All of the personal property situated in or upon the Real Property owned by Seller (and specifically
excluding the personal property of any tenants) and used in the maintenance or operation of the Real Property, including but not
limited to (a) all office furniture, chairs, work stations, plumbing fixtures, systems and equipment; heating fixtures, systems and
equipment; air conditioning fixtures, systems and equipment; laboratory equipment, fitness equipment, and kitchen and cafeteria
fixtures and equipment, but only to the extent the foregoing is located on the Real Property and is owned by the Seller, and (b) the
items of personal property listed on Exhibit B-1 attached hereto (the “Included Property,” which Included Property Seller represents
and warrants is owned by Seller free and clear of any liens or other interests), but excluding
3877973.10
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(collectively, the “Excluded Property”): (i) all IT equipment, including without limitation, all telephones; (ii) all vehicles, and other
machinery and equipment not affixed to the Real Property and not used in connection with the maintenance or operation of the
Property, and (iii) all equipment and machinery listed on Exhibit B-2 attached hereto (hereinafter, all of the foregoing, except for the
Excluded Property, collectively, the “Personal Property”). With respect to the removal of any Excluded Property from the Real
Property, Seller agrees as follows:
1.2.1 The building security system and card readers will remain in place and will not be removed, and will be in
working condition on the Closing Date.
1.2.2 The fiber optic cable runs from MPOP and APOP will remain in place and will not be removed.
1.2.3 Purchaser will be notified prior to, and Purchaser representatives may be present on site when, any Excluded
Property is being removed.
1.2.4 The CAT5 cabling and cable runs from the data closets will be in working condition on the Closing Date and
Seller will not cut the ends of the cables when removing any equipment.
1.2.5 The CAT5 cable that terminates into patch panels will remain connected to a patch panel and will not be
removed.
1.2.6 The wireless access points will remain in place and will not be removed.
1.2.7 The cell phone repeaters will remain in place and will not be removed.
1.3 Leases. Seller’s interest as landlord under those certain leases, contracts and other agreements for the use or occupancy of
any space in the Real Property set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto (collectively, the “Leases”), including but not limited to all
security deposits, if any, thereunder (collectively, the “Security Deposits”), and all tenant files in Seller’s possession (collectively, the
“Lease Files”).
1.4 Contracts. To the extent assignable by Seller without a fee or premium, Seller’s interest in the service and maintenance
contracts, equipment leases and other contracts regarding the Real Property and the Personal Property, if any, set forth on Exhibit D
attached hereto (collectively, the “Contracts”).
1.5 Permits. To the extent assignable by Seller without a fee or premium, Seller’s interest in the permits and licenses regarding
the Real Estate (but not its use and operation), if any, set forth on Exhibit E attached hereto (collectively, the “Permits”).
1.6 Plans. All originals and copies of the as-built, blueprints, plans and specifications regarding the Real Property in Seller’s
possession, if any (collectively, the “Plans”).
1.7 Records. All records in Seller’s possession, if any, regarding the Real Property including all records regarding operation
and maintenance of the Real Property, including without
2
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limitation, records of maintenance, repairs, services and capital improvements to the Real Property, but excluding tax returns and such
other records as are normally viewed as confidential or which are subject to any confidentiality agreement binding upon Seller
(collectively, the “Records”).
2. Purchase Price. Subject to the terms, conditions and provisions herein, Purchaser agrees to pay, and Seller agrees to accept, as
consideration for the conveyance of the Property, ELEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS
($11,500,000.00) (the “Purchase Price”).
3. Payment of Purchase Price. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Purchaser agrees to pay the Seller, and Seller
agrees to accept payment of, the Purchase Price as follows:
3.1 Earnest Money Deposit. Prior to the close of business on the first (1st) business day after the Effective Date, Purchaser
shall deliver in readily available funds the amount of ONE MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) (the “Earnest
Money”) to First American Title Insurance Company, with an address of 1900 Midwest Plaza West, 801 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis,
Minnesota 55402 (the “Title Company”). The Title Company shall hold the Earnest Money in an interest-bearing account in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Escrow Agreement by and among Seller, Purchaser and the Title Company in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit F (the “Escrow Agreement”). Except as otherwise provided in Section 19.1 below, the Earnest Money
shall be deemed fully earned by Seller and non-refundable to Purchaser even if Purchaser terminates this Agreement due to the Title
Condition (as hereinafter defined) or the Environmental Condition (as hereinafter defined) of the Real Property. All interest earned on
the Earnest Money shall belong to Purchaser. If the transaction closes in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Earnest
Money shall be applied towards partial payment of the Purchase Price at Closing. If Purchaser shall fail to deposit the Earnest Money
with the Title Company by the close of business on the first (1 st) business day after the Effective Date, at Seller’s election, this
Agreement shall be null, void ab initio and of no force or effect.
3.2 Balance of Purchase Price. At Closing, the Purchase Price, subject to application of the Earnest Money and the prorations
and adjustments as hereinafter provided, shall be paid by Purchaser to Seller (or to a third party for Seller’s benefit as directed by
Seller) by wired funds.
4. As-Is Condition. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, and subject to Seller’s representations and warranties
set forth in this Agreement and in any document delivered by Seller to Purchaser at Closing pursuant to this Agreement, (i) Purchaser
is purchasing the Property in its existing condition, “AS-IS, WHERE-IS, WITH ALL FAULTS,” and upon the Closing Date (as
defined below) (or such earlier time as set forth in this Agreement) has made or has waived all inspections and investigations of the
Property which Purchaser believes are necessary to protect its own interest in, and its contemplated use of, the Property; and (ii)
Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser is purchasing the Property subject to all existing conditions, latent or patent, and
applicable laws, rules, regulations, codes, ordinances and orders and that no patent or latent defect or deficiency in the condition of the
Property whether or not known or discovered, shall affect the rights of either Seller or Purchaser hereunder nor shall the Purchase Price
be reduced as a consequence thereof. Purchaser further represents and warrants that, except for any representations and warranties
expressly made by Seller in this Agreement and any representations and warranties
3
3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

made in the documents executed by Seller at Closing pursuant to this Agreement, Purchaser shall acquire the Property solely upon the
basis of Purchaser’s independent inspection and investigation of the Property, including without limitation: (a) the quality, nature,
habitability, merchantability, use, operation, value, marketability, adequacy or physical condition of the Property or any aspect or
portion thereof; (b) the income potential, or rights of or relating to, the Property or its use, habitability, merchantability, or fitness, or the
suitability, value or adequacy of such Property for any particular purpose; (c) the compliance of the Property or its operation with any
applicable codes, laws, regulations, statutes, ordinances, covenants, conditions and restrictions of any governmental or regulatory
agency or authority or of any other person or entity (including the Americans With Disabilities Act); or (d) the presence or absence of
hazardous substances on, in, under, above or about the Property or any adjoining or neighboring property. Except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement, Purchaser further agrees that it is acquiring ownership of the Property subject to whatever conditions exist
as of Closing, including physical, environmental and title conditions. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Seller shall not
be liable to Purchaser for any condition existing on the Property as of Closing, and Purchaser shall undertake whatever investigation
Purchaser deems appropriate before the expiration of the Inspection Period.
5. Seller Deliveries and Title Matters. Other than the Title Evidence (as hereinafter defined), Purchaser agrees that any Seller
deliveries required under this Section 5 may be delivered by Seller by Purchaser’s access to Seller’s virtual due diligence room.
5.1 Documents. Within [one (1) business day after] the Effective Date, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser true, complete and
correct copies of the Leases, Contracts, Permits, Plans and Records for Purchaser’s review and analysis (collectively, the
“Documents”).
5.2
Environmental Records. Purchaser acknowledges that Seller has delivered to Purchaser a copy of the Phase I
Environmental Assessment Report dated March 29, 2012, prepared by Caltha, LLP (the “Existing Phase I”).
5.3 Survey. Purchaser acknowledges that Seller has delivered to Purchaser a copy of the most current existing survey of the
Real Property dated June 3, 2009, prepared by Gustafson Geomatics, LLC (the “Existing Survey”). If Purchaser desires to obtain an
updated survey of the Real Property, Purchaser may, at its sole cost, obtain an updated survey (the “Survey”). Seller represents and
warrants to Purchaser that there have been no material changes to the Improvements as depicted on the Existing Survey from the date
of the Existing Survey.
5.4 Title Commitment. Within two (2) business days after the Effective Date, Purchaser shall order a commitment for an
owner’s fee title insurance policy or policies with respect to the Real Property (the “Commitment”) (hereinafter, the Commitment and
Survey shall be collectively referred to as the “Title Evidence”) issued by the Title Company wherein the Title Company (hereinafter
sometimes also referred to as the “Title Insurer”) agrees to issue to Purchaser an ALTA Owner’s Title Insurance Policy (current
standard form) for the Property (the “Title Policy”). The Commitment shall insure title subject to the Permitted Exceptions (as
hereinafter defined) and in the full amount of the Purchase Price. Purchaser shall cause the Commitment, accompanied by legible
copies of all recorded documents giving rise to any defects or exceptions to title to the Real Property, including all searches for real
estate taxes, pending and levied special assessments,
4
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judgments, bankruptcies and state and federal tax liens and the Survey, if any, to be delivered to Seller and Seller’s attorneys
concurrently with the delivery thereof to Purchaser or Purchaser’s attorney. Purchaser shall pay the cost of the premium of the Title
Policy and any endorsements and the premiums for the loan policy (if any) and the deletion of the standard exceptions.
5.5 Title Objections. Purchaser shall have until five (5) days from the date it receives the Commitment to make its objections
to matters disclosed in the Commitment or Survey (if any) by delivering such objections to Seller in writing (the “Objections”). Seller
shall have no obligation to cure the Objections. Seller shall notify Purchaser in writing within five (5) days after Purchaser’s delivery of
the Objections as to which Objections Seller will undertake to attempt to cure prior to Closing, provided that notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained in this Agreement, Seller, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to adjourn the Closing for a period not to
exceed forty-five (45) days, provided that Seller shall notify Purchaser, in writing, within such five (5) days after receipt by Seller of
the Objections, whether or not it will endeavor to cure any such Objections (such period as may be extended by Seller referred to as
the “Cure Period”). If Seller is unable to cure any such Objections within the Cure Period, and if Purchaser does not elect to terminate
this Agreement as provided herein, such matters that Seller does not cure shall be deemed waived by Purchaser. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, at or prior to Closing, Seller shall pay and satisfy any mortgages placed on the Real Property by Seller, judgments against
Seller, liens against Seller or mechanic’s liens for work requested by Seller (as opposed to tenants) (the “ Required Removal Items”). If
the Objections are not cured by Seller at or prior to Closing, Purchaser shall then have the right to do any of the following by notice
provided to Seller within two (2) business days of the then scheduled Closing Date:
5.5.1 If the Objection is based upon the existence of a Permitted Exception, Purchaser may terminate this Agreement,
in which event the Earnest Money shall be paid to Seller, and neither Seller nor Purchaser shall have any further rights or obligations
under this Agreement, except for any obligation expressly provided to survive such termination; or
5.5.2 Waive the Objections and close the transaction contemplated by this Agreement as if such Objections had not
been made without any reduction in, abatement of, or credit against, the Purchase Price; or
5.5.3 If the Objection is based upon the existence of a title matter that is not a Permitted Exception, Purchaser may
terminate this Agreement, in which event the Earnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser, and neither Seller nor Purchaser shall have
any further rights or obligations under this Agreement, except for any obligation expressly provided to survive such termination.
If Purchaser does not terminate this Agreement pursuant to clause 5.5.1 or clause 5.5.3 above, then: (x) Purchaser shall be deemed to
have elected to take title as it then is without any reduction in the Purchase Price; (y) all Objections not removed from the Commitment
or the Survey (if any), if applicable, will thenceforth be deemed waived by Purchaser; and (z) this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.
5
3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

5.6
Permitted Exceptions to Title. At Closing, the Real Property shall be sold and conveyed subject to the following
exceptions to title (the "Permitted Exceptions"):
5.6.1 any state of facts that an accurate survey may show;
5.6.2 those matters specifically set forth on Exhibit G attached hereto and made a part hereof;
5.6.3 all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of the United States, the State of Minnesota, the City of Oakdale, the
County of Washington, or any agency, department, commission, bureau or instrumentality of any of the foregoing having jurisdiction
over the Property (each, a "Governmental Authority"), as the same may now exist or may be hereafter modified, supplemented or
promulgated including, without limitation, zoning ordinances and restrictions and amendments thereto now or hereafter in force or
effect;
5.6.4 all presently existing and future liens of real estate taxes or assessments and water rates, water meter charges,
water frontage charges and sewer taxes, rents and charges, if any, provided that such items are not yet due and payable and are
apportioned as provided in this Agreement;
5.6.5 covenants, restrictions, easements, reservations and agreements of record provided the present use of the Real
Property is not prohibited thereby or provided that the Title Company shall be willing to insure, at no additional cost, that any existing
improvement which may violate such covenant, restriction, easement, reservation or agreement of record, if any, may remain as long as
such improvement shall stand and that in the event of any damage or destruction to the Property, that the Improvements will be
permitted to be reconstructed;
5.6.6 all violations of laws, ordinances, orders, requirements or regulations of any Governmental Authority applicable
to the Real Property and existing on the Closing Date, whether or not noted in the records of or issued by any Governmental
Authority;
5.6.7 all utility company rights, easements and franchises to maintain and operate lines, poles, wires, cables, pipes,
distribution boxes and other fixtures and facilities in, over, under and upon the Property provided that the same do not adversely affect
the use of the Real Property for its present use;
5.6.8 the printed exceptions which appear in the standard form Title Policy of the title insurance issued by the Title
Company in the State of Minnesota;
5.6.9 projections and/or encroachments of retaining walls, stoops, areas, steps, sills, trim, cornices, standpipes, fire
escapes, coal chutes, casings, ledges, water tables, lintels, porticos, keystones, bay windows, hedges, copings, cellar doors, sidewalk
elevators, fences, fire escapes and the like, or similar projections of objects on, under or above any adjoining streets of the Real
Property or any property adjoining the Real Property, or within any set back areas, and encroachments of similar elements projecting
from adjoining property over the Real Property and variations between the lines of record title and fences, retaining walls, hedges, and
the like;
6
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5.6.10 right, lack of right or restricted right of any owner of the Real Property to construct and/or maintain (and the
right of any Governmental Authority to require the removal of) any vault or vaulted area, in or under the streets, sidewalks or other
areas abutting the Real Property, and any applicable licensing statute, ordinance and regulation, the terms of any license pertaining
thereto and the lien of street, sidewalk or other area vault taxes, provided any such vault taxes or charges which are then due and
payable are paid by Seller at Closing;
5.6.11 rights of tenants of the Real Property pursuant to the Leases, and others claiming by, through or under any such
tenants;
5.6.12 the lien of any mortgage, lien or other encumbrance granted, created, or obtained by the Purchaser;
5.6.13 such matters as the Title Company shall be willing, without special premium to Purchaser, to omit as exceptions
to coverage from the Title Policy;
5.6.14 so long as the Title Company shall omit the same from the Title Policy, any financing statements, chattel
mortgages, conditional bills of sale or other form of security interest against personalty, encumbering personalty not owned by Seller or
filed more than five (5) years prior to the Closing Date;
5.6.15 variations between the tax lot lines and the description of the Real Property set forth on Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof; and
5.6.16 [Intentionally deleted].
5.7 Conveyance of Title. At Closing, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser a limited warranty deed (the “Deed”) in recordable
form, conveying fee simple title in the Real Property to Purchaser, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions and any other matter or
thing affecting title to the Real Property that Purchaser shall have agreed or be deemed to have agreed to accept or waive in accordance
with the terms of Section 5 of this Agreement.
6. Access and Inspection Period.
6.1 Access and Inspection Period. Purchaser and its agents, contractors, engineers, consultants and designees (collectively,
“Purchaser’s Agents”) shall have reasonable access and the right to enter the Property at reasonable times, after giving reasonable
advance notice to Seller, for a period from the Effective Date through and including the Closing Date (as defined below) (the
“Inspection Period”) for the limited purpose of conducting Purchaser’s investigation and inspection of the Property, and Seller shall
reasonably cooperate with Purchaser in performing or obtaining same; provided that Purchaser shall pay all expenses and costs
incurred by Purchaser in connection therewith. Purchaser shall use, and shall cause Purchaser’s Agents to use, reasonable efforts to
minimize disruption of the use or operations on the Property during such entry and access and in a manner so as not to unreasonably
disrupt the current tenants located on the Real Property. Representatives of Seller shall be permitted to accompany Purchaser and
Purchaser’s Agents at all times while at the Property. Purchaser agrees to cooperate with any reasonable request by Seller
7
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in connection with the timing of any such investigation and inspection. Such access shall be for the sole purposes of inspecting the
physical condition of the Property and conducting non-intrusive physical and environmental investigations, surveys and inspections of
the Property. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, without first obtaining Seller’s written consent thereto (which
may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed by Seller), neither Purchaser nor any Purchaser’s Agent shall (1) contact any tenant or
employee at the Property, (2) notify any governmental agency of any actual or potential violation of any zoning, environmental or
other law, rule, or regulation, or (3) conduct any intrusive investigation regarding the Property; provided, however, Seller does hereby
consent to Purchaser requesting estoppel certificates from each of the tenants under the Leases and Seller does hereby consent to
Purchaser contacting and interviewing for potential employment Seller’s maintenance and facilities management personnel.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that in no way is Purchaser’s
obligation to close the purchase and sale of the Property as contemplated hereunder conditioned on (i) obtaining estoppel certificates
from any tenant or (ii) being able to interview or hire any of Seller’s maintenance and facilities management personnel. Purchaser may
have the Real Property inspected by third parties; provided, however, that any environmental assessments of the Property shall be
conducted by Purchaser and Purchaser’s Agents in accordance with this Section 6. Such inspection(s) may include, but shall not be
limited to, any inspections relating to federal, state or local health, safety, and environmental codes and regulations. Purchaser shall pay
all costs and expenses of such investigation and inspection and shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller and the Property harmless from
and against all costs, any and all damages and from and against any and all claims or liabilities arising out of or relating to Purchaser’s
(including Purchaser’s Agents) activities, including without limitation, related to, arising out of or caused by any inspection,
investigation, or environmental testing on the Real Property, provided, however, Purchaser shall not be liable for any damages incurred
by Seller resulting from the mere discovery by Purchaser of a pre-existing environmental condition at or with regard to the Real
Property. Purchaser shall further promptly repair and restore any damage to the Property caused by, arising out of, or occurring during
Purchaser’s testing and return the Real Property and/or Personal Property to substantially the same condition as existed prior to such
entry. Purchaser shall be responsible for any and all damages caused by Purchaser’s (including Purchaser’s Agents) due diligence on
the Real Property. Purchaser shall not be permitted to perform any invasive testing, including but not limited to, Phase II
Environmental Testing or soil borings without the prior written consent of Seller.
6.2 Insurance. Purchaser shall maintain for the term of this Agreement, one or more insurance policies with the following
coverage limits (naming Seller as an additional insured, if applicable): (i) Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence, Three
Million Dollars ($3,000,000) annual aggregate, commercial general liability insurance (on an occurrence basis) insuring all activity and
conduct of Purchaser and Purchaser’s Agents while exercising the right of access provided for in this Agreement, which commercial
general liability insurance shall contain a contractual liability endorsement which insures Purchaser’s (or Purchaser’s Agents, as
applicable) indemnity obligations hereunder; (ii) worker’s compensation insurance in statutory limits; (iii) employer’s liability insurance
($100,000 per accident, $500,000 per employee); (iv) bodily injury and property damage insurance, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000),
and (v) automobile liability ($1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 annual aggregate). Purchaser shall require each of Purchaser’s
Agents and their consultants and subcontractors to comply with the access and
8
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inspection provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to, the insurance requirements set forth in this Section 6. Prior to
Purchaser or any Purchaser’s Agent entering the Property, and thereafter upon request of Seller, Purchaser will provide Seller with
written evidence of the insurance required under this Section 6 which evidence shall be satisfactory in form and substance to Seller.
6.3 Title Condition and Environmental Condition. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Purchaser
may only terminate this Agreement on or before the expiration of the Inspection Period, if it decides, in its sole discretion, that it is
unsatisfied with (i) the condition of title or with title matters affecting the Real Property (“Title Condition”), or (ii) the environmental
condition of the Real Property (“Environmental Condition”). Notwithstanding Purchaser’s right to investigate and inspect the Property
as set forth herein, Purchaser shall have no right to object to any other condition of the Property, including without limitation, the
condition of any improvements, personal property or any other matter with respect thereto and Purchaser shall proceed to Closing
unless Purchaser terminates this Agreement because it is not satisfied with the Title Condition and/or the Environmental Condition of
the Real Property as set forth above. If Purchaser fails to provide Seller with its written termination notice on or before the expiration of
the Inspection Period, then Purchaser shall be deemed to have accepted the Title Condition and Environmental Condition of the Real
Property and Purchaser and Seller shall proceed to close the transaction and the acquisition of the Property as contemplated under this
Agreement. In the event of such termination by Purchaser in accordance with this Section 6.3, the Earnest Money shall, unless the
termination is pursuant to and in accordance with Section 5.5.3 above, be paid to Seller, and the parties hereto shall be relieved of all
further liability and responsibility under this Agreement, except for any obligation expressly provided to survive such termination.
7. Closing. The closing of the purchase and sale contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on January 4, 2016 or
such earlier date as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties, TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE with respect to Purchaser’s
obligation to close on such date (the date on which the Closing shall occur being herein referred to as the “Closing Date”). The Closing
shall take place at the office of the Title Company or at such other place as may be agreed to by the parties. At Closing, possession of
the Property shall be delivered to Purchaser or its nominee free and clear of the possessory rights and claims of any other party other
than tenants under the Leases, existing easements, rights/contracts, recorded documents and agreements and the Seller Retained
Possession (as hereinafter defined). The Closing shall take place as an "insured” mail-in or escrow closing, at the offices of the Title
Company unless otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing.
8. Seller’s Closing Documents. On the Closing Date, Seller shall execute and/or deliver to Purchaser (or to the Title Company in
escrow) the following (collectively, “Seller’s Closing Documents”):
8.1 Deed. The Deed.
8.2 Bill of Sale. A Bill of Sale executed and acknowledged by Seller, conveying the Personal Property to Purchaser in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit H (the “Bill of Sale”).
9
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8.3 Assignment of Leases. An assignment of the Leases and Security Deposits in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I (the
“Assignment of Leases”).
8.4 Assignment of Contracts and Permits. An Assignment of Contracts and Permits, to the extent the foregoing are assignable,
conveying any Contracts and Permits to Purchaser, free and clear of all encumbrances in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J (the
“Assignment of Contracts and Permits”).
8.5 Well Disclosure Certificate. A Well Disclosure Certificate or statement on the Deed indicating that there are no wells
located upon the Real Property.
8.6 Bring-Down Certificate. A certificate dated as of the Closing Date, signed by an authorized representative of Seller,
certifying that any Seller representations and warranties set forth herein are true as of the Closing Date.
8.7 Seller’s Affidavit. An Affidavit of Seller indicating that on the Closing Date (a) there are no outstanding, unsatisfied
judgments, tax liens or bankruptcies against or involving Seller or the Real Property, (b) there has been no skill, labor or material
furnished to the Real Property within one hundred twenty (120) days preceding the Closing Date for which payment has not been
made or for which mechanics’ liens could be filed; and (c) to Seller’s knowledge, there are no other known unrecorded interests in the
Real Property, together with whatever standard owner’s affidavit and/or indemnity (ALTA Form) which may be required by the Title
Company to issue the Title Policy described in Section 5 of this Agreement.
8.8 FIRPTA Affidavit . A non-foreign affidavit, properly executed, and containing such information as required by IRC
Section 1445(b)(2) and its regulations.
8.9 IRS Reporting Form. The appropriate Federal Income Tax reporting form, if any, as required.
8.10 Closing Statement. An original of the Closing Statement.
8.11 Other Documents. All other documents required by the Title Company evidencing the status and capacity of Seller and
the authority of the person or persons who are executing the various documents on behalf of the Seller in connection with the sale of
the Property or as the Title Company may require in order to issue the Title Policy pursuant to the terms hereof.
9. Purchaser’s Closing Documents. On the Closing Date, Purchaser will execute and/or deliver to Seller the following (collectively,
“Purchaser’s Closing Documents”):
9.1 Purchase Price. The Purchase Price, in cash, as adjusted pursuant to Section 10 and after application of the Earnest Money
pursuant to Section 3.1 hereof, by wire transfer of immediate availability of funds to be received in Title Company’s trust account and
delivered to Seller on or before 11:00 a.m. local time on the Closing Date.
9.2 Assignment and Assumption Agreements . A counterpart of the Assignment of Leases and the Assignment of Contracts
and Permits, pursuant to which Purchaser will assume all
10
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obligations of Seller under the Leases, the Contracts and the Permits that accrue from and after the Closing Date.
9.3 Bring-Down Certificate. A certificate dated as of the Closing Date, signed by an authorized representative of Purchaser,
certifying that any Purchaser representations and warranties set forth herein are true as of the Closing Date.
9.4 Closing Statement. An original of the Closing Statement.
9.5 Title Documents. Such affidavits of Purchaser, Certificates of Value or other documents as may be reasonably required by
the Title Company in order to record the Seller’s Closing Documents and issue the Title Policy.
9.6 Other Documents. Such evidence or documents as may reasonably be required by Seller or the Title Company evidencing
the status and capacity of Purchaser and the authority of the person or persons who are executing the various documents on behalf of
Purchaser in connection with the purchase of the Property.
10. Prorations. Seller and Purchaser agree to the following prorations and allocations of costs regarding this Agreement:
10.1 Title Insurance and Closing Fee. Seller shall pay for the cost of the issuance of the Commitment described in Section 5 of
this Agreement. Purchaser will pay all costs of the premium or cost of the Title Policy and all additional premiums required for the
issuance of any mortgagee’s title insurance policy required by Purchaser and any endorsements thereto requested by Purchaser or its
mortgagee. Seller and Purchaser will each pay one-half of any reasonable and customary closing fee or charge imposed by any closing
agent designated by Title Insurer.
10.2 Deed Tax. Seller shall pay all state deed tax regarding the Deed to be delivered by Seller under this Agreement.
Purchaser shall pay all Mortgage Registry Tax, if any.
10.3 Real Estate Taxes and Special Assessments. At Closing, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted as follows:
10.3.1 Current Year’s Taxes. All real property taxes which have become a lien on the Real Property (“Taxes”) and
which are due and payable prior to the year in which Closing occurs, shall be paid by Seller at or prior to Closing. All Taxes which are
due and payable in the year in which Closing occurs shall be prorated to the Closing Date and Seller’s portion shall be paid by Seller at
Closing. This proration shall result in Seller’s payment of Taxes from January 1 to the date immediately prior to the Closing Date and
Purchaser’s payment of Taxes from the Closing Date to December 31.
10.3.2 Assessments. All charges for improvements or services already made to or which benefit the Property, and all
levied and pending assessments (general or special) arising out of or in connection with any assessment district created or confirmed
prior to Closing Date (“Assessments”) shall be paid in full by Seller at Closing. Notwithstanding anything to the
11
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contrary contained in this Agreement, if any Assessments on the Property are payable in installments, then the installment for the
current period shall be prorated (with Purchaser assuming the obligation to pay any installments due after the Closing Date).
10.4 Rent. Except as otherwise set forth herein, all base or fixed rent and other charges under the Leases will be prorated as of
the Closing Date. If at the Closing Date a tenant under any of the leases is delinquent in any payments required of it, then to the extent
Purchaser receives after the Closing Date from such tenant amounts in excess of the payments due Purchaser pursuant to this
Agreement, Purchaser will immediately remit such amounts to Seller.
10.5 Additional Tenant Amounts . To the extent operating expenses, including real estate taxes and special assessments are
chargeable to tenants under the Leases, Purchaser shall pay to Seller on the Closing Date the amount of all such operating expenses
prepaid by Seller and which are reimbursable but not yet reimbursed by such tenants and Purchaser shall thereafter collect and retain all
Tenant reimbursements. Seller shall transfer to Purchaser or provide Purchaser with a credit against the Purchase Price at the Closing
Date and without additional charge all security deposits and any other deposits or payments by tenants with respect to operating
expenses.
10.6 Recording Costs. Seller will pay the cost of recording all documents necessary to place record title in the condition
required under this Agreement. Purchaser will pay the cost of recording all other documents, including the Deed and any instrument of
conveyance.
10.7 Other Operating Costs. All other operating costs of the Property will be allocated between Seller and Purchaser as of the
Closing Date, so that Seller pays that part of such other operating costs payable before the Closing Date, and Purchaser pays that part
of such operating costs payable from and after the Closing Date.
10.8 Other Costs. Except as otherwise provided herein, all costs and expenses in connection with the transaction contemplated
by this Agreement shall be borne by Seller and Purchaser in the manner in which such costs and expenses are customarily allocated
between the parties at closings of real property in the State where the Property is located, including, but not limited to, Seller paying the
documentary stamp tax for the Deed and any transfer fee or transfer tax for the Deed and the recording fees for the applicable
satisfactions, as required.
10.9 Attorney’s Fees. Each of the parties will pay its own attorneys’ fees incurred in the preparation and negotiation of this
Agreement and the Closing of the transaction contemplated hereby, except that a party defaulting under this Agreement or any closing
document will pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs incurred by the non-defaulting party to enforce its rights regarding
such default and as otherwise set forth in Section 22.3 hereof.
11. Operation Prior to Closing. During the period from the date of Seller’s acceptance of this Agreement to the Closing Date (the
“Executory Period”), Seller shall operate and maintain the Property in the ordinary course of business in accordance with prudent,
reasonable business standards, including the maintenance of adequate liability insurance and insurance against loss by fire, windstorm
and other hazards, casualties and contingencies, including vandalism and malicious mischief. However, Seller shall execute no
contracts, leases or other agreements regarding the
12
3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

Property during the Executory Period that are not terminable on or before the Closing Date, without the written consent of Purchaser,
which consent may be withheld by Purchaser in its sole discretion.
12. Seller Post-Closing Possession Rights.
12.1 Upon Closing of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement, Purchaser and Seller acknowledge and agree that
(such premises described in Section 12.1 shall be collectively referred to as, the “Seller Retained Premises”):
12.1.3 From the Closing Date until March 18, 2016, Seller shall have the right to retain possession of the following
premises within the Discovery Building on the Real Property without any charge to Seller for any rent, additional rent, use or
occupancy charges or operating expenses reimbursement whatsoever:
12.1.3.1 Discovery building, floor 2, “D” pod, south; Cubical and office area known as “Executive Offices
and cubicles”; Approximately 8,000 sq ft.;
12.1.3.2 Discovery building, floor 2, “D” pod, north; Cubical and office area known as “RSI area”;
Approximately 6,000 sq ft.;
12.1.3.3 Discovery building, floor 1, “D” pod, south; Cubical and office space; Approximately 7,000 sq ft.;
12.1.3.4 Connecting hallways, access to restrooms, common areas and associated area meeting rooms; and
12.1.3.5 Discovery building, floor 1, room W112; Known as the “Data Center”; Space is less than 2,000 sq ft.
12.1.4 From the Closing Date until April 30, 2016, Seller shall have the right to occupy the following premises within
the Discovery Building on the Real Property without any charge to Seller for any rent, additional rent, use or occupancy charges or
operating expenses reimbursement whatsoever:
12.1.4.1 Discovery building, floor 1, room W112; Known as the “Data Center”; Space is less than 2,000 sq ft.
Purchaser will be notified prior to, and Purchaser representatives may be present on site when, any Excluded Property is being
removed from the Data Center and any other parts of the Seller Retained Premises; in addition, Seller agrees that the other provisions
of Sections 1.2.1 through 1.2.7 above will apply to the removal of Excluded Property, including but not limited to the Coater (as
defined below), from the Seller Retained Premises.
12.2 Seller agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser and its affiliates, partners, employees, agents, and counsel, from
and against any and all damages or deficiencies resulting from, arising out of or related to Seller’s use of and presence in the Seller
Retained Premises, including but not limited to third party claims, direct claims and any other claims. In addition, Seller agrees to
maintain (and provide to Purchaser reasonable evidence of) reasonable
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amounts and types of insurance typically maintained by tenants in leased space similar to the Seller Retained Premises.
12.3 Seller may keep and store the Excluded Property at the Real Property whether or not located within the Seller Retained
Premises in areas designated by Purchaser. Seller shall have the right to occupy the Seller Retained Premises for its normal business
operations and such other portions of the Real Property designated by Purchaser to sell any Excluded Property prior to March 18,
2016, provided, however, that solely with respect to the Mainline Coater and all associated equipment (the “Coater”) located in the
Discovery Building and currently used by 3M, Seller shall have until June 30, 2016 to sell such Coater and, in the event Seller sells the
Coater on or before such date, Purchaser agrees to cooperate with Seller to remove same from the Property. With respect to the Coater,
(i) Seller shall pay all costs associated with the removal of the Coater from the Real Property, including but not limited to the cost of
restoration of any damage caused to the Real Property as a result of such removal, (ii) Purchaser’s obligation to cooperate shall be at
Seller’s cost, (iii) Purchaser shall have the right to approve the contractor and the right to establish reasonable requirements as to the
method, timing and means selected to effect such removal and restoration, (iv) the provisions of Section 22.11.1 shall not apply to
Seller’s obligations under this Section 12.3, and (v), in the event the Coater is not removed from the Real Property by June 30, 2016,
the Coater shall, at the close of business on June 30, 2016, automatically be deemed abandoned by Seller and automatically become
the exclusive property of Purchaser. Seller’s right to retain possession of portions of the Real Property in accordance with this Section
12 shall be referred to as the “Seller Retained Possession”.
13. Representations and Warranties by Seller. Seller represents to Purchaser, as of the date hereof, and as of the Closing Date:
13.1 Seller is and on the Closing Date will be the owner of the Real Property, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions.
13.2 Seller owns the Personal Property, free and clear of all encumbrances, except security interests which will be discharged
on or before the Closing Date.
13.3 Seller is a corporation, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware.
13.4 Seller is neither a “foreign person” nor a “foreign corporation” as those terms are defined in Section 7701 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
13.5 Neither Seller nor any of its affiliates, nor any of their respective partners, members, shareholders or other equity owners,
and none of their respective employees, officers, directors, representatives or agents is, nor will they become, a person or entity with
whom United States persons or entities are restricted from doing business under regulations of the Office of Foreign Asset Control
(“OFAC”) of the Department of the Treasury (including those named on OFAC’s Specially Designated and Blocked Persons List) or
under any statute, executive order (including, without limitation, the September 24, 2001, Executive Order Blocking Property and
Prohibiting
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Transactions with Persons Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Terrorism), or other governmental action, and is not and will
not engage in any dealings or transactions or be otherwise associated with such persons or entities.
13.6 Other than the Leases and any other leases, modifications, renewals and extensions that Purchaser has consented to in
accordance with Section 11 hereof, there are no other leases or possessory rights of others regarding the Real Property. To Seller’s
knowledge, there are no material defaults by Seller or, by the tenants under the Leases.
13.7 Other than this Agreement, Seller has not entered into any other contracts for the sale of the Real Property, nor are there
any rights of first refusal or options to purchase the Real Property that might prevent the consummation of this Agreement.
13.8 This Agreement and all documents executed by Seller that are to be delivered to Purchaser at the Closing are, or at the
time of Closing will be, duly authorized, executed and delivered by Seller, and are, or at the time of Closing will be, legal, valid and
binding obligations of Seller, and do not, and at the time of Closing, will not, violate any provisions of any contract or judicial order to
which Seller is a party or to which Seller is subject. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Seller has the right, power
and authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of Seller, and to bind Seller to the terms hereof.
13.9 RADON NOTICE. RADON IS A NATURALLY OCCURRING RADIOACTIVE GAS THAT WHEN IT HAS
ACCUMULATED IN A BUILDING IN SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES, MAY PRESENT HEALTH RISKS TO PERSONS WHO
ARE EXPOSED TO IT OVER TIME. LEVELS OF RADON THAT EXCEED FEDERAL AND STATE GUIDELINES HAVE
BEEN FOUND IN BUILDINGS IN TEXAS. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING RADON AND RADON
TESTING MAY BE OBTAINED FROM YOUR COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT.
13.10 Wells. Seller knows of no wells on the Property and hereby makes the disclosure pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103I.235,
Subd. 1. At the time of Closing, Seller will deliver any required well certificate pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103I.235, Subd. 1, and if no
such well certificate is required, Seller shall include on the Deed the statement “the Seller certifies that the Seller does not know of any
wells on the described real property.”
13.11 Septic. For purposes of satisfying the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 115.55, Seller represents that there is no “individual
sewage treatment system” (within the meaning of such statute) on or serving the Real Property.
13.12 Methamphetamine Disclosure. For purposes of satisfying the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 152.0275, to Seller’s
knowledge, methamphetamine production has not occurred on the Real Property.
13.13 Leases, Etc. True, complete and correct copies of the Leases, Contracts, Permits, Plans and Records, in each case, in all
material respects, have been delivered to Purchaser.
15
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13.14 Other Environmental Matters. As of the date hereof, to Seller’s knowledge, except as disclosed in the Existing Phase I,
from and after the date of the Existing Phase I until the date hereof, Seller has not received from any Governmental Authority written
notice of any material violation of any environmental statute, environmental ordinance, environmental rule or environmental regulation
applicable (or alleged to be applicable) to the Real Property which has not been resolved.
The representations and warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement will be true now and as of the Closing Date as if made on the
Closing Date, and Seller shall have delivered to Purchaser at Closing a certificate dated the Closing Date, signed by an authorized
representative of Seller, certify that such representations and warranties are true as of the Closing Date (the “Bring-Down Certificate”).
The representations and warranties made herein by the Seller shall be deemed to be continuing representations and warranties and shall
survive the closing of the transaction herein contemplated for a period of six (6) months after the Closing, and shall not be merged in
any conveyance. As used in this Agreement, the term “Seller’s knowledge” or any such other similar term imparting knowledge to the
Seller, shall mean the current, actual, personal (and not constructive or imputed) knowledge, without independent investigation or
inquiry, of Len Swanson of Seller. Except as herein expressly stated, Purchaser is purchasing the Property based upon its own
investigation and inquiry and is not relying on any representation of Seller or other person and is agreeing to accept and purchase the
Property “as is, where is” subject to the conditions of examination herein set forth and the express warranties herein contained.
Notwithstanding and without limiting the foregoing, (i) if any of the representations or warranties of Seller that survive Closing
contained in this Agreement or in any document or instrument delivered in connection herewith are materially false or inaccurate, or
Seller is in material breach or default of any of its obligations under this Agreement that survive Closing, and Purchaser nonetheless
closes the transactions hereunder and purchases the Property, then Seller shall have no liability or obligation respecting such false or
inaccurate representations or warranties or other breach or default (and any cause of action resulting therefrom shall terminate upon the
Closing) in the event that either (x) on or prior to Closing, Purchaser shall have had knowledge of the false or inaccurate
representations or warranties or other breach or default, or (y) the accurate state of facts pertinent to such false or inaccurate
representations or warranties or other breach or default was contained in any of the information furnished or made available to or
otherwise obtained by Purchaser, and (ii) to the extent the copies of the Leases, the Contracts, Permits, Plans, Records or any other
information furnished or made available to or otherwise obtained by Purchaser prior to the date of this Agreement contain provisions or
information that are inconsistent with the foregoing representations and warranties, Seller shall have no liability or obligation respecting
such inconsistent representations or warranties (and Purchaser shall have no cause of action or right to terminate this Agreement with
respect thereto), and such representations and warranties shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to eliminate such
inconsistency and to conform such representations and warranties to such Leases, Contracts Permits, Plans, Records and other
information.
14. Representations and Warranties by Purchaser. From the Effective Date until the Closing Date, Purchaser represents to Seller, as of
the date hereof, and as of the Closing Date, that:
16
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14.1 Neither Purchaser nor any of its affiliates, nor any of their respective partners, members, shareholders or other equity
owners, and none of their respective employees, officers, directors, representatives or agents is, nor will they become, a person or entity
with whom United States persons or entities are restricted from doing business under regulations of the OFAC of the Department of
the Treasury (including those named on OFAC’s Specially Designated and Blocked Persons List) or under any statute, executive order
(including, without limitation, the September 24, 2001, Executive Order Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons
Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Terrorism), or other governmental action, and is not and will not engage in any
dealings or transactions or be otherwise associated with such persons or entities.
14.2 Purchaser is a limited liability limited partnership, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of
the State of Minnesota.
14.3 This Agreement and all documents executed by Purchaser that are to be delivered to Seller at the Closing are, or at the
time of Closing will be, duly authorized, executed and delivered by Purchaser, and are, or at the time of Closing will be, legal, valid
and binding obligations of Purchaser, and do not, and at the time of Closing, will not, violate any provisions of any contract or judicial
order to which Purchaser is a party or to which Purchaser is subject. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Purchaser
has the right, power and authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of Purchaser, and to bind Purchaser to the terms hereof.
15. 1031 Exchange. Purchaser may structure the acquisition of the Property as a like-kind exchange under Internal Revenue Code
Section 1031 at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense. Seller shall reasonably cooperate therein, provided that Seller shall incur no costs,
expenses, or liabilities in connection with Purchaser’s exchange. Purchaser shall indemnify, defend, and hold Seller harmless therefrom
and Seller shall not be required to take title to or contract for purchase of any other property. If Purchaser uses a qualified intermediary
to effectuate the exchange, any assignment of the rights or obligations of Purchaser hereunder shall not relieve, release, or absolve
Purchaser of its obligations to Seller. In no event shall Purchaser’s desire to effectuate a like-kind exchange either (i) extend the closing
beyond the Closing Date or (ii) permit Purchaser to postpone the Closing Date.
16. Damage. In the event the Property should be damaged by any casualty after the Effective Date and prior to Closing, Seller, at its
sole option, may either repair the damage (but in no event shall Seller be obligated to spend in excess of any insurance proceeds
actually received by Seller), or assign Purchaser the insurance proceeds (excluding insurance proceeds representing loss of rents for the
period from the date of such casualty through Closing) and the parties shall proceed to Closing.
17. Condemnation. In the event of a taking by condemnation or similar proceedings or actions of all of the Property, or any material
(in Purchaser’s reasonable judgment) portion of the Property, Purchaser shall have the option to terminate this Agreement upon written
notice to Seller within five (5) business days after notice thereof whereupon all Earnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser, and this
Agreement shall be null void and the parties shall have no further obligation to each other. If Purchaser does not exercise its option
under the immediately preceding sentence of
17
3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

this Section to terminate this Agreement, then the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and Seller shall assign or pay to
Purchaser at Closing, Seller’s entire interest in and to any and all condemnation awards or proceeds from any such proceedings or
actions in lieu thereof. If either party shall fail to give such notice then there shall be no reduction in the Purchase Price, and Seller shall
assign to Purchaser at the Closing Date all of Seller’s right, title and interest in and to any award made or to be made in the
condemnation proceedings.
18. Broker’s Commission. If the transaction contemplated by this Agreement is consummated in the time and manner required by this
Agreement, Seller agrees to pay Cushman & Wakefield/NorthMarq (“Seller’s Broker”) a sales commission pursuant to a separate
agreement between Seller and Seller’s Broker. If the transaction contemplated by this Agreement is consummated in the time and
manner required by this Agreement, Purchaser agrees to pay Brisky Commercial (“Purchaser’s Broker”) a sales commission pursuant
to a separate agreement between Purchaser and Purchaser’s Broker. Seller’s Broker shall be paid its commission from closing
proceeds. Purchaser shall pay the Purchaser’s Broker at Closing and provide reasonable evidence of same to Seller. Seller and
Purchaser each represent and warrant to the other that they have dealt with no other brokers in connection with this transaction other
than Seller’s Broker and Purchaser’s Broker, respectively, and agree to indemnify each other and to hold each other harmless against
all claims, damages, costs or expenses of or for any other such fees or commissions resulting from their actions or agreements regarding
the execution or performance of this Agreement, and will pay all costs of defending any action or lawsuit brought to recover any such
fees or commissions incurred by the other party, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
19. Remedies.
19.1 Purchaser’s Remedies. If Seller defaults under this Agreement, and fails to cure such default within thirty (30) days after
the date of Purchaser’s notice, then Purchaser, as its sole and exclusive right and remedy as a result of such Seller default, may elect to
either (i) cancel this Agreement, in which event the Earnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser, and thereupon no party shall have
any further right or obligation hereunder, or (ii) Purchaser may enforce specific performance of this Agreement without any reduction
or abatement of the Purchase Price; provided such election is made within sixty (60) days after the date of Seller’s default, and if no
such election is timely made, Purchaser shall be deemed to have elected cancellation and the return of the Earnest Money. However, a
decree of specific performance may not include any judgment, order or directive by which Seller is obligated to pay any money to
Purchaser except as provided in Section 22.3 of this Agreement.
19.2 Seller’s Remedies If Purchaser defaults in its obligations under this Agreement, except those contained in Section 6.1,
Seller, as its sole and exclusive remedy, shall be entitled to (i) terminate this Agreement in accordance with Minn. Stat. Section 559.21
and retain the Earnest Money as liquidated damages; or (ii) Seller may enforce specific performance of this Agreement; provided such
election is made within six (6) months days after the date of Purchaser’s default, and if no such election is timely made, Seller shall be
deemed to have elected cancellation and the retention of the Earnest Money. If Purchaser defaults in the performance of its obligations
under Section 6.1, and such default shall not be cured within ten (10) days after notice from Seller, Seller
18
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shall have and may pursue all rights and remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity, or otherwise, including, but not limited
to, an action for damages or specific performance.
20. Assignment. Neither party may assign its rights under this Agreement without the consent of the other party, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time prior to the Closing, Purchaser may
assign its interest in this Agreement to an affiliate or affiliates of Purchaser (each, a “Permitted Assignee”) without Seller’s consent but
with notice to Seller, provided that (w) the Permitted Assignee shall assume in writing all of Purchaser’s obligations pursuant to an
assignment and assumption agreement in form and content acceptable to Seller in the exercise of Seller’s reasonable judgment, (x)
Purchaser or its principals are the designated officers of such affiliate entity and control such affiliate entity, (y) Purchaser provides a
copy of such written assignment to Seller prior to Closing and Purchaser shall remain jointly and severally liable with Permitted
Assignee for all obligations and indemnifications hereunder notwithstanding such assignment and (z) such assignment shall not require
the consent of any third party or delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. As used herein, (i)
“affiliate(s)” shall mean any person which, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, such person first mentioned; (ii) “control” (including the correlative meaning of the terms “controlled by”
and “under common control with”) means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of an entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and (iii) “Person”
shall mean an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, estate, or trust. Any such assignment will
not relieve such assigning party of its obligations under this Agreement. Purchaser shall notify Seller within three (3) business days of
any assignment or transfer, including the name, address and contact information thereof.
21. Notices. All notices, demand, or other communications of any type (herein collectively referred to as “Notices”) given by the
Seller to the Purchaser or by the Purchaser to the Seller, whether required by this Agreement or in any way related to the transaction
contracted for herein, shall be void and of no effect unless given in accordance with the provisions of this Section 21. All notices shall
be in writing and delivered to the person to whom the notice is directed, either personally, by email, by nationally recognized overnight
courier, or by United States Mail, as registered or certified item, return receipt requested. Notices delivered by mail shall be effective
when deposited in a post office other depository under the care of custody of the United States Postal Service, enclosed in wrapper
with proper postage affixed, addressed, if to the Seller, as follows or at such other address as either party may from time to time specify
in writing delivered to the other party in accordance herewith:
If to Seller:
Imation Corp.
Discovery 1A-01
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1 Imation Way
Oakdale, MN 55128
Attention: Jennifer A. Tenenbaum, Senior Counsel
Telephone: (651) 704-3815
Email: jatenenbaum@imation.com
With a copy to:
Otterbourg P.C.
230 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10169
Attention: Oleg Sabel, Esq.
Telephone: (212) 905-3633
Email: osabel@otterbourg.com
If to Purchaser:
Larson Family Real Estate LLLP
3060 Centerville Road
Little Canada, MN 55117
Attention: Michael P. Larson
Telephone: (651) 787-7266
Email: michael.larson@slumberland.com
With a copy to:
Gray Plant Mooty Mooty & Bennett, P.A.
500 IDS Center
80 South Eighth Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attention: John Fitzgerald, Esq.
Telephone: (612) 632-3064
Email: john.fitzgerald@gpmlaw.com
Notices delivered personally shall be effective when actually received by the party to whom notice is sent. Notices delivered via
overnight courier shall be effective the first business day after delivery to the overnight courier for next business day delivery. Notices
delivered by electronic mail shall be effective when transmitted.
22. Miscellaneous.
22.1 This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State in which the Property is
located and the obligations of the parties hereto are and shall be performed in the county wherein the Property is located. Where
required for proper interpretation,
20
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words in singular shall include the plural, the masculine gender shall include the neuter and the feminine, and vice versa. The terms
“heirs, executors, administrators and assigns” shall include “successors, legal representatives and assigns.”
22.2
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal
representatives, successors and permitted assigns. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, except by an agreement in writing
signed by Seller and Purchaser. The parties may waive any of the conditions contained herein or any of the obligations of the other
party hereunder, but any such waiver shall be effective only if writing and signed by the party waiving such conditions or obligations.
No waiver by Purchaser or Seller of a breach of any of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall
be construed or held to be a waiver of any succeeding or preceding breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein
contained. No waiver of any default by Purchaser or Seller hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the other party to take any
action on account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall affect a default other than as
specified in such waiver.
22.3 In the event it becomes necessary for either party hereto to file a suit to enforce this Agreement or any provisions
contained herein, the party prevailing in such action shall be entitled to recover, in addition to all other remedies or damages,
reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, including appellate costs, incurred in such suit.
22.4 The descriptive heading of the several Sections and Paragraphs contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience
only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof.
22.5 This Agreement, including the Exhibits hereto and the items to be furnished in accordance hereof, constitutes the entire
agreement among the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreement and
understanding of the parties in connection therewith. No representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or condition not expressed in
this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto or shall affect or be effective to interpret, change or restrict the provisions of
this Agreement.
22.6 This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the
same agreement. It shall not be necessary that the signature of all parties appear on the same counterpart, so long as each party signs at
least one counterpart. Electronic or pdf signatures shall be deemed original.
22.7 Unless otherwise specified, in computing any period of time described in this Agreement, the day of the act or event after
which the designated period of time begins to run is not to be included, and the last day of the period so computed is to be included,
unless such last day is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday under the laws of the State in which the Property is located, in which event
the period shall run until the end of the next day which is neither a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.
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22.8 If any term or provision of this Agreement which would not deprive the parties of the benefit of the bargain shall be held
to be invalid, illegal, unenforceable or inoperative as a matter of law, the remaining terms and provision of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby, but each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and shall remain in full force and effect.
22.9 Each party hereto acknowledges that each of them has had the benefit of legal counsel of its own choice and has been
afforded an opportunity to review this Agreement with its legal counsel and that this Agreement has been jointly drafted and shall be
construed as having been jointly drafted by each party hereto. Accordingly, the rule of construction to the affect that ambiguities are to
be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement of any amendments or exhibits
hereto.
22.10 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE with respect to the performance by the parties of their respective obligations under this
Agreement.
22.11 Limitation of Liability.
22.11.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or any documents executed in
connection herewith (other than the provisions of Section 12.3 above), if the Closing of the transaction contemplated hereunder shall
have occurred, (i) the aggregate liability of Seller arising pursuant to or in connection with the representations, warranties,
indemnifications, covenants or other obligations (whether express or implied) of Seller under this Agreement or any document or
certificate executed or delivered in connection herewith shall not exceed Three Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($325,000)
(the “Liability Ceiling”) and (ii) in no event shall Seller have any liability to Purchaser unless and until the aggregate liability of Seller
arising pursuant to or in connection with the representations, warranties, indemnifications, covenants or other obligations (whether
express or implied) of Seller under this Agreement or any document or certificate executed or delivered in connection herewith shall
exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) (the “Liability Floor”). If Seller's aggregate liability to Purchaser shall exceed the Liability
Floor, Seller shall be liable for the entire amount thereof up to but not exceeding the Liability Ceiling.
22.11.2 Neither Seller nor any agent, advisor, representative, affiliate, employee, director, partner, member,
beneficiary, investor, servant, shareholder, trustee or other person or entity acting on Seller’s behalf or otherwise related to or affiliated
with Seller, shall have any personal liability, directly or indirectly, under or in connection with this Agreement or any agreement made
or entered into under or pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, or any amendment or amendments to any of the foregoing made
at any time or times, heretofore or hereafter, and Purchaser and its successors and assigns and, without limitation, all other persons and
entities, shall look solely to Seller's assets for the payment of any claim or for any performance, and Purchaser, on behalf of itself and
its successors and assigns, hereby waives any and all such personal liability.
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Purchaser have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.
SELLER:

PURCHASER

IMATION CORP.

LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE a Delaware corporation
a Minnesota limited liability limited

LLLP
partnership

By /s/ James C. Ellis
By /s/ Kenneth R. Larson
Printed Name James C. Ellis
Printed Name Kenneth R. Larson
Its Vice President
Its Partner
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EXHIBITS
EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of the Real Estate

EXHIBIT B-1

Included Property

EXHIBIT B-2

Excluded Property

EXHIBIT C

Leases and Security Deposits

EXHIBIT D

Contracts

EXHIBIT E

Permits

EXHIBIT F

Form of Escrow Agreement

EXHIBIT G

Additional Permitted Exceptions

EXHIBIT H

Form of Bill of Sale

EXHIBIT I

Form of Assignment of Leases

EXHIBIT J

Form of Assignment of Contracts and Permits
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EXHIBIT A
Legal Description
Real property in the City of Oakdale, County of Washington, State of Minnesota, described as follows:
Parcel A (Certificate of Title No. 50606):
Lot 3, Block 1, Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition.
Parcel B (Certificate of Title No. 50607):
Outlot C, Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition.
Parcel C (Abstract):
Lots 1, 2, 4, 5, and 6, Block 1; and Outlots A, D, and F, Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition.
Parcel D:
Rights of use over parts of a pipe line easement in Lots 2 and 4, Block 1, Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition, as such rights are contained in
the Skyway Agreement, dated February 23, 1998, recorded May 1, 1998 in the office of the Washington County Recorder as Doc.
No. 978395, and as such pipe line easement was amended by the Agreement Redescribing Easement, dated December 16, 1999,
recorded February 15, 2000 as Doc No. 3092702.
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EXHIBIT B-1
List of Included Property

Approximate Count
Office Space
Cubicles
Tables
Chairs
Cabinets

450
250
1600
650

Cafeteria Area
Major Appliances
Tables
Chairs and Stools
Cabinets and Open Shelving

35
90
150
35

Fitness Area
Fitness Machines
Weight Equipment

12
9

Lab and Other
Carts
Chairs and Stools
Workbenches

60
15
10

All office/conference room/other audio-visual equipment
The existing computer system, including hardware and software, that tracks all shipping and receiving of chemicals and other
hazardous substances in and out of the Real Property
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EXHIBIT B-2
List of Excluded Property
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Item

Description

1

Zeta Mill LMZ2 2 liter (Netzsch mfg) 304-R-104

2

Zeta Mill LMZ2 2 liter (Netzsch mfg) 304-R-101

3

Zeta Mill LMZ2 2 liter (Netzsch mfg) 304-R-102

4

MAINLINE COATER AND ALL ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT

5

VIBRATION TEST SYSTEM W110

6

VIBRATION TEST SYSTEM W110

7

DROP TESTER W110

8

DROP TESTER W110

9

COMPRESION TEST SYSTEM W110

10

COMPRESION TEST SYSTEM W110

11

Double Planetary Mixer 4 gal (Ross mfg) 304-B-103

12

Temperature control for Ross Mixers 3

13

Yale Pallet Truck w/Scale

14

Table, Samplemaker, model #DPS3248 W110

15

Double Planetary Mixer 40 gallon (Ross mfg) 304-B-105

16

Ross HV Mixing Blades for DPM-40 gallon mixer

17

Ross HV Mixing Blades for DPM-40 gallon mixer.1

18

Pre-Mix Disperser VC-50 liter (Netzsch mfg) 304-V-101

19

Pre-Mix Disperser VC-250 liter (Netzsch mfg) 304-V-105

20

High Shear Mixer 5 gallon (Cowles mfg) 304-A-102

21

Zeta Mill LMZ10 10 liter (Netzsch mfg) 304-R-105

22

Filter Cart 304-S-101 (Roki filter housing, Viking pump, cart)

23

Filter Cart 304-S-102 (Roki filter housing, Viking pump, cart)

24

Filter Cart 304-S-103 (Roki filter housing, Viking pump, cart)

25

V-Grip Bulk Rack starter/add-on 6'W 2'D 8'H w 4 shelf Cherry Red Double Section

26

V-Grip Bulk Rack starter addon 6'W 2'D 8'H 4 shelf Cherry Red Double Section

27

V-Grip Bulk Rack starter 6'W 2'D 8'H w4 shelf Cherry Red 1 Section

28

Wash Tank fabricated at Val Fab mfg 304-V-121

29

Wash Tank fabricated by Val Fab Inc mfg 304-V-122 20 Gal Stainless Steel

30

Mixer Stand 2, Portable to mount air mixer for drum

31

Dispensing Pumps and nozzles and braided hoses

32

MCC to house the VFDs for the Cmpd Equipment (Netzsch mfg)

33

ROLL CARTS

34

ROLL CART

35

T4ROLL BOXS (5)

36

MTXROLLS T4

37

SKI-JUMP SLIDE 1

38

OVERBITE MEASRNT

39

HV SLIDE VAC BOX

40

WZ2 - JACK ASS'Y

41

FRAME GRABBER D T3852-8 W B KOLB

42

AP CHECK PRINTER
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EXHIBIT C
Leases and Security Deposits
Lease Agreement between Imation Corp. as Landlord and Educational Credit Management Corporation as Tenant dated the 4th day of
April, 2008, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Lease Agreement dated the 1st day of December, 2010, Amendment No. 2 dated
the 4th day of May 2012 and Amendment No. 3 dated the 10th day of September 2015.
Security Deposit: None
Lease Agreement between Imation Corp. as Landlord and Eastman Kodak Company (as successor in interest to Kodak Polychrome
Graphics) as Tenant dated as of December 31, 2001, as amended by Amendment No. 1 dated December 11, 2003, Amendment No. 2,
dated October 14, 2004, Amendment No. 3 dated November 28, 2007, Amendment No. 4 dated August 1, 2012, Amendment No. 5
dated October 1, 2014 and Amendment No. 6 dated December 4, 2015.
Security Deposit: None
Amended and Restated Lease Agreement between Imation Corp. as Landlord and Carestream Health (as successor in interest to
Eastman Kodak Company), as Tenant previously entered into an dated as of January 1, 2003, as amended by a Memorandum of Lease
executed as of January 30, 2003, Amendment No. 1 dated as of November 17, 2003 and Amendment No. 2 dated as of December 11,
2006, Amendment No. 3 dated as of October 12, 2007, Amendment No. 4 dated January 21, 2008, Amendment No, 5 dated February
1, 2011, Amendment No. 6 dated August 1, 2012, Amendment No. 7 dated October 26, 2012,Amendment No. 8 dated December 14,
2013 and Amendment No. 9 dated April 1, 2013.
Security Deposit: None
PCS Site Agreement effective 1/25/99 between Imation and Sprint Spectrum LP. (This is for a cell antennae on the roof).
Coater Use Agreement dated between Imation Corp. and 3M Company dated June 18, 2012 as amended by Amendment No. 1 dated
March 13, 2013.
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EXHIBIT D
Contracts
Contract Maintenance Agreement dated December 15, 2014 between Imation Corp. and All Source Inc.
Security Officer Service Agreement dated July 25, 2006, as amended, between Imation Corp. and Allied Security LLC d/b/a
AlliedBarton Security Services
Records Management and Service Agreement dated June 1, 200, as amended, between Imation and Business Data Record Services
(technically expired)
Business Services Agreement dated January 1, 2013 between Imation Corp. and Climate Makers, Inc. (technically expired)
Architectural Engineering Services Contract effective October 4, 1999 between Imation Corp. and Elness Swenson Graham Architects
Construction Contract dated February 4, 2004 between Imation Corp. and Excel Systems, Inc.
Standing Contract effective June 18, 2002 between Imation Corp. and Firenet Systems, Inc.
Maintenance Contract dated November 11, 1996 between Imation Corp. and Floyd Total Security, as amended.
Standing Contract between Hunt Electric Corporation and Imation Corp. (only Rider 10 can be located)
[Major Account Master Lease Agreement between Imation Corp. and Konica Minolta dated August 23, 2007.]
Construction Contract dated April 15, 2003 between Imation Corp. and Lovegreen Industrial Services, Inc., as amended
Maintenance Contract dated November 18, 1999 between Imation Corp. and Low Voltage Contractors
Engineering Services Contract effective January 22, 1997 between Imation Corp. and Michaud Cooley Erickson Consulting Engineers
Construction Contract dated October 15, 2013 between Imation Corp., and MICS Construction LLC
Letter Agreement dated April 14, 1998 between Imation Corp. and Nardini Fire Equipment Company
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Service Agreement dated January 25, 2001 between Imation Corp. and Plunkett Pest Control, Inc.
Product Supply Agreement dated March 1, 1998 between Imation Enterprises Corp. and Praxair, Inc., as amended
Landscape Maintenance Agreement dated February 12, 2015 between Imation Corp. and Prescription Landscape, Inc.
Master Agreement dated January 2, 2013 between Imation Corp. and Ricoh USA, Inc.
Maintenance Contract dated February 9, 2000 between Imation Corp. and Schindler Elevator Corporation, as amended
Maintenance Contract dated June 6, 2001 between Imation Corp. and Uhl Company
Engineering Services Contract dated March 3, 2005 between Imation Corp. and Unified Theory, Inc.
Maintenance Contract dated April 4, 2000 between Imation Corp. and Videotronix, Inc.
Engineering Contract dated August 2, 2000, as amended between Imation Corp. and Yale Materials Handling Minnesota (f/k/a
Electric Forklift Supply, Inc.)

2
3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

EXHIBIT E
Permits
Air Permit 16300108-005 - MPCA
Permit expiration date - Non-expiring
This permit is non-transferable. A new application needs to be made prior to transfer of ownership.
EPA ID LQG: MNR000004143
Non expiring
Washington County Hazardous Waste License. 608
Issued: 4/7/2015 Expiration: 3/1/2016
License is non-transferable. Requires application by new owner.
Radioactive Materials License 1104-200-62 - MN Dept. Health
Issued: 3/22/2012
Expires: 11/30/2016
DEA Controlled Substance Registration Certificate - RI0250338
Issued: 10/07/2014
Expires: 11/30/2015
Not transferable on change of ownership.
MN Controlled Substance Researcher 501275-0
Issued: 4/6/2015 Expires: 5/31/2016
Currently issued to Imation employee
MN Dept. of Public Safety, Permit to Purchase and/or Possess Ethyl Alcohol
Issued: 8/11/2014
Expires: 9/27/2015
Currently issued to Imation employee
Hazardous Materials Shipper Certificate of Registration Imation Corp. 060215 554 013X
Issued: 6/2/2015 Expires: 6/30/2016
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EXHIBIT F
Form of Escrow Agreement
ESCROW AGREEMENT
THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of the ___ day of December, 2015, is among FIRST
AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, having an address at _______________________ (“Escrowee”), IMATION
CORP., having an address at _______________________ (“Seller”), and LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP, having an
address at _______________________ (“Purchaser”).
WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser entered into that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of the date hereof, for the
purchase and sale of those certain parcels of land consisting of approximately 122 acres of land, containing roughly 546,936 square
feet of improvements thereon (such improvements, structures and fixtures, collectively, the “Improvements”) (approximately 71 of the
122 acres consist of vacant land), located in the City of Oakdale, County of Washington, State of Minnesota, with an address of 1
Imation Way, commonly known as the Imation Corporate Campus (the “Property”), as more particularly described therein (hereinafter
referred to as the “Contract”);
WHEREAS, the Contract provides for the terms and conditions applicable to the sale and purchase of the Property and the
performance obligations and rights of Seller and Purchaser; and
WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser agree, pursuant to the Contract, that Escrowee shall hold, in escrow the Earnest Money
(capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein are defined pursuant to Paragraph 6 hereof) in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Contract and this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
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1. Appointment of Agent.

1.1 Purchaser and Seller hereby appoint Escrowee to act as their escrow agent on the terms and conditions hereinafter
set forth, and Escrowee accepts such appointment.
1.2 Escrowee agrees to hold the Earnest Money on behalf of the parties to the Contract, and to apply, disburse and
deliver the Earnest Money as provided in the Contract and this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between the terms and
conditions of the Contract and the terms or conditions of this Agreement, as to the obligations of Escrowee, the terms and conditions of
this Agreement shall govern and control.
2. Disposition of the Earnest Money.

2.1 Escrowee shall hold the Earnest Money in an interest bearing savings account which rate of interest need not be
maximized. Escrowee shall not commingle the Earnest Money with any other funds.
2.2

At Closing, Escrowee shall pay the Earnest Money to Seller or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the
Contract. If prior to the Closing, either party makes a demand upon Escrowee for delivery of the Earnest Money, Escrowee shall give
notice to the other party of such demand. If a notice of objection to the proposed payment is not received from the other party within
seven (7) Business Days after the giving of notice by Escrowee, Escrowee is hereby authorized to deliver the Earnest Money to the
party who made the demand. If Escrowee receives a notice of objection within said period, then Escrowee shall continue to hold the
Earnest Money and thereafter pay it to the party entitled when Escrowee receives (a) notice from the objecting party withdrawing the
objection, or (b) a notice signed by both parties directing disposition of the Earnest Money, or (c) a judgment or order of a court of
competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Earnest Money shall be immediately
paid to Seller in each and every instance of a termination of the Contract by Purchaser or Seller, except as provided in Sections 5.5.3 or
19.1 of the Contract.

2.3 Nothing in this Section 2 shall have any affect whatsoever upon Escrowee’s rights, duties, and obligations under
Section 3.
3. Concerning Escrowee.

3.1 Escrowee shall be protected in relying upon the accuracy, acting in reliance upon the contents, and assuming the
genuineness of any notice, demand, certificate, signature, instrument or other document which is given to Escrowee without verifying
the truth or accuracy of any such notice, demand, certificate, signature, instrument or other document;
3.2 Escrowee shall not be bound in any way by any other contract or understanding between the Seller and Purchaser,
whether or not Escrowee has knowledge thereof or consents thereto unless such consent is given in writing;
2
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3.3 Escrowee’s sole duties and responsibilities shall be to hold and disburse the Earnest Money in accordance with
this Agreement and the Contract; provided, however, that Escrowee shall have no responsibility for the clearing or collection of the
check representing the Earnest Money;
3.4 Upon the disbursement of the Earnest Money in accordance with this Agreement, Escrowee shall be relieved and
released from any liability under this Agreement;

3.5

Escrowee may resign at any time upon at least ten (10) Business Days prior written notice to the Seller and
Purchaser hereto. If, prior to the effective date of such resignation, the Seller and Purchaser hereto shall have approved, in writing, a
successor escrow agent, then upon the resignation of Escrowee, Escrowee shall deliver the Earnest Money to such successor escrow
agent. From and after such resignation and the delivery of the Earnest Money to such successor escrow agent, Escrowee shall be fully
relieved of all of its duties, responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement, all of which duties, responsibilities and obligations
shall be performed by the appointed successor escrow agent. If for any reason Seller and Purchaser shall not approve a successor
escrow agent within such period, Escrowee may bring any appropriate action or proceeding for leave to deposit the Earnest Money
with a court of competent jurisdiction, pending the approval of a successor escrow agent, and upon such deposit Escrowee shall be
fully relieved of all of its duties, responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement;

3.6 Seller and Purchaser hereby agree to, jointly and severally, indemnify, defend and hold harmless Escrowee from
and against any liabilities, damages, losses, costs or expenses incurred by, or claims or charges made against, Escrowee (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements) by reason of Escrowee performing its obligations pursuant to, and in accordance with,
the terms of this Agreement, but in no event shall Escrowee be indemnified for its negligence, willful misconduct or breach of the
terms of this Agreement;
3.7 In the event that a dispute shall arise in connection with this Agreement or the Contract, or as to the rights of Seller
and Purchaser in and to, or the disposition of, the Earnest Money, Escrowee shall have the right to (w) hold and retain all or any part of
the Earnest Money until such dispute is settled or finally determined by litigation, arbitration or otherwise, or (x) deposit the Earnest
Money in an appropriate court of law, following which Escrowee shall thereby and thereafter be relieved and released from any
liability or obligation under this Agreement, or (y) institute an action in interpleader or other similar action permitted by stakeholders in
the State of Minnesota, or (z) interplead Seller or Purchaser in any action or proceeding which may be brought to determine the rights
of Seller and Purchaser to all or any part of the Earnest Money; and
3.8 Escrowee shall not have any liability or obligation for loss of all or any portion of the Earnest Money by reason of
the insolvency or failure of the institution of depository with whom the escrow account is maintained.
4. Termination.
3
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This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the delivery or disbursement by Escrowee of the Earnest Money in
accordance with the terms of the Contract and terms of this Agreement, as applicable.
5. Notices.
All notices, requests or other communications which may be or are required to be given, served or sent by any party
hereto to any other party hereto shall be deemed to have been properly given, if in writing and shall be deemed delivered (a) upon
delivery, if delivered in person, or (b) one (1) Business Day after having been deposited for overnight delivery with any reputable
overnight courier service, and in each case, addressed as follows:
If to Seller:
Imation Corp.
Discovery 1A-01
1 Imation Way
Oakdale, MN 55128
Attention: Jennifer A. Tenenbaum, Senior Counsel
Telephone: (651) 704-3815
Email: jatenenbaum@imation.com
With a copy to:
Otterbourg P.C.
230 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10169
Attention: Oleg Sabel, Esq.
Telephone: (212) 905-3633
Email: osabel@otterbourg.com
If to Purchaser:
Larson Family Real Estate LLLP
3060 Centerville Road
Little Canada, MN 55117
Attention: Michael P. Larson
Telephone: (651) 787-7266
Email: michael.larson@slumberland.com
With a copy to:
Gray Plant Mooty Mooty & Bennett, P.A.
500 IDS Center
4
3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

80 South Eighth Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attention: John Fitzgerald, Esq.
Telephone: (612) 632-3064
Email: john.fitzgerald@gpmlaw.com
If to Escrowee:
First American Title Insurance Company
National Commercial Services
801 Nicollet Mall, Suite 1900
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attention: Nicole Haapala
Telephone: (612) 305-2014
Email: nhaapala@firstam.com
6. Capitalized Terms.
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Contract.
7. Governing Law/Waiver of Trial by Jury.
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA APPLICABLE TO AGREEMENTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED
ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CONFLICTS OF LAW PRINCIPLES OF SUCH STATE.
THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.
8. Successors.
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and permitted assigns of the
parties hereto; provided, however, that except as expressly provided herein as to the Escrowee, this Agreement may not be assigned by
any party without the prior written consent of the other parties.
9. Entire Agreement.
This Agreement, together with the Contract, contains the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings relating to such subject matter.
5
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10. Amendments.
Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no amendment, modification, termination, cancellation, rescission or
supersession to this Agreement shall be effective unless it shall be in writing and signed by each of the parties hereto.
11. Counterparts and/or Email/Facsimile Signatures.
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, including counterparts transmitted by facsimile or
email, any one of which shall constitute an original of this Agreement. When counterparts or facsimile or email copies have been
executed by all parties, they shall have the same effect as if the signatures to each counterpart or copy were upon the same documents
and copies of such documents shall be deemed valid as originals. The parties agree that all such signatures may be transferred to a
single document upon the request of any party. This Agreement shall not be binding unless and until it shall be fully executed and
delivered by all parties hereto.
12. Severability.
If any provision of the Agreement or the application of any such provision to any person or circumstance shall be held
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall
not affect any other provision hereof.
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank;
Signatures Follow on Next Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Escrow Agreement as of the date and year first
above written.

FIRST AMERICAN TITLE
INSURANCE COMPANY

By:________________________________
Name:
Title:

IMATION CORP.,
a Delaware corporation
By: __________________________
Name:
Title:

LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE
LLLP,
a Minnesota limited partnership

By:________________________________
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT G
Additional Permitted Exceptions
Schedule B, Part I, Exceptions #3 through #19 and Schedule B, Part II Items #1 through #3 of the Loan Policy of Title Insurance
Number NCS-393863-MPLS dated June 8, 2009 issued by First American Title Insurance Company, a copy of which was provided
to Purchaser.
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EXHIBIT H
Form of Bill of Sale
BILL OF SALE AND GENERAL ASSIGNMENT
THIS BILL OF SALE AND GENERAL ASSIGNMENT (this “Assignment”) is executed as of the ____ day of
_____________, 2016, by IMATION CORP., having an address at _______________________ (“Assignor”), in favor of LARSON
FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP, having an address at _______________________ (“Assignee”).
WHEREAS, Assignee is this day purchasing from Assignor and Assignor is conveying to Assignee the Real Property (as such
term is defined in that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of December ____, 2015, between Assignor and Assignee (the
“Agreement”)).
WHEREAS, Assignor desires to sell, assign, transfer, set over and deliver to Assignee all of Assignor’s rights, if any, in and to
the Personal Property (as such term is defined in the Agreement) (the “Assigned Properties”) and Assignee wishes to accept such sale,
assignment, transfer, set over and delivery.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Assignor hereby assigns, transfers, sets over and delivers to Assignee, its successors and assigns, all of Assignor’s right,
title and interest, if any, in and to the Assigned Properties.
2. This Assignment is made without warranty, representation, or guaranty by, or recourse against Assignor of any kind
whatsoever, except as expressly set forth in the Agreement.
3. Assignor’s liability under this Assignment shall be subject to the limitations provided for in the Agreement.
4. This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which may be executed by any one or more of
the parties hereto, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and shall be binding and effective when all parties
hereto have executed and delivered at least one counterpart.
5. The terms and provisions of this Assignment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto,
and their respective successors and assigns.
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank:
Signature Follows on Next Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor has caused this Assignment to be duly executed as of the day and year first written above.
ASSIGNOR:
IMATION CORP.,
a Delaware corporation
By: __________________________
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT I
Form of Assignment of Leases
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES
THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES (this “Assignment”) is executed as of the ____ day of
__________, 2016, by and between IMATION CORP., having an address at _______________________ (“Assignor”), and
LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP, having an address at _______________________ (“Assignee”).
WHEREAS, Assignee is this day purchasing from Assignor and Assignor is conveying to Assignee the Real Property
(as such term is described in that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of December __, 2015, between Assignor and
Assignee (the “Agreement”)).
WHEREAS, the Property is encumbered by those certain tenants (the “Tenants”) occupying space under the leases
listed and described on Exhibit A annexed hereto and made a part hereof (collectively, the “Tenant Leases”).
WHEREAS, Assignor desires to transfer and assign to Assignee, and Assignee desires to assume as provided herein,
all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in and to the Tenant Leases.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1.

Assignor hereby transfers and assigns to Assignee all right, title and interest of Assignor in and to the Tenant Leases.

2.
Assignee hereby affirmatively and unconditionally assumes all of Assignor’s obligations and liabilities under the Tenant
Leases arising from and after the date hereof.
3.
This Assignment is made without warranty, representation, or guaranty by, or recourse against Assignor of any kind
whatsoever, except as expressly set forth in the Agreement.
4.

Assignor’s liability under this Assignment shall be subject to the limitations provided for in the Agreement.

5.
This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which may be executed by any one or more of
the parties hereto, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and shall be binding and effective when all parties
hereto have executed and delivered at least one counterpart.
6.
The terms and provisions of this Assignment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties
hereto, and their respective successors and assigns.
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[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank:
Signatures Follow on Next Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Assignment to be duly executed as of the day and year first written
above.
ASSIGNOR:
IMATION CORP.,
a Delaware corporation
By: __________________________
Name:
Title:

ASSIGNEE:
LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP,
a Minnesota limited liability limited
partnership
By: ______________________________
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT J
Form of Assignment of Contracts and Permits
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF CONTRACTS
THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF CONTRACTS (this “Assignment”) is executed as of the ____ day of
______, 2016, by and between IMATION CORP., having an address at _______________________ (“Assignor”), and LARSON
FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP, having an address at _______________________ (“Assignee”).
WHEREAS, Assignee is this day purchasing from Assignor and Assignor is conveying to Assignee the Real Property (as such
term is described in that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of December ____, 2015, between Assignor and Assignee (the
“Agreement”)).
WHEREAS, in connection with its ownership and management of the Real Property, Assignor has entered into those certain
service and maintenance contracts, equipment leases and other contracts, in effect on the date hereof, listed and described on Exhibit A
annexed hereto and made a part hereof (collectively, the “Contracts”).
WHEREAS, Assignor desires to transfer and assign to Assignee, and Assignee desires to assume as herein provided, all of
Assignor’s right, title and interest in and to the Contracts.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1.

Assignor hereby transfers and assigns to Assignee all right, title and interest of Assignor in and to the Contracts.

2.
This Assignment shall constitute a direction and full authority to any person or entity that is a party to any of the Contracts
to perform its obligation under the Contracts for the benefit of Assignee without further proof to any such party of the assignment to
Assignee of the Contracts.
3.
Assignee hereby affirmatively and unconditionally assumes all of the obligations and liabilities of Assignor under the
Contracts arising from and after the date hereof.
4.
This Assignment is made without warranty, representation, or guaranty by, or recourse against Assignor of any kind
whatsoever, except as expressly set forth in the Agreement.
5.

Assignor’s liability under this Assignment shall be subject to the limitations provided for in the Agreement.

6.
This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which may be executed by any one or more of
the parties hereto, but all of which shall constitute one and
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the same instrument, and shall be binding and effective when all parties hereto have executed and delivered at least one counterpart.
7.
The terms and provisions of this Assignment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties
hereto, and their respective successors and assigns.
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank:
Signature Follows on Next Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Assignment to be duly executed as of the day and year first written
above.
ASSIGNOR:
IMATION CORP.,
a Delaware corporation
By: __________________________
Name:
Title:

ASSIGNEE:
LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP,
a Minnesota limited liability limited partnership

By:
Name:
Title:

3877973.10

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “ First Amendment”) is made and
entered into as of this 30th day of December, 2015, by and between Imation Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Seller”), and Larson
Family Real Estate LLLP, a Minnesota limited liability limited partnership (“Purchaser”).
RECITALS
A.
Seller and Purchaser entered into a certain Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of December 18, 2015 (the
“Agreement”), with respect to the purchase and sale of certain real property described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part
hereof.
B.

Seller and Purchaser desire to modify the Agreement as set forth in this First Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by Seller and Purchaser, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1.
Incorporation of Definitions. All undefined capitalized terms used in this First Amendment shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in the Agreement.
2.
Post-Closing Adjustments of Prorations. Seller and Purchaser shall adjust any apportionments made under Article 10 of
the Agreement after the Closing to account for errors or incorrect estimates (whether as a result of an error in calculation or a lack of
complete and accurate information as of the Closing) made as of the Closing Date (it being agreed that the parties’ aforesaid agreement
to make such adjustments shall survive the Closing for a period of ninety (90) days). Seller and Purchaser agree to cooperate with each
other in making such adjustments after the Closing and to promptly pay to each other any sums to which a party may be entitled as a
result of such adjustments. To the extent that pursuant to the provisions hereof, Seller is entitled to, or responsible for, any portion of
rents or charges payable under any Lease after the Closing, Purchaser shall bill tenants under the Leases for all rents and charges as
provided by their respective Lease and Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts to collect any and all rents and charges due
pursuant thereto; it being understood that Purchaser shall have no obligation to terminate any Lease or institute any collection actions
for tenants’ failure to pay such rents and charges. To the extent the tenants under the Leases have paid, or pay after the Closing, to
Seller any such rents or charges that are due Purchaser because of the apportionments and any adjustments there to, Seller agrees to
pay over to Purchaser such funds.
3.
Counterparts. This First Amendment or the signature pages hereof, may be executed in any number of original
counterparts, all of which evidence only one agreement and only one full and complete copy of which need be produced for any
purpose. A facsimile or PDF of a signature will have the same legal effect as an original signature.
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4.
Reaffirmation. Except as expressly amended by this First Amendment, the parties hereto agree that the terms, conditions
and provisions of the Agreement are hereby ratified and reaffirmed and shall remain in full force and effect. This First Amendment and
the Agreement shall hereafter be read and construed together as a single document, and all references to the Agreement contained in
the Agreement or any other instrument shall hereafter refer to the Agreement as amended by this First Amendment.
[Signatures Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Purchaser have executed this First Amendment as of the date first above written.
SELLER:
IMATION CORP., a Delaware corporation
By:
/s/ James C. Ellis
Name: James C. Ellis
Title: Vice President

PURCHASER:
LARSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE LLLP, a Minnesota limited liability limited
partnership
By: Larson Enterprises, its General Partner
By: /s/ John W. Fitzgerald
Name: John W. Fitzgerald, as attorney in
Title: Partner

fact for Kenneth R. Larson,
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EXHIBIT A
Legal Description
Parcel 1:
Lots 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6, Block 1; and Outlots A, D and F, Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition, according to the recorded plat thereof,
Washington County, Minnesota.
(Abstract property)
Parcel 2:
Lot Three (3), Block One (1), Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition, according to the plat thereof on file and of record in the Office of
the Registrar of Titles, Washington County, Minnesota.
(Torrens property)
Parcel 3:
Outlot C, Oakdale Farm 2nd Addition, according to the plat thereof on file and of record in the Office of the Registrar of Titles,
Washington County, Minnesota.
(Torrens property)
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TRADEMARK PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This Trademark Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made effective as of January 4, 2016 by and between Imation
Corp., a Delaware corporation having offices at 1 Imation Way, Oakdale, Minnesota 55128 (“Imation” and/or “Seller”), and DPI, Inc.,
a Missouri corporation having offices at 900 N. 23rd Street, St. Louis, Missouri 63106 (“DPI” and/or “Buyer”).
Background
WHEREAS, Imation owns the MEMOREX trademark and certain other related trademarks for use in connection with
consumer electronics products, data storage products, blank audio and video recording media, and related accessories, and the goodwill
associated therewith, and Imation is desirous of selling the MEMOREX trademark and certain other related trademarks and the
associated goodwill under the terms and conditions set forth herein in exchange for the cash consideration to be paid by DPI as
provided in this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter contained, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Imation and DPI each hereby agree as follows:
1.

Purchase of Assets. At the Closing on the Closing Date (each as defined in Section 5 hereof), Imation shall sell and assign to
DPI and DPI shall purchase and assume from Imation, all of Imation’s right, title and interest in, to and under all of the
following (collectively, the “Assets”):
(a)

All right, title and interest in and to the MEMOREX trademark, including the trademark registrations and applications
identified on Schedule 1(a)), and the common law marks identified on Schedule 1(a) (collectively, the MEMOREX
trademark, the trademarks covered in the trademark registrations and applications, and the common law trademarks may
be referred to as the “Mark”), all domain name registrations identified on Schedule 1(a), and all goodwill associated
with the Mark (collectively, the “Trademark Rights”);

(b)

all licenses for or of the Mark (including the MEM-CE, LLC (“MEM-CE”) and PNY Technologies, Inc. (“PNY”)
licenses identified on Schedule 1(a), which may be referred to as the “MEM-CE License” and “PNY Licenses,”
respectively), including, without limitation, the right to receive the greater of (i) the annual minimum royalties due under
the PNY Licenses based upon the sale of products bearing the Mark and the sale of products bearing the IMATION
trademark or (ii) royalties attributable to the sale of products bearing the Mark;

(c)

All rights, claims, causes of action, privileges and defenses of Imation against any third party with respect to any of the
Assets listed in this Section 1, except to the
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extent such rights, claims, causes of action, privileges or defenses relate or pertain to any Imation Liabilities as defined
in Section 2(b); and
(d)

Historical brand and marketing collateral, including product information, supplier contacts, and original artwork, in each
case to the extent related to the Mark and in the possession of or otherwise reasonably available to Imation.

For the avoidance of doubt, DPI is not purchasing and Imation is not selling any other assets of Imation, including Imation’s
right to any royalties related to the period prior to Closing under the MEM-CE License and PNY Licenses or Imation’s security
interest in MEM-CE’s assets securing Imation’s right to collect amounts owned by MEM-CE to Imation.
2.

3.

Purchase Price and No Assumption of Liabilities.
(a)

In consideration for the purchase of the Assets, DPI agrees to pay to Imation nine million, four hundred thousand
dollars $9,400,000 (the “Purchase Price”) less an earnest deposit of one million dollars $1,000,000 previously paid by
DPI to Imation on December 23, 2015, which earnest deposit will become non-refundable at the Closing.

(b)

DPI is not assuming and shall not be liable for any pre-Closing liability or obligation of Imation, whether known,
unknown, existing, contingent on future events, accrued, funded, unfunded or otherwise, including without limitation,
any liabilities or obligations related to product warranty and service, product returns, product liability, employee benefit
plans (including severance payments), environmental matters, indebtedness for borrowed money, including accrued
interest, accrued wages, salaries, employee withholdings and other compensation-related expenses, special bonuses,
legal fees or sales taxes payable (collectively, the “Imation Liabilities”).

Representations and Warranties of Imation. Imation hereby represents and warrants to DPI as follows as of the Closing:
(a)

Existence, Good Standing and Capacity. Imation is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is qualified to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in
which such qualification is necessary to conduct its business.

(b)

Authority; Consents. The execution, delivery and consummation of this Agreement and all other agreements, schedules,
exhibits and certificates that are referred to herein (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) to be delivered by
Imation at Closing have been duly authorized by Imation’s Board of Directors (and, if necessary, Imation’s
stockholders) in accordance with all applicable laws and Imation’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as amended.
Except for the consent of MEM-CE to the assignment of the MEM-CE License, no approval or consent of any person,
PNY, or governmental agency is required to be obtained by Imation for the

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

authorization of the Transaction Documents or the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby. Imation has
full power and authority to execute and deliver the Transaction Documents to which it is or will be a party, to
consummate the transactions contemplated thereby, and to perform its obligations thereunder. This Agreement
constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Imation enforceable in accordance with its terms.
(c)

No Conflicts. The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents, the consummation of this transaction and the
fulfillment of the terms and provisions of the Transaction Documents will not breach or violate (i) Imation’s certificate
of incorporation or bylaws, as amended, (ii) any material contract or material agreement to which Imation is a party of
by which it or any of its assets are bound, or (iii) any applicable Law or Governmental Order (hereinafter defined). For
purposes of this Agreement, “Law” means, without limitation, any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule, constitution,
restriction, directive, decree, code, order, judgment, requirement or rule of law (including common law) of any
governmental authority. “Governmental Order” means any order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, stipulation,
determination or award entered by, on behalf of or with any governmental authority.

(d)

Title to Assets. Imation has good and marketable title to all of the Assets, and title to the Assets will be transferred to
DPI at Closing free and clear of all liens, claims, licenses and encumbrances (collectively, “Liens”) (other than the
MEM-CE License and PNY Licenses).

(e) Intellectual Property Rights.
(i)

Imation is the sole and exclusive owner of all of the Trademark Rights, and, at Closing, DPI will receive good
and marketable title to all of the Trademark Rights, free and clear of all Liens other than the MEM-CE License
and PNY Licenses. None of the Trademark Rights have been heretofore assigned or transferred, in whole or in
part, by Imation to any third party.

(ii)

To Imation’s Knowledge, neither the Trademark Rights nor Imation’s use thereof has interfered with, infringed
upon, misappropriated, or otherwise come into conflict with any trademark, service mark, and trade name, or
other intellectual property or proprietary right of any third party, and Imation has not received any written
charge, complaint, claim, demand, or notice alleging any such interference, infringement, misappropriation, or
violation (including any claim that Imation must license or refrain from using any intellectual property rights of
any third party). To Imation’s Knowledge, no third party has interfered with, infringed upon, misappropriated,
or otherwise come into conflict with any of Imation’s rights with respect to the Trademark Rights. As to the
MEM-CE License, to Imation’s knowledge, Imation has complied in all material respects with all provisions of
the MEM-CE License,
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no claims have been asserted or threatened against Imation in connection with the MEM-CE License, and there
is no litigation, pending or threatened, with respect to the MEM-CE License except in connection with MEMCE’s failure to pay certain royalty payments due to Imation under the MEM-CE License. As to the PNY
Licenses, to Imation’s knowledge, Imation has complied in all material respects with all provisions of the PNY
Licenses, no claims have been asserted or threatened against Imation in connection with the PNY Licenses, and
there is no litigation, pending or threatened, with respect to the PNY Licenses. For purposes of this Agreement,
“Imation’s Knowledge” means the actual knowledge of John Breedlove or Alicia Griffin Mills.

(f)

(iii)

With respect to the Trademark Rights: (A) the Trademark Rights are not subject to any outstanding injunction,
judgment, order, decree, ruling or charge; (B) no action, suit, proceeding, hearing, investigation, charge,
complaint, claim or demand is pending or, to Imation’s Knowledge, threatened that challenges the legality,
validity, enforceability, use or ownership of the Trademark Rights, and to Imation’s Knowledge there are no
grounds for the same other than challenges based on non-use of the Mark in any foreign jurisdiction or failure to
record or file a license agreement in any foreign jurisdiction; (C) except as set forth in the MEM-CE License
and the PNY Licenses, Imation has never indemnified any person for or against any interference, infringement,
misappropriation, or other conflict with respect to the Trademark Rights; (D) to Imation’s Knowledge, no loss
or expiration of the Trademark Rights is threatened, pending, or reasonably foreseeable other than by the
expiration of registrations if not renewed or challenge based on non-use of the Mark in any foreign jurisdiction
or failure to record or file a license agreement in any foreign jurisdiction; and (E) Imation is not, and DPI will
not be obligated to, pay any amount to any other person by reason of any act or omission of Imation, whether as
a royalty, license fee or otherwise, and pursuant to the terms and conditions of Imation’s agreement with The
Laurel Group, Inc., the obligations of Imation to pay to The Laurel Group, Inc. a percentage of the royalties
received from MEM-CE under the MEM-CE License only applies to royalties paid to Imation, not a successor
or assignee of Imation, and will not transfer to DPI.

(iv)

Imation has complied in all material respects with and is presently in compliance in all material respects with all
foreign, federal, state, local, governmental, administrative or regulatory Laws, regulations, guidelines and rules
applicable to the Trademark Rights.

Litigation. Imation is not a party to any litigation, arbitration or proceeding which is pending or, to Imation’s
Knowledge, threatened before any court, governmental authority, arbitrator, or board of arbitrators which relates to any
of the Assets.
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(g)

4.

5.

Disclaimer of Other Representations and Warranties. Except as expressly set forth in this Section 3, Imation does not
make any representation or warranty, express or implied, at law or in equity, with respect to Imation, its affiliates, the
Assets or their respective financial conditions, assets, liabilities or operations, or their past, current or future profitability
(including with respect to the Trademark Rights) or performance or any other matter, and Imation specifically disclaims
any such other representations or warranties.

Representations and Warranties of DPI. DPI represents and warrants to Imation as follows as of the Closing:
(a)

Existence and Good Standing. DPI is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of Missouri, and is qualified to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in which such
qualification is necessary to conduct its business.

(b)

Authority; Consents. The execution, delivery, and consummation of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby by DPI has been duly authorized by DPI’s Board of Directors in accordance with all applicable laws and DPI’s
articles of incorporation and bylaws, as amended. No further approval or consent of any person or governmental
agency is required to be obtained by DPI for the authorization of the Transaction Documents to which DPI is or will be
a party or the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby. DPI has full power and authority to execute and
deliver the Transaction Documents to which it is or will be a party, to consummate the transactions contemplated
thereby, and to perform its obligations thereunder. This Agreement constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation
of DPI enforceable in accordance with its terms.

(c)

No Conflicts. The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents, the consummation of this transaction and the
fulfillment of the terms and provisions of the Transaction Documents will not breach or violate (i) DPI’s articles of
incorporation or bylaws, as amended, (ii) any material contract or material agreement to which DPI is a party of by
which it or any of its assets are bound, or (iii) any applicable Law or Governmental Order.

(d)

Disclaimer of Other Representations and Warranties. Except as expressly set forth in this Section 4, DPI does not make
any representation or warranty, express or implied, at law or in equity, with respect to DPI, its affiliates, or their
respective financial conditions, assets, liabilities or operations, or their past, current or future profitability or performance
or any other matter, and DPI specifically disclaims any such other representations or warranties.

Closing.
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(a)

Time and Place. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall take place on the
date hereof, effective at 12:01 a.m. on such date (the “Closing Date”). The Closing shall be effectuated by the exchange
of documents using electronic mail, facsimile, overnight courier or other mutually satisfactory document delivery
service.

(b)

Deliveries of Imation at Closing. At the Closing, Imation shall deliver to DPI the following documents:

(c)

(i)

a bill of sale and assignment agreement transferring and assigning good and marketable title to all of the Assets,
to DPI free and clear of Liens in the form set forth on Exhibit A hereto (the “Bill of Sale”); and

(ii)

assignments to DPI of all Trademark Rights in the form set forth on Exhibit B, which shall effectively transfer
all Trademark Rights to DPI, and which will be recordable with the United Stated Patent and Trademark Office
to transfer good title to United States registrations and applications for the Mark, and may be suitable for
recording in other countries (the “IP Assignment”).

Deliveries of DPI at Closing. At the Closing, DPI shall deliver the following documents:
(i)

payment of the portion of the Purchase Price due at Closing, in accordance with Section 2 hereof;

(ii) the Bill of Sale; and
(iii) the IP Assignment.
6.

Indemnifications; Survival of Representations and Warranties and Indemnifications.
(a)

Indemnification by Imation. Imation hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold DPI, its parent companies and
affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees, members, managers, agents (including their respective
accountants and attorneys), representatives, successors and assigns (collectively, the “DPI Group”), harmless of, from
and against any and all losses, damages, deficiencies, charges, fines, costs and expenses whatsoever (including interest,
penalties, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses and all reasonable amounts paid in investigation or defense)
(collectively “Losses”), incurred or sustained by the DPI Group, or any of them, arising from or relating to:
(i)

any breach by Imation of any representation or warranty contained in the Transaction Documents;
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(b)

(c)

(ii)

any breach by a Imation of any covenant or agreement contained in the Transaction Documents;

(iii)

the Imation Liabilities;

(iv)

any taxes for pre-Closing periods solely to the extent such taxes arise out of the operation of the business related
to the Assets or the ownership of such Assets;

(v)

any brokerage compensation or finder’s fee owed by Imation as a result of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement; and

(vi)

any claims arising from or based upon Imation’s breach of or non-performance under the PNY Licenses after
the Closing.

Indemnification by DPI. DPI hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Imation, its affiliates and their
respective officers, directors, employees, members, managers, agents (including their respective accountants and
attorneys) representatives, successors, representatives and assigns (collectively, the “Imation Group”), harmless of, from
and against any and all Losses incurred or sustained by the Imation Group, or any of them, arising from or relating to:
(i)

any breach by DPI of any representation or warranty contained in the Transaction Documents;

(ii)

any breach by a DPI of any covenant or agreement contained in the Transaction Documents;

(iii)

any brokerage compensation or finder’s fee owed by DPI as a result of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement; and

(iv)

any claims arising from or based upon use of the Mark or exploitation of the Trademark Rights by DPI or its
licensees, including but not limited to product liability and product warranty or DPI’s breach of or nonperformance under the MEM-CE License or PNY Licenses after the Closing, other than Losses resulting from a
breach by Imation of any representation or warranty contained in the Transaction Documents.

Claim Procedure. If a Claim is asserted after the Closing against Imation on the one hand, or DPI, on the other, for
which indemnification may be sought under the provisions of this Section 6, Imation or DPI shall promptly notify the
other in writing of the Claim and the indemnifying party shall thereafter undertake the defense of the Claim, with
counsel acceptable to the indemnified party, which acceptance will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed. If the party responsible for indemnifying the other party hereunder does not promptly undertake and actively
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and diligently conduct the defense of any Claim hereunder, then the indemnified party may undertake the defense of the
Claim itself, with counsel of its or his own choosing, and the indemnifying party shall reimburse the indemnified party
for all reasonable costs and expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by such party in
defending and resolving the Claim, which shall be reimbursed from time to time upon the indemnified party giving the
indemnifying party an invoice for the same. The parties agree to provide the other party such assistance as the other
party may reasonably request in order to defend, settle or compromise any claim hereunder, and neither party shall settle
or compromise any claim under this Section without the consent of the other party, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. DPI and Imation shall be obligated to indemnify for those Claims
giving rise to damages as to which the aggrieved party has given the other party written notice prior to the end of the
applicable indemnity period as set forth in Section 6(d).
(d)

Survival of Representations and Warranties. All of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall
survive for a period of 24 months following the Closing, except for those set forth in Sections 3(a), 3(b), 3(d), 4(a) and
4(b), which shall survive indefinitely. In the event notice of any claim for indemnification under this Section 6 will have
been given within the applicable survival period and such claim has not been finally resolved by the expiration of such
survival period, the representations or warranties that are the subject of such claim will survive, but only to the extent of
and in the amount of the claim as made prior to the expiration of the survival period, until such claim is finally resolved.
The right to indemnification or other remedy based on such representations, warranties and covenants will not be
affected by any investigation conducted, or any knowledge acquired at any time, whether before or after the Closing
Date, by the party to be indemnified, with respect to the accuracy or inaccuracy of or compliance with any such
representation, warranty or covenant.

(e)

Indemnification Limitations. In no event will Imation be liable for indemnification pursuant to Section 6(a) unless and
until the aggregate amount of all Losses with respect to Section 6(a) that are imposed on or incurred by the DPI Group
exceeds $50,000 (the “Basket”), in which case the DPI Group will be entitled to indemnification for all Losses without
regard to the Basket. Imation will not be required to make payments for indemnification pursuant to Section 6(a) in an
aggregate amount in excess of $4,700,000.

(f)

Characterization of Indemnity Payments. Any indemnification payments made pursuant to this Agreement shall be
considered, to the extent permissible under law, as adjustments to the Purchase Price for all tax purposes.

(g)

Exclusive Remedy. In the absence of fraud, the indemnification provisions set forth in this Section 6 shall provide the
exclusive remedy of members of the DPI Group or Imation Group arising out of or related to the Transaction
Documents.
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7.

Post-Closing Covenants.
(a)

Taxes. Imation and DPI shall each be responsible for paying 50% of any sales, use, and other similar taxes and
assessments arising out of the transfer of the Assets to DPI under this Agreement.

(b)

Further Assurances. The parties shall execute such further documents, and perform such further acts, as may be
reasonably requested by DPI to transfer and convey the Assets to DPI on the terms contained herein, and to otherwise
comply with the terms of this Agreement and consummate the transaction contemplated hereby, including, but not
limited to, at DPI’s request and expense, Imation shall execute additional assignments of Trademark Rights suitable for
recording in countries outside the United States upon presentation to Imation of such assignments.

(c)

At Imation’s written request, DPI shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with Imation’s efforts to
collect any amounts owed by MEM-CE to Imation under the MEM-CE License and Imation will reimburse DPI for
any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by DPI in connection therewith. DPI shall have the right to manage the Assets as it
sees fit following the Closing. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, DPI reserves the right to continue,
terminate, re-negotiate, or restructure the MEM-CE License included in the Assets following the Closing; provided,
however, that consistent with Section 1 above, DPI shall not renegotiate, restructure or otherwise amend the MEM-CE
License in a manner that would adversely affect Imation’s right to any royalties related to the period prior to Closing
under the MEM-CE License and PNY Licenses or Imation’s security interest in MEM-CE’s assets securing Imation’s
right to collect amounts owned by MEM-CE to Imation.

(d)

DPI hereby assumes the PNY Licenses and in connection therewith, at Imation’s expense, Imation and DPI will use
their respective commercially reasonable efforts to (i) transfer to DPI the rights and obligations under the PNY Licenses
to the extent related to the Trademark Rights, including transfer to DPI of the rights to receive the greater of (1) the
annual minimum royalties due under the PNY Licenses based upon the sale of products bearing the Mark and the sale
of products bearing the IMATION trademark or (2) royalties attributable to the sale of products bearing the Mark, and
(ii) retain for the benefit of Imation the rights and obligations under the PNY Licenses to the extent related to the
IMATION trademark, including the right to receive the royalties that are in excess of the annual minimum royalties and
attributable to the sale of products bearing the IMATION trademark. Imation and DPI acknowledge that such efforts
could include, but not necessarily require, replacing the current licenses with new license agreements, a limited purpose
sub-license agreement, or other solutions mutually agreed upon by DPI, Imation, and PNY.
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8.

(e)

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, DPI hereby assumes the MEM-CE License, regardless of
whether such assumption without the consent of MEM-CE would constitute a breach or in any way adversely affect the
rights of DPI or Imation or its affiliates thereunder. DPI will use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain any
required consent from MEM-CE. Imation will, at DPI’s expense and written request, use its commercially reasonable
efforts to cooperate with DPI in obtaining such consents. In the event that DPI is unable to receive MEM-CE’s consent,
and if MEM-CE will not recognize DPI as the rightful party to the MEM-CE License, Imation shall, at the direction and
expense of DPI, use its commercially reasonable efforts to protect the Mark and DPI’s interests in the Mark (including,
without limitation, terminating the MEM-CE License in the event that grounds for termination exist), and shall use
commercially reasonable efforts not do anything itself or assist any other party to do anything that would harm the Mark
or DPI’s interest in the Mark.

(f)

Imation will make no further use of the Mark on or in connection with any goods or services of any kind, other than to
liquidate any MEMOREX branded inventory currently owned by Imation.

Miscellaneous.
(a)

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Imation and DPI and, as applicable,
their respective successors and permitted assigns.

(b)

Notices. All notices and communications required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed effectively given in all respects: (i) when received, if manually delivered; (ii) when
delivered on the date indicated on a return receipt, if posted by either registered or certified U.S. Mail, return receipt
requested, or by a next day delivery service which maintains records of the time, place and recipient of delivery; or (iii)
upon delivery as reflected in the confirmation if sent by confirmed facsimile transmission, and in each case if directed to
the party at the address and/or facsimile transmission number set forth below, or to such other address or facsimile
transmission designated by any party in accordance with this Section.
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If to DPI, Inc. to:

If to Imation Corp. to:

Paul Green
Chief Financial Officer
DPI, Inc.
900 N. 23rd Street
St. Louis, MO 63103

General Counsel
1 Imation Way
Oakdale, MN 55128
Phone: 651-704-3006
Facsimile: 651-704-4412

Phone: 314-621-3314
Facsimile: 314-621-0869
Email: pgreen@dpiinc.com

With a copy to:
Matthew J. Himich
Thompson Coburn LLP
One US Bank Plaza
St. Louis, MO 63101
Email: mhimich@thompsoncoburn.com
Facsimile: 314/552-7000

(c)

Amendments. No modifications or amendments of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and signed
by a duly authorized representative of both Imation and DPI.

(d)

Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
Delaware, without regard to the conflicts of laws rules thereof. The parties agree that jurisdiction and venue in any
action brought by either party pursuant to this Agreement shall lie exclusively in the Delaware Court of Chancery or
any federal court located in Delaware, irrespective of the fact that such party is not a resident or qualified to do business
in such state or county. By execution and delivery of this Agreement, the parties irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction
of such courts for itself and in respect of its property with respect to such action. The parties irrevocably agree that
venue would be proper in such court, and hereby waive any objection that such court is improper or inconvenient
forum for the resolution of such action.

(e)

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

(f)

Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the other Transaction Documents, embodies the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written agreements and
understandings relating to the subject matter hereof. No statement, representation,
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warranty, covenant, or agreement of any kind not expressly set forth in this Agreement shall affect, or be used to
interpret, change or restrict, the express terms and provisions of this Agreement.
(g)

Waivers and Consents. The terms and provisions of this Agreement and any right or remedy of any party hereunder
may be waived or consent for the departure therefrom granted only by written document executed by the party entitled
to the benefits of such terms or provisions of this Agreement. Each such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the
specific instance and for the purpose for which it was given, and shall not constitute a continuing waiver or consent.

(h)

Headings and Captions. The headings and captions of the various subdivisions of this Agreement are for convenience
of reference only and shall in no way modify or affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms or provisions
hereof.

(i)

Expenses. Unless otherwise set forth herein, each of the parties hereto shall pay its or his own fees and expenses
(including the fees of any attorneys, accountants, appraisers or others engaged by such party) in connection with this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. DPI shall pay all fees and expenses relating to preparation and
recording of assignments of the Mark.
{Signature page immediately follows}

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Trademark Purchase
Agreement as of the date first written above.
DPI, INC.

IMATION CORP.

By: /s/ Paul Green

By: /s/ James C. Ellis
Name: James C. Ellis
Title: Vice President

Name: Paul Green
Title: CFO
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Schedule 1(A)
Trademark Registrations, Applications, Common Law Rights, Domain Name Registrations, Licenses.
A.

Trademark Registrations and Applications
Country

Mark

Canada

EMEMOREX

Reg. No. / App. Ser. No.
TMA564,620

Canada

EMEMOREX.COM

TMA566,039

Canada
China P.R.

IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?
IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?

TMA674,496
3078528

Community Trademark

IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?

2505451

Hong Kong
Taiwan

IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?
IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?

2003B03885
1040241

United States

IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?

2748810

Australia
Austria

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

307739
66081

Bahamas

MEMOREX

15,561

Benelux
Benelux

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

360947
512363

Bermuda
Brazil

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

21973
821561693

Brazil

MEMOREX

825134625

Canada
Canada

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

TMA181108
TMA495643

Chile
China P.R.

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

697423
1518082

China P.R.

MEMOREX

1982392

Colombia
Community Trademark

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

162985
162073

Community Trademark

MEMOREX

2201242

Costa Rica
Czech Republic

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

148140
159305

Dominican Republic

MEMOREX

26980
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Country
Dominican Republic

Mark
MEMOREX

Reg. No. / App. Ser. No.
53561

Ecuador
Finland

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

2143.RENEWAL.942-93
57780

Germany

MEMOREX

1047873

Germany
Great Britain

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

DD643434
851238

Great Britain

MEMOREX

1497297

Great Britain
Great Britain

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

1119920
957972

Greece
Honduras

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

64346
56.872

Hong Kong

MEMOREX

200216216

Hong Kong
India

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

199305552
354394B

Indonesia
Ireland

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

IDM000013561
100885

Israel

MEMOREX

85488

Israel
Italy

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

48682
1258092

Jamaica
Korea South

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

25792
266663

Korea South

MEMOREX

271426

Korea South
Malaysia

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

581152
M76480

Malaysia

MEMOREX

2003/02114

Mexico
Mexico

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

1006136
465924

Mexico
New Zealand

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

154386
218208

Nicaraqua

MEMOREX

8516CC

Nicaraqua
Norway

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

27289CC
78450

Pakistan
Panama

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

76387
119387

Panama

MEMOREX

64662

Paraguay
Peru

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

197792
83851

Poland

MEMOREX

167714

Portugal

MEMOREX

204.063
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Country
Russian Federation

Mark
MEMOREX

Reg. No. / App. Ser. No.
131105

Singapore
Singapore

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

T77/73065B
T77/73067I

Singapore

MEMOREX

T77/73066J

Slovenia
South Africa

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

6980468
79/0710

Spain

MEMOREX

589541

Suriname
Switzerland

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

15672
373217

Taiwan
Thailand

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

976345
Kor67145

Thailand

MEMOREX

Kor9666

Thailand
Trinidad

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

Kor183881
11367

Turkey
Ukraine

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

200125951
29595

United States

MEMOREX

1557540

United States
United States

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

1,561,916
1,686,110

United States

MEMOREX

2,599,345

Uruguay
Uruguay

MEMOREX
MEMOREX

416.149
451.151 (form352.832

Vietnam

MEMOREX

69087

Hong Kong
Taiwan

MEMOREX (CHINESE CHARACTERS)
MEMOREX (CHINESE CHARACTERS)

300893043
360122

Taiwan
Hong Kong

MEMOREX (CHINESE CHARACTERS)
MEMOREX (IN CHINESE CHARACTERS

1014672
2003B06534

United States

MEMOREX LIVE

4534121

Australia

MEMOREX SECURE

1455444

Brazil
China P.R.

MEMOREX SECURE
MEMOREX SECURE

FILED/PENDING
10119911

Community Trademark
India

MEMOREX SECURE
MEMOREX SECURE

10375079
FILED/PENDING
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Country
Korea South

Mark
MEMOREX SECURE

Reg. No. / App. Ser. No.
977332

Mexico

MEMOREX SECURE

1315455

Singapore
United States

MEMOREX SECURE
MEMOREX SECURE

T1115286C
4361961
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B.

Common Law Trademarks

MEMOREX
MEMOREX LIVE
IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX?
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C.

Domain Name Registrations
Domain Name

buy-memorex.com
ememorex.biz
ememorex.com
memorex.asia
memorex.biz
memorex.com
memorex.info
memorex.org
memorex-ce.com
memorexdev.com
memorexelectronics.asia
memorexelectronics.com
memorex-electronics.com
memorex-europe.com
memorexlive.com
memorexlives.com
memorexmakeitlive.com
memorexmedia.com
memorexready.com
memorexrebates.com
memorexstuff.com
memorextraveldrive.com
memorex.be
memorex-electronics.ca
memorex.eu
memorexbatteries.eu
memorex.fr
memorex.de
memorex.com.hk
memorex.hk
memorex.com.mx
memorex.mx
memorex.co.nl
memorex.co.nz
memorex.com.ph
memorex.ph
memorex.com.sg
memorex.es
memorex.com.tw
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Domain Name
memorex.tw
memorex.co.uk
memorex.us

D.

Licenses.
(i)

Asset Purchase Agreement between Imation Corp. and PNY Technologies, Inc., dated October 2, 2015;

(ii) Asset Purchase Agreement between Imation Middle East FZE and Imation Corp. and PNY Technologies, Inc., dated
November 10, 2015; and
(iii)

Trademark License Agreement between Imation Corp. and MEM-CE, LLC dated October 15, 2015.
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EXHIBIT A
Bill of Sale
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, Imation Corp., a Delaware
corporation having offices at 1 Imation Way, Oakdale, Minnesota 55128 (“Seller”), does hereby grant, bargain, transfer, sell, assign,
convey and deliver to DPI, Inc., a Missouri corporation having offices at 900 N. 23 rd Street, St. Louis, Missouri 63106 (“Buyer”), all
right, title and interest in and to the Assets, as such term is defined in the Trademark Purchase Agreement dated as of January 4, 2016
between Seller and Buyer (the “Agreement”). Seller, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby covenants and agrees that, at any time
and from time to time upon the written request of Buyer, Seller will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be done,
executed, acknowledged and delivered, each and all such further acts, deeds, assignments, transfers, conveyances, powers of attorney
and assurances as may reasonably be required by Buyer in order to assign, transfer, set over, convey, assure and confirm unto and vest
in Buyer, its successors and assigns, title to the Assets.
Seller and Buyer hereby acknowledge and agree that neither the representations and warranties nor the rights, remedies and
obligations of any party under the Agreement will be deemed enlarged, limited, modified or altered in any way by this Bill of Sale. To
the extent that any conflict exists between any of the terms of this Bill of Sale and the Agreement, the terms of the Agreement will
prevail.
This bill of Sale is being executed and delivered by Seller as of January 4, 2016, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:
SELLER
By: /s/ James C. Ellis
Name: James C. Ellis
Title: Vice President
BUYER
By: /s/ Paul Green
Name: Paul Green
Title: CFO
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Exhibit B
Form of Assignments
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EXHIBIT B-1
IP Assignment
This IP Assignment is by and between Imation Corp., a Delaware corporation having offices at 1 Imation Way, Oakdale,
Minnesota 55128 (the “Seller”), and DPI, Inc., a Missouri corporation having offices at 900 N. 23 rd Street, St. Louis, Missouri 63106
(“Buyer”), as of January 4, 2016.
WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of all right, title, and interest in and to the trademarks listed on Schedule 1 hereto and the
goodwill associated therewith (collectively, the “Trademarks”);
WHEREAS, Buyer is desirous of acquiring all of Seller’s right, title and interest in and to the Trademarks pursuant to a
Trademark Purchase Agreement between Seller and Buyer dated January 4, 2016.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the covenants and obligations set forth below, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
1. Seller has sold, assigned and transferred, and hereby does sell, assign and transfer unto Buyer the entire right, title and interest
in and to the Trademarks, together with the goodwill associated therewith, renewals and extensions thereof, and the right to sue
for, and recover for, any past infringements thereof, to be held and enjoyed by Buyer, its successors and assigns, as fully and
entirely as the same would have been held and enjoyed by Seller had no sale and assignment of said Trademarks been made.
2. Seller agrees to execute such further documents reasonably required by Buyer to secure and enforce the rights granted to Buyer
under this IP Assignment.
This IP Assignment is executed in connection with and subject to the terms and conditions of the aforesaid Agreement. Seller and
Buyer hereby acknowledge and agree that neither the representations and warranties nor the rights, remedies and obligations of any
party under the Agreement will be deemed enlarged, limited, modified or altered in any way by this IP Assignment. To the extent that
any conflict exists between any of the terms of this IP Assignment and the Agreement, the terms of the Agreement will prevail.
[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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Seller Signature Page to IP Assignment

SELLER - Imation Corp.
By: /s/ James C. Ellis
Name: James C. Ellis
Title: Vice President
STATE OF Minnesota________
CITY OF Oakdale____________

)
)
)

On this 4th day of January, 2016, before me personally appeared Jim Ellis, to me known to be the person described in
and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the City and State aforesaid,
the day and year first above written.

/s/ Lisa Pletcher
Notary Public
My Commission Expires: January 31, 2016
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Buyer Signature Page to IP Assignment

BUYER - DPI, Inc.
By: /s/ Paul Green
Name: Paul Green
Title: CFO
STATE OF MISSOURI

)
)

CITY OF ST. LOUIS

)

On this 4th day of December, 2015, before me personally appeared Paul Green, to me known to be the person described
in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the City and State aforesaid,
the day and year first above written.

/s/ Ursula R. Rogers
Notary Public
My Commission Expires: Nov. 9, 2016
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EXHIBIT B-2
Assignment of Trademark Licenses
This Assignment of Trademark Licenses is by and between Imation Corp., a Delaware corporation having offices at 1 Imation
Way, Oakdale, Minnesota 55128 (“Seller”), and DPI, Inc., a Missouri corporation having offices at 900 N. 23 rd Street, St. Louis,
Missouri 63106 (“Buyer”), as of January 4, 2016 (the “Effective Date”).
WHEREAS, Seller entered into that certain Trademark License Agreement dated October 15, 2013 with MEM-CE, LLC, a copy
of which is attached as Annex 1 (the “MEM-CE Trademark License Agreement”), whereby Seller granted a license to certain
trademarks to MEM-CE, LLC; and
WHEREAS, Seller entered into that certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated October 2, 2015 with PNY Technologies, Inc., a
copy of which is attached as Annex 2 (the “PNY Asset Purchase Agreement”), whereby Seller granted certain rights, including a license
to certain trademarks, to PNY Technologies, Inc.; and
WHEREAS, Seller and Imation Middle East FZE entered into that certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated November 10, 2015
with PNY Technologies, Inc. a copy of which is attached as Annex 3 (the “November PNY Asset Purchase Agreement” and together
with the October PNY Asset Purchase Agreement, the “PNY Asset Purchase Agreements”), whereby Seller granted certain rights,
including a license to certain trademarks, to PNY Technologies, Inc.; and
WHEREAS, Seller has transferred to buyer all of its right, title and interest in and to (a) the trademarks licensed pursuant to the
MEM-CE Trademark License Agreement and (b) the MEMOREX and IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX trademarks licensed pursuant to
the PNY Asset Purchase Agreement; and
WHEREAS, Buyer seeks an assignment of the MEM-CE Trademark License Agreement, and the Trademark License Provisions
(as defined below) of the PNY Asset Purchase Agreements, and is willing to make such assignment.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the covenants and obligations set forth below, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
1. Seller hereby assigns all its right, title and interest in and to the MEM-CE Trademark License Agreement to Buyer, and Buyer
accepts such assignment.
2. Seller hereby assigns all its right, title and interest in and to the Trademark License Provisions of the PNY Asset Purchase
Agreements to Buyer, and Buyer accepts such assignment. The “Trademark License Provisions” are (a) the following provisions
of the PNY Asset Purchase Agreements to the extent they are applicable to the MEMOREX and IS IT LIVE OR IS IT
MEMOREX trademarks: Section 2.3 (Trademark License), Article III (Representations and Warranties), Article V
(Miscellaneous) of the October PNY Asset Purchase Agreement and Article VI (Miscellaneous) of the November PNY Asset
Purchase Agreement, and any applicable definitions as set forth in the PNY Asset Purchase Agreements (including those set
forth in Article I and Article IV), and (b) the right to receive the greater of (i) the annual minimum royalties due under the PNY
Asset Purchase Agreements based upon the sale of products bearing the MEMOREX, IS IT LIVE OR IS IT
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MEMOREX and IMATION trademarks, or (ii) royalties that are attributable to the sale of products bearing the MEMOREX and
IS IT LIVE OR IS IT MEMOREX trademarks.
3. Seller and Buyer hereby acknowledge and agree that neither the representations and warranties nor the rights, remedies and
obligations of any party under the Agreement will be deemed enlarged, limited, modified or altered in any way by this
Assignment of Trademark Licenses. To the extent that any conflict exists between any of the terms of this Assignment of
Trademark Licenses and the Agreement, the terms of the Agreement will prevail.
[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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Seller Signature Page to Assignment of Trademark Licenses
SELLER - Imation Corp.
By: /s/ James C. Ellis
Name: James C. Ellis
Title: Vice President
STATE OF Minnesota________
CITY OF Oakdale____________

)
)
)

On this 4th day of January, 2016, before me personally appeared James Ellis, to me known to be the person described in
and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the City and State aforesaid,
the day and year first above written.

/s/ Lisa Pletcher
Notary Public
My Commission Expires: January 31, 2016
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Buyer Signature Page to Assignment of Trademark Licenses
BUYER - DPI, Inc.
By: /s/ Paul Green
Name: Paul Green
Title: Vice President
STATE OF Missouri__________
CITY OF St. Louis____________

)
)
)

On this 4th day of January, 2016, before me personally appeared Paul Green, to me known to be the person described in
and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the City and State aforesaid,
the day and year first above written.

/s/ Ursula R. Rogers
Notary Public
My Commission Expires: Nov. 9, 2016
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SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT
Second Amendment to Consulting Agreement (this “ Second Amendment”), dated as of November 17, 2015, by and between
Realization Services, Inc., a New York corporation (the “ Consultant”), and Imation Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Client”). The
Consultant and the Client are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party”, and collectively as the “Parties.”
WHEREAS, (A) pursuant to a Consulting Agreement dated August 17, 2015 as modified by an Amendment to Consulting
Agreement dated as of September 16, 2015 (collectively, the “Consulting Agreement”), the Client retained the Consultant to perform
certain Services (as defined) under the terms and conditions set forth in the Consulting Agreement and (B) the Parties desire to enter
into this Second Amendment to modify the terms and conditions of the Consulting Agreement. All terms used but not defined herein
shall have the respective meanings assigned to them in the Consulting Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual agreements made herein and for other good and valuable
consideration, the Parties hereby agree as follows:
1. Additional Services and Modifications to Consultant’s Remuneration
a.
Additional Services relating to Nexsan/IronKey – The Client hereby retains the Consultant to perform the following additional
Services during the period from November 17, 2015 through December 31, 2015:
Assisting the Client, via close collaboration with members of Management, to: (i) analyze the operations of the Client’s
Nexsan/Connected Data business unit in order to make such operations more efficient and to reduce discretionary expenditures and
overhead, such analysis to include development of a detailed understanding of Nexsan’s and Connected Data’s cost structures and to
emphasize accounts receivable management, inventory management, accounts payable management, restructuring of corporate
functions, strategic analysis of locations, organizational and functional personnel structures, headcount reduction, and other aspects
identified by the Client and the Consultant, (ii) formulate: (A) a business plan (the “Nexsan Business Plan”) designed to improve the
business of Nexsan/Connected Data and enhance shareholder value relating thereto and (B) a related integrated, rolling, computerbased budget (the “Nexsan Budget”) on a monthly (cash) basis for the period from December 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016,
such Budget to reflect the overall Nexsan Business Plan and include explanation of the underlying budget assumptions, and projections
for: (1) income statement, (2) balance sheet, (3) inventory, (4) cost of sales, (5) selling, general and administrative expenses and (6)
specific employees or positions for staffing, (iii) identify the detailed action steps needed to achieve the objective for each critical area
set forth in the Nexsan Business Plan and the timetable(s) for implementation of such steps (such objectives to include, among others,
rationalizing Nexsan’s and Connected Data’s operating costs and workforce) and (iv) develop a detailed understanding of the IronKey
business unit’s cost structure.
b.
Additional Compensation relating to Nexsan/IronKey – To compensate the Consultant for the additional Services described under
subsection (a) above, the Parties agree to the following additional compensation for which the Consultant shall invoice weekly under
Section 6(a) of the Consulting Agreement:
In addition to the Weekly Fees to be paid to the Consultant pursuant to Sections 5(a) and (b) of the Consulting Agreement, the Client
shall also pay to the Consultant additional remuneration of up to $300,000 for such additional Services performed during the period
from November 17, 2015 through December 31, 2015. Such additional remuneration shall be over and above the usual Weekly Fees
applicable during such period. Such $300,000 shall be invoiced weekly on a pro rata basis during that period.
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c.
Anticipated Services into March 2016 and related Weekly Fees – The Parties presently contemplate that the Revised Term will
extend through March 18, 2016. To compensate the Consultant for the additional staffing it is to provide from January 1, 2016 through
March 18, 2016, the Parties agree that during such period the ceiling on the Weekly Fees will be $125,000. Notwithstanding the above,
Client shall retain the right to terminate Consultant’s services hereunder by giving seven (7) day’s prior written notice to Consultant.
2. Miscellaneous
The Consulting Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect. Notwithstanding any termination of the Consulting
Agreement, the following Sections shall survive and remain in effect for the periods specified: (i) Section 1 above until the final
resolution of the rights and obligations of the Parties therein and (iii) this Section 2 until Section 1 is no longer in effect. Each Party
represents and warrants to the other that it has had full opportunity to obtain, and has in fact obtained, the advice of its own legal
counsel with respect to this Amendment and the transactions contemplated. This Amendment may be signed in counterparts and shall
become effective as if executed in a single, complete document upon its execution by both Parties.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the day and year first above written.
CLIENT:

CONSULTANT:

IMATION CORP.

REALIZATION SERVICES, INC.

By:

By:

/s/ Joseph DePerio
Joseph DePerio
Its Chairman of the Board of Directors

/s/ Barry L. Kasoff
Barry L. Kasoff
Its President
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THIRD AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT
Third Amendment to Consulting Agreement (this “ Second Amendment”), dated as of January 1, 2016, by and between
Realization Services, Inc., a New York corporation (the “ Consultant”), and Imation Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Client”). The
Consultant and the Client are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party”, and collectively as the “Parties.”
WHEREAS, (A) pursuant to a Consulting Agreement dated August 17, 2015 as modified by an Amendment to Consulting
Agreement dated as of September 16, 2015 (the “First Amendment”) and a Second Amendment to Consulting Agreement (the “ Second
Amendment”) dated as of November 17, 2015 (collectively, the “Consulting Agreement”), the Client retained the Consultant to perform
certain Services (as defined) under the terms and conditions set forth in the Consulting Agreement and (B) the Parties desire to enter
into this Third Amendment to modify the terms and conditions of the Consulting Agreement. All terms used but not defined herein shall
have the respective meanings assigned to them in the Consulting Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual agreements made herein and for other good and valuable
consideration, the Parties hereby agree as follows:
1. Additional Services and Modifications to Consultant’s Remuneration
a.
Extended Services relating to Nexsan/Connected Data and IronKey – The Client hereby retains the Consultant to continue to
perform the additional Services relating to Nexsan/Connected Data and IronKey (as specified in the Second Amendment) during the
period from January 1, 2016 through such date as Nexsan/Connected Data may determine (in its sole discretion) (such period, the
“Extended Term”).
b.
Additional Compensation relating to Nexsan/Connected Data and IronKey – To compensate the Consultant for the additional
Services described under subsection (a) above, the Parties agree to the following additional compensation for which the Consultant shall
invoice weekly under Section 6(a) of the Consulting Agreement:
In addition to the Weekly Fees to be paid to the Consultant pursuant to Sections 5(a) and (b) of the Consulting Agreement, the Client
shall also pay to the Consultant additional remuneration (i.e., Weekly Fees) at the rate previously agreed upon by the Parties for such
additional Services relating to Nexsan/Connected Data and IronKey. Such additional remuneration shall be over and above the usual
Weekly Fees applicable during the Extended Term, and shall be invoiced weekly on a pro rata basis during the Extended Term.
c.
Term and Right to Terminate – The Parties presently contemplate that the Revised Term (as defined in the First Amendment) will
extend through the end of the Extended Term. Notwithstanding the above, the Client shall have the right to terminate the Consultant’s
services hereunder by giving one (1) day’s prior written notice to the Consultant.
2. Miscellaneous
The Consulting Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect. Notwithstanding any termination of the Consulting
Agreement, the following Sections shall survive and remain in effect for the periods specified: (i) Section 1 above until the final
resolution of the rights and obligations of the Parties therein and (iii) this Section 2 until Section 1 is no longer in effect. Each Party
represents and warrants to the other that it has had full opportunity to obtain, and has in fact obtained, the advice of its own legal
counsel with
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respect to this Amendment and the transactions contemplated. This Amendment may be signed in counterparts and shall become
effective as if executed in a single, complete document upon its execution by both Parties.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the day and year first above written.

CLIENT:

CONSULTANT:

IMATION CORP.

REALIZATION SERVICES, INC.

By:

By:

/s/ Joseph DePerio
Joseph DePerio
Its Chairman of the Board of Directors

/s/ Barry L. Kasoff
Barry L. Kasoff
Its President
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Imation Corp.
Country or State in Which
Subsidiary was Organized

Percentage of
Ownership

U.S.

100

U.S.

100

Imation do Brasil Ltda

Brazil

100

Imation Chile S.A.

Chile

100

Imation Latin America Marketing S.A.

Panama

100

Imation Mercosur Trading S.A.

Uruguay

100

Memorex Products Inc.

U.S.

100

Connected Data, Inc.

U.S.

100

Netherlands

100

Netherlands

100

Germany

100

United Kingdom

100

Italy

100

United Arab Emirates

100

Imation Enterprises Corp.
Imation Latin America Corp

Imation Holding BV
Imation Europe BV
TME GmbH
Imation U.K. Limited
Imation S.r.l.
Imation Middle East FZE
Imation Polska Sp. Z.O.O.

Poland

100

Singapore

100

Singapore

100

Australia

100

Imation Singapore Pte Ltd.

Singapore

100

Imation (Malaysia) SDN BHD

Malaysia

100

India

100

Japan

100

Imation Korea, Inc.

South Korea

100

Imation Hong Kong Ltd.

Hong Kong

100

Imation Taiwan Ltd.

Taiwan

100

Memorex Products (Taiwan) Inc.

Taiwan

100

Imation (Thailand) Ltd.

Thailand

100

Imation Argentina S.A.C.I.F.I.A.

Argentina

100

Imation Canada Inc.

Canada

100

Imation Ireland Ltd.

Ireland

100

Nexsan Corporation

U.S.

100

U.S.

100

United Kingdom

100

Nexsan Technologies Canada Inc

Canada

100

6360246 Canada Inc.

Canada

100

6360319 Canada Inc.

Canada

100

Global Data Media FZ-LLC

United Arab Emirates

51*

MBI International FZ-LLC

United Arab Emirates

51*

MBI International Services Private Ltd.

India

51*

MBI India Marketing Private Ltd.

India

51*

Imation Holdings Pte Ltd.
Imation Asia Pacific Pte Ltd.
Imation ANZ Pty Ltd.

Imation India Private Ltd.
Imation Corporation Japan

Nexsan Technologies, Inc.
Nexsan Technologies Limited

*

Global Data Media FZ-LLC and its subsidiaries are joint ventures.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Registration Nos. 333-15275, 333-15273, 33315277, 333-35591, 333-38196, 333-66030, 333-124634, 333-150693, 333-173903 and 333-188429), and the Registration Statement on Form S-3
(Registration No. 333-186061) of Imation Corp. of our report dated March 15, 2016, relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 15, 2016
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Exhibit 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Robert B. Fernander
and Barry L. Kasoff, and each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting alone, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign the 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Imation Corp.,
and any and all amendments thereto, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting alone, full power and authority to do and perform to all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting alone, or the
substitutes for such attorneys-in-fact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Name

Title

Date

/s/ BARRY L. KASOFF
Barry L. Kasoff

Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

March 15, 2016

/s/ JOSEPH DE PERIO

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Director

March 15, 2016

Joseph De Perio
/s/ TRACY MCKIBBEN
Tracy McKibben
/s/ DONALD PUTNAM
Donald Putnam
/s/ ROBERT SEARING
Robert Searing
/s/ ALEX SPIRO
Alex Spiro
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Robert B. Fernander, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Imation Corp.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(f) and
15d - 15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.
March 15, 2016
By:

/s/ ROBERT B. FERNANDER
Robert B. Fernander,
Interim Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Barry L. Kasoff, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Imation Corp.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(f) and
15d - 15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)
(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 15, 2016
By:

/s/ BARRY L. KASOFF
Barry L. Kasoff,
Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer

Source: IMATION CORP, 10-K, March 15, 2016

Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠

The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.

Exhibit 32.1
Certification Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Imation Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Robert B. Fernander, Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
March 15, 2016
/s/ ROBERT B. FERNANDER
Robert B. Fernander,
Interim Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2
Certification Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Imation Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Barry L. Kasoff, Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
March 15, 2016
/s/ BARRY L. KASOFF
Barry L. Kasoff,
Chief Restructuring Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer
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